
 
 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 
831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  

 

This meeting has been noticed 
according to the Brown Act 
rules.  The Board of Directors 
meets regularly on the third 
Monday of each month, except 
in January, February.  The 
meetings begin at 7:00 PM.  

 

  
 AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
Board of Directors 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
****************** 

Wednesday, January 23, 2019 
6:30 pm Closed Session 

Conference Room, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
7:00 pm Regular Meeting  

Conference Room, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA 

 
Staff notes will be available on the District web site at 

http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/ 
by 5 PM on Friday, January18, 2019 

The meeting will be televised on Comcast Channels 25 & 28.  Refer to broadcast schedule on page 3. 
  
 

6:30 PM – Closed Session 
As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board may adjourn to 
closed or executive session to consider specific matters dealing with pending or 
threatened litigation, certain personnel matters, or certain property acquisition matters. 

  
 1. Public Comment - Members of the public may address the Board on the item or items listed on the 

Closed Session agenda. 
 2. Adjourn to Closed Session 
 3. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov Code 54956.9 (a)) 
  A. City of Marina v CPUC 
 4. Adjourn to 7 pm Session 
   
 7:00 PM – Regular Meeting  

  
 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
   
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   
  

Board of Directors 
Molly Evans, Chair – Division 3 

Alvin Edwards, Vice Chair – Division 1 
George Riley – Division 2 
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 

Gary Hoffmann – Division 5 
Mary Adams, Monterey County Board of 

Supervisors Representative 
Vacant  – Mayoral Representative 

 
General Manager 

David J. Stoldt 
 

  
This agenda was posted at the District office at 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G 
Monterey on Friday, January 18, 2018.  Staff reports regarding these 
agenda items will be available for public review on Friday, January 18 at 
the District office and at the Carmel, Carmel Valley, Monterey, Pacific 
Grove and Seaside libraries. After staff reports have been distributed, if 
additional documents are produced by the District and provided to a 
majority of the Board regarding any item on the agenda, they will be 
available at the District office during normal business hours, and posted 
on the District website at www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-
directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/.  Documents distributed at the 
meeting will be made available in the same manner. The next regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for February 21, 2019 at 7 
pm. 

   

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/
http://www.mpwmd.net/who-we-are/board-of-directors/bod-meeting-agendas-calendar/


MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
January 23, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 

 ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA - The Clerk of the Board will announce agenda 
corrections and proposed additions, which may be acted on by the Board as provided in Sections 54954.2 of 
the California Government Code. 

   
 ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE TO DAVID POTTER, MAYORAL REPRESENTATIVE TO 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   
 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - Anyone wishing to address the Board on Consent Calendar, Information 

Items, Closed Session items, or matters not listed on the agenda may do so only during Oral 
Communications.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes.  The public may comment on all other 
items at the time they are presented to the Board.   

   
 CONSENT CALENDAR - The Consent Calendar consists of routine items for which staff has prepared a 

recommendation.  Approval of the Consent Calendar ratifies the staff recommendation.  Consent Calendar 
items may be pulled for separate consideration at the request of a member of the public, or a member of the 
Board.  Following adoption of the remaining Consent Calendar items, staff will give a brief presentation on 
the pulled item.  Members of the public are requested to limit individual comment on pulled Consent Items 
to three (3) minutes.  Unless noted with double asterisks “**”, Consent Calendar items do not constitute a 
project as defined by CEQA Guidelines section 15378. 

 1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the December 17, 2018 Board Meeting 
 2. Ratify Board Committee Assignments for Calendar Year 2019 
 3. Consider Expenditure of Funds to Contract with Underwriter for Monterey Peninsula Water Supply 

Project 
 4. Consider Entering into an Agreement for an Addendum to the MPWMD Aquifer Storage and 

Recovery Project Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment 
 5. Consider Approval of Two Temporary Field Staff Positions and Supplies Funded through a Second 

Interagency Contract between MPWMD and NMFS to Provide for an Additional Cooperative 
Research and Monitoring Project   

 6. Confirm Appointments to Ordinance No. 152 Oversight Panel 
 7. Consider Approval of Annual Update on Investment Policy 
 8. Receive Semi-Annual Financial Report on the CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project 
 9. Consider Adoption of Treasurer's Report for November 2018 
   
 GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 10. Status Report on California American Water Compliance with State Water Resources Control 

Board Order 2016-0016 and Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision 
 11. Update on Development of Water Supply Projects 
 12. Update on Major District Projects 
   
 ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 13. Report on December 17, 2018, 9 pm, Continued Closed Session of the Board 
  
 DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, CONFERENCE 

ATTENDANCE AND MEETINGS) 
 14. Oral Reports on Activities of County, Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/Associations 
   
 PUBLIC HEARINGS – No public hearing items were submitted for consideration by the Board 
   
 ACTION ITEMS – Public comment will be received on each of these items.  Please limit your comment to 

three (3) minutes per item. 
  
 15. Receive Report on Rule 19.8 Listening Sessions of January 7, 8, 9, 10 and 15, 2019, and 

Determine Subsequent Action Regarding Preparation of a Feasibility Study   



MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
January 23, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

Action:  Following receipt of the report from staff, the Board will discuss conclusions reached by 
the public at the listening sessions and provide direction to staff on subsequent action to be taken 
regarding preparation of the feasibility study required by Rule 19.8 of Measure J. 

16. Consider Approval of Revised MOU for Integrated Regional Water Management in the
Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay and South Monterey Bay Items Related to Integrated
Regional Water Management Program
Action: The Board will consider authorizing the General Manager to make minor or non-
substantive changes to the MOU as requested by the other signatories to the agreement.

DISCUSSION ITEMS – Public comment will be received on each of these items.  Please limit your 
comment to three (3) minutes per item. 
17. Discuss District Attendance at Association of California Water Agencies Washington D.C.

Legislative Conference February 26-28, 2019

18. Discuss Memorandum from David C. Laredo, General Counsel on Smart Meters

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS - The public may address the Board on Information 
Items and Staff Reports during the Oral Communications portion of the meeting.  Please limit your 
comments to three minutes. 
19. Letters Received
20. Monthly Allocation Report
21. Water Conservation Program Report
22. Quarterly Water Use Credit Transfer Status Report
23. Carmel River Fishery Report for December 2018
24. Monthly Water Supply and California American Water Production Report
25. Quarterly Carmel River Riparian Corridor Management Program Report
26. Semi-Annual Groundwater Quality Monitoring Report

ADJOURNMENT 

Board Meeting Broadcast Schedule – Comcast Channels 25 & 28 
View Live Webcast at Ampmedia.org 

Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside 
Ch. 25, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside 
Ch. 28, Mondays, 7 PM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   
Ch. 28, Fridays, 9 AM Carmel, Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, 

Pebble Beach, Sand City, Seaside   

Board Meeting Schedule 
Thursday, February 21, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 
Monday, March 18, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 
Monday, April 15, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 7:00 pm District conference room 

Supplemental Letter Packet



MPWMD Regular Board Meeting 
January 23, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 

 Upon request, MPWMD will make a reasonable effort to provide written 
agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to 
enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public meetings. 
MPWMD will also make a reasonable effort to provide translation services 
upon request.  Please submit a written request, including your name, mailing 
address, phone number and brief description of the requested materials and 
preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service by 5:00 PM on 
Thursday, January 17, 2019.  Requests should be sent to the Board 
Secretary, MPWMD, P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA, 93942.  You may also fax 
your request to the Administrative Services Division at 831-644-9560, or call 
831-658-5600. 

 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\Jan-23-2019-Board-Mtg-Agenda.docx 



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 17, 2018 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:    
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Attached as Exhibit 1-A are draft minutes of the December 17, 2018 Regular 
meeting of the Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends approval of the minutes with adoption of 
the Consent Calendar. 

 
EXHIBIT 
1-A Draft Minutes of the December 17, 2018 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors  
  

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\01\Item1.docx 

 
 
 
  

1



2



 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA93940P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA93942-0085 

831-658-5600 Fax  831-644-9560http://www.mpwmd.net 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1-A 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 

Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

December 17, 2018 
 
 

Vice Chair Evans called the meeting to order at 7:10 pm in 
the MPWMD conference room.   
 

 CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: 
Alvin Edwards, Division 1 
George Riley, Division 2 
Molly Evans – Vice Chair, Division 3 
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 
Gary D. Hoffmann, P.E. – Division 5 
Vacant – Mayoral Representative 
Mary Adams – Monterey County Board of Supervisors Rep. 
 
Directors Absent:  None 
 
General Manager present:  David J. Stoldt 
 
District Counsel present:  David Laredo 

  

   
The assembly recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   
No changes.  ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS TO 

AGENDA 
   
The following comments were directed to the Board during 
Oral Communications.  (a) Judi Lehman asked if the 
listening sessions scheduled in early January regarding Rule 
19.8/preparation of a feasibility study could be recorded so 
that the public could view each session. General Manager 
Stoldt announced the dates of the Listening Sessions and 
stated the January 2 and 3, 2019, sessions would be video 
recorded.  All sessions would be audio recorded. (b) Nina 
Beety requested that the Board place on a future agenda a 
discussion of conducting an investigation into the effect of 
Neptune smart water meters on persons with electromagnetic 
sensitivity.  Mr. Stoldt advised that installation of Neptune 
smart meters would not occur as described by Ms. Beety, 
because the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) 
had denied California American Water’s (Cal-Am) request 
to install them. (c) Gary Cursio, representing the Coalition 
of Peninsula Businesses, expressed concern about the 
District’s recent Supreme Court filing in case S251935 in 
support of Marina Coast Water District.  He urged the Board 
to ensure disclosure and public transparency in its decision 
making. (d) Michael Baer stated that the Board of Directors 

 ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

3

http://www.mpwmd.net/


Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – December 17, 2018 -- 2 of 5 
 
 

 
  

should not support Cal-Am’s desalination project, because 
the company does not own water rights for development of 
the proposed desalination project, which places financing of 
the project in peril.  (e) Melodie Chrislock – Urged the 
Board to fast track development of alternative water supplies 
because Cal-Am might not develop the desalination project 
due to the lack of water rights. 
   

On a motion by Adams and second of Byrne, the Consent 
Calendar was approved on a unanimous vote of 6 – 0 by 
Adams, Byrne, Edwards, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley. 
 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Adopted.  1. Consider Adoption of Minutes of the 
November 19, 2018 Regular Board 
Meeting 

    
Adopted.  2. Adopt Board Meeting Schedule for 

2019 
    
Adopted.  3. Consider Adoption of Treasurer's 

Report for October 2018 
    
  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
A summary of Mr. Stoldt’s report is on file at the District 
office and can be viewed on the agency’s website.  He 
reported that for the period of October 1, 2018 through 
November 30, 2018, rainfall recorded was at 132% of long-
term average; unimpaired flow was at 66% of long term 
average, and useable storage was at 99% of long term 
average.  He reviewed the handout titled Status Report on 
Major District Projects dated December 17, 2018.  He 
commended staff member Larry Hampson on completion of 
the Rancho San Carlos Road Streambank Stabilization 
Project. 

 4. Status Report on California American 
Water Compliance with State Water 
Resources Control Board Order 2016-
0016 and Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Adjudication Decision 

    
  ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
In response to comments made during Oral 
Communications, Mr. Laredo reported that the Board had 
previously reviewed the status of pending cases before the 
California Supreme Court (items 3.A, B and C), and made a 
motion to intervene in S251935 in order to preserve the 
District’s party status.  He noted that there had been no 
change in position by the District.  He stated that the 
District’s submission to the courts was not in support of 
Marina Coast Water District, neither was it adverse to Cal-
Am.  Mr. Laredo reported that the California Supreme Court 
ruled last week to deny without prejudice the petitions for 
written review in this case.  The CPUC considered a request 
for reconsideration in closed session, but there has been no 
report on action taken.   Regarding the 5:00 pm closed 
session, the Board received a status report on all matters on 
the closed session agenda.  The Board did not conclude its 
discussion at the 5:00 pm closed session, and would 
therefore reconvene the closed session following 
adjournment of the open session. 
 

 5. Report on 5:00 pm Closed Session of 
the Board 

4



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – December 17, 2018 -- 3 of 5 
 
 

 
  

   3. Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Existing Litigation (Gov Code 
54946.9 (a)) 

   A. Application of California American 
Water to CPUC (No. 12-04-019) – 
Monterey Peninsula Water Supply 
Project 

   B. Marina Coast Water District v 
CPUC (No. S251935) 

   C. City of Marina v CPUC (No. 
S251935) 

   4. Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Pending and Threatened 
Litigation (Gov. Code 56956.9 
(b)) – One Case 

    
  DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (INCLUDING 

AB 1234 REPORTS ON TRIPS, 
CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE AND 
MEETINGS) 

Director Adams reported that she attended the November 30, 
2018 tour of the Carlsbad Desalination Project sponsored by 
the Association of California Water Agencies. 

 6. Oral Reports on Activities of County, 
Cities, Other Agencies/Committees/ 
Associations 

    
  PRESENTATIONSS 
Suresh Prasad, Administrative Services Division Manager 
and Chief Financial Officer, presented the report.  A 
summary is on file at the District office and on the agency’s 
website.   On a motion by Byrne and second of Adams the 
report was received on a unanimous vote of 6 – 0 by Byrne, 
Adams, Edwards, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley. 

 7. Receive Pension Reporting Standards 
Government Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 68 Accounting 
Valuation Report 

    
Suresh Prasad, Administrative Services Division Manager 
and Chief Financial Officer, presented the report.  A 
summary is on file at the District office and on the agency’s 
website.   On a motion by Byrne and second of Adams, the 
report was received on a unanimous vote of 6 – 0 by Byrne, 
Adams, Edwards, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley. 

 8. Receive Government Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 75 
Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefits other 
than Pensions 

    
  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Byrne offered a motion that was seconded by Riley to adopt 
the first reading of Ordinance No. 181.  The motion was 
adopted on a roll-call vote of 6 – 0 by Byrne, Riley, Adams, 
Edwards, Evans and Hoffmann. 
 
The following comments were directed to the Board during 
the public hearing on this item.  (a) Paul Bruno, Vice Chair 
of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster, expressed 
support for adoption of the ordinance.  (b) Cody Phillips, 
representing Montage Health, spoke in support of the staff 
recommendation to adopt the first reading of the ordinance.  

 9. Consider First Reading of Ordinance 
No. 181 – Amending Rule 11 and 
Adding Rule 23.10 to Establish a 
Water Entitlement for SNG Evariste, 
LLC, A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company (CEQA Compliance: 
Exempt per Section 15268 based on 
previous environmental 
determinations made by the Courts.) 

 
 
 
 
 

   

5



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – December 17, 2018 -- 4 of 5 
 
 

 
  

On a motion of Edwards and second by Riley, the January 
through March 2019 Quarterly Water Supply Strategy and 
Budget was approved on a vote of 6 – 0 by Edwards, Riley, 
Adams, Byrne, Evans and Hoffmann.  No comments were 
directed to the Board during the public hearing on this item. 

 10. Consider Adoption of January 
through March 2019 Quarterly Water 
Supply Strategy and Budget  (Notice 
of Exemption, CEQA, Article 19, 
Section 15301 (Class 1)) 

    
On a motion by Edwards and second of Byrne, the report 
was received by the Board on a unanimous vote of 6 – 0 by 
Edwards, Byrne, Adams, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley. 
 
Suresh Prasad, Administrative Services Division Manager 
and Chief Financial Officer, presented a summary of the 
report.  In addition, Mike Riley and Rae Gularte of Hayashi 
and Wayland provided information and responded to 
questions from the Board. 
 
The following comments were directed to the Board during 
the public hearing on this item.  (a) Tom Rowley, 
representing the Monterey Peninsula Taxpayers Association, 
asked when either the water supply charge or the user fee 
would be retired, and described collection of both funding 
sources as double-dipping into the rate payers’ pocketbooks. 
(b) Paul Bruno, a member of the Ordinance No. 152 
Oversight Panel, stated that the panel supports reduction of 
the property tax as soon as possible due to restoration of the 
user fee.   General Manager Stoldt stated that the Ordinance 
No. 152 Oversight Panel had concurred with the Board’s 
policy to collect both the user fee and the water supply 
charge for three years, and then determine if the water 
supply charge could be reduced or sunset.  He also noted 
that the Superior Court, Appeals Court and California 
Supreme Court have all determined that the water supply 
charge is not a property tax. 

 11. Receive Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report 

    
  ACTION ITEMS 
Byrne offered a motion that was seconded by Edwards to 
approve the staff recommendation to enter into agreements 
with qualified consultants to be funded by the balance of the 
unexpended 2018-19 budgeted amount for this task.  The 
motion was approved on a vote of 5 – 1 by Directors Byrne, 
Edwards, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley.  Director Adams 
abstained.  No comments were directed to the Board during 
the public comment period on this item. 

 12. Consider Approval for Retaining 
Consultant Services for an Update of 
the Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan for the Monterey 
Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and Southern 
Monterey Bay 

    
On a motion by Adams and second of Byrne, Board officers 
for 2019 were elected as follows:  Evans, Chair; Edwards, 
Vice Chair; Stoldt, Secretary; and Prasad, Treasurer.  The 
motion was approved on a unanimous vote of 6 – 0 by 
Adams, Byrne, Edwards, Evans, Hoffmann and Riley.  No 
comments were directed to the Board during the public 
comment period on this item. 

 13. Conduct Election of Board Officers 
for 2019 

    
There was no discussion of these items.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF 

REPORTS 
  14. Letters Received 
  15. Committee Report 

6



Draft Minutes – MPWMD Regular Board Meeting – December 17, 2018 -- 5 of 5 
 
 

 
  

  16. Monthly Allocation Report 
  17. Water Conservation Program Report 
  18. Carmel River Fishery Report 
  19. Monthly Water Supply and California 

American Water Production Report  
   
At 9 pm the meeting was adjourned to a continuation of the 
5 pm Closed Session of the Board. 

 ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 

 

 Arlene M. Tavani, Deputy District Secretary 
  
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\01\Item1-Exh-A.docx 

7



8



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. RATIFY BOARD COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2019

Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:  N/A 

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ N/A 
General Manager Line Item No.:  

Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:   N/A 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

SUMMARY:   A list of committee assignments for calendar year 2019 is attached as Exhibit  
2-A.   

All committees are made up of less than a quorum of the Board.  The Administrative Committee 
is the District’s one standing committee.  It generally meets one week prior to the Board meeting.  
The other committees do not meet regularly, but only as needed. 

When this list was developed, the Board of Directors was comprised of six members.  The Mayoral 
representative should join the Board at the January 23, 2019 meeting, and committee membership 
may be revised at a future meeting to include all seven members of the Board.  

RECOMMENDATION:   Ratify appointments as presented or modify them by motion. 

EXHIBIT 
2-A Proposed Committee Assignments for Calendar Year 2019

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\02\Item2.docx 

9



10



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA93940P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA93942-0085 
831-658-5600Fax  831-644-9560http://www.mpwmd.net  

 
 

PROPOSED BOARD COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS FOR 2019 
 

Presented for Adoption on January 23, 2019 
 

 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\02\Item2-Exh-A.docx 

BOARD COMMITTEES 
Administrative Committee George Riley – Chair  

Gary Hoffman 
Molly Evans 
Dave Potter, Alternate 

Public Outreach/Communications Jeanne Byrne – Chair 
Molly Evans 
Alvin Edwards 
Mary Adams, Alternate 

Water Demand Alvin Edwards – Chair 
Jeanne Byrne 
Molly Evans 
Dave Potter, Alternate 

Legislative Advocacy Molly Evans – Chair 
Gary Hoffman 
Mary Adams 
Jeanne Byrne, Alternate 

Water Supply Planning  Gary Hoffman – Chair 
Jeanne Byrne 
George Riley 
Alvin Edwards, Alternate 

OUTSIDE AGENCIES/LIAISONS 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster George Riley, Representative 

Jeanne Byrne, Alternate 
Monterey County Special Districts’ 
Association 

Alvin Edwards Representative 
George Riley, Alternate  

Policy Advisory Committee (Board Chair serves as Chair), Chair 
Alvin Edwards, Alternate 

Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project 
Governance Committee 

Molly Evans, Representative 
Jeanne Byrne, Alternate 

Association of California Water 
Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Agency 

Gary Hoffman, Representative 

EXHIBIT 2-A 

11

http://www.mpwmd.net/


12



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3. CONSIDER EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS TO CONTRACT WITH 

UNDERWRITER FOR MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER SUPPLY PROJECT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   Yes 
 

From: David J. Stoldt, Program/  Cal-Am Desal Project 
 General Manager Line Item No.:       1-9-1 
 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  Not to exceed $104,000  
 

General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  On September 13, 2018 the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) issued 
its decision regarding construction of the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project.  The decision 
stated: 
 

“Financing elements specifically authorized in this decision include: 1) the construction 
funding charge (also referred to as “Surcharge 2”) with specific requirements as to review 
for reasonableness and prudency as set forth below; 2) SRF debt; 3) public agency 
contribution or securitized debt (referred to as Securitization here and in the 
Comprehensive Settlement); and 4) equity.” (emphasis added) 

 
The ordering language in the decision went on to say: 
 

“24. California-American Water Company shall file an application with the Commission 
requesting issuance of a financing order to allow for the securitization financing option 
consistent with this decision.” 

  
The decision’s Conclusions of Law state: 
 

“18. The Commission should, as authorized by Senate Bill (SB) 936, Chapter 482, issue 
financing orders to facilitate the recovery, financing, or refinancing of water supply costs, 
defined to mean reasonable and necessary costs incurred or expected to be incurred by a 
qualifying water utility. The Commission should find that the bonds would provide 
savings to water customers on the Monterey Peninsula, which will allow the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District to issue water rate relief bonds. Savings from these 
bonds should result from the lower interest rates that would apply to this financing 
compared to market-rate financing.” 

  
The District would contract with the underwriter for the eventual bond issue, but pay for services 
required during the 12 months expected to structure the financing and achieve a financing order 

13



on a current basis, because the date of the issuance of bonds is unknown and could be imperiled 
by lawsuits. If the bonds are never issued, then the District will have paid from budgeted funds 
under project 1-9-1.  The District entered into a similar contract with the same firm in 2013 in 
order to advance the financing concept further and to provide expert testimony during the 
December 2013 hearings.  
 
The contract will not start until the District and Cal-Am meet and provide additional clarity on the 
timeline to apply for a Financing Order at the CPUC.  The underwriter will begin to work with the 
District, District’s Bond Counsel, the rating agencies, and Cal-Am to develop a secure credit and 
to ensure issuance of the Financing Order.  The contract also provides for services on other 
potential District financings.  If such additional advice happens during the period during which the 
securitization and the Financing Order are developed such additional services are included in the 
estimated $80,000.  If the securitization does not get initiated or is stalled or suspended, then other 
additional services are capped at $24,000.  Hence, there is a possibility that such services become 
“de-linked” so the maximum potential budget is $104,000 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The General Manager recommends that the Board of Directors approve 
the hiring of Raymond James Associates to provide lead underwriting services for the Water Rate 
Relief Bonds, with near-term services not to exceed $104,000 over the 12-16 months required to 
develop the securitization.  
 
EXHIBIT 
3-A Draft Underwriting Agreement 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\03\Item-3.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



DRAFT 

Page 1 of 8 

EXHIBIT 3-A 
 

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT AND 
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is by and between the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District (“Client”) and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 
(“Underwriter”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Client wishes to avail itself of the services of Underwriter with 
respect to the Client’s anticipated Water Rate Relief Revenue Bonds (the “Bonds”) to fund 
its public contribution (the “Financing”) to the California American Water Company’s 
(“Cal Am”) proposed Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project (the “Cal Am Project”); 
and, whereas the Client may wish to avail itself of the services of the Underwriter with 
respect to other potential bond financings; and Underwriter, through its Public Finance 
Department, is engaged in the business of providing, and is authorized under applicable 
Federal and State statutes to provide, such bond underwriting services; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed by all parties signing this Agreement that: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES OF RAYMOND JAMES  
 

1) Underwriter, in cooperation with the District’s bond counsel, will: 
 
• Advise and consult with the Client on strategic, tactical and finance matters 

relating to the Project including, but not limited to: taxable and tax exempt 
issues; fixed rate and variable rate issues; current and forecasted interest rates; 
bond market conditions and other capital market developments; new and 
innovative methods of finance; and any other matters as reasonably requested 
by the Client to enable the Client to make fully informed decisions pertaining 
to the size, timing, sources, and related issues for funding of the Project. 

 
• Assist the Client in making presentations concerning the Project to the various 

internal and external groups whose approval will be required. Support shall 
include, but is not limited to creation and presentation, as requested, of 
appropriate presentation materials and assistance to the Client in negotiating 
and structuring said presentation 
 
o Provide to the Client (and periodically update as requested) one or more 

analytic computer models showing key financial assumption and alternative 
financing mixes, including alternatives that detail flexible and cost-effective 
combinations of funding mechanisms. 

15



DRAFT 

Page 2 of 8 

 
o Assist the Client in obtaining a private rating indication for the Bonds to 

determine the cost-effectiveness of the Bonds. 
 

• Assist in the preparation of a Public Offering Memorandum, Private Placement 
Memorandum or other applicable information and offering material (the 
“Memorandum”).  Responsibility for the contents of such Memorandum shall 
be solely that of Client and any issuer of the Bonds. 

 
o Review all related Bond documents. 

 
o Manage, structure, arrange for and participate in all discussions with 

nationally recognized rating agencies for obtaining ratings on the Bonds, if 
appropriate. 

 
o Assist in presenting the Bonds to potential bond insurers 

 
• Assist in presentations to potential issuers.  
 
• Engage in the marketing and underwriting of the Bonds. 
 

o Submit a bond purchase agreement for the purchase of the Bonds. 
  

 
2) Any services in connection with either financing noted above with respect to 

reinvestment of proceeds or swaps or derivative products shall not be included 
within the scope of this Agreement and shall be governed by a separate Agreement.  
 

II. UNDERTAKINGS AND REPRESENTATIONS BY THE CLIENT 
 

1) The Client shall make available to Underwriter financial and other data and 
information concerning the Client and the Project.  Client management and staff 
shall cooperate with the Underwriter in collecting and assembling the 
documentation essential to its financing activities and disclosure responsibilities. 

 
2) As relevant, the Client shall work with legal counsel who shall issue an approving 

legal opinion to accompany the issuance of any debt, and appropriate legal counsel 
with respect to any loans.  The Client shall also retain counsel to advise it as to the 
adequacy of disclosure and to assist in the preparation of any offering documents, 
as relevant, and to assist in all matters related to any proposed debt. 
 

3) With respect to the Cal Am Project and the Bonds, in order that Client and the 
Underwriter can best coordinate efforts to effect a financing satisfactory to Client, 
Client grants the Underwriter sole and exclusive right and authority to perform the 
services described herein and agrees that it will not initiate or participate in any 
discussions relating to the financing with any person other than Raymond James.  

16



DRAFT 

Page 3 of 8 

It is expressly understood that the Client may engage the services of other 
underwriters with respect to other bond financings. 
 

4) The Client understands that the consummation of the Bonds will be based upon, 
among other things, the truth, accuracy and completeness of the information 
included in the Memorandum or otherwise provided to the Underwriter.  The Client 
agrees that all such information will be true, correct and complete, and that it will 
update such information during the course of the underwriting, or placement, as 
appropriate, and that all projections provided to the Underwriter will have been 
prepared in good faith and based upon reasonable assumptions.  The Client 
acknowledges and agrees that the Underwriter will rely upon such information and 
projections without independent verification.  Any bond purchase or placement 
agreement entered into between the Underwriter and the Client will, to the extent 
permitted by law, contain customary indemnification and contribution provisions 
to indemnify the Underwriter and its affiliates and their officers, directors, 
employees and agents and any person controlling any of the foregoing. 
 

III. PAYMENT TO RAYMOND JAMES  
 

1) For performance of the services related to the Cal-Am Project enumerated in Article 
I, the Client will compensate the Underwriter with:  1) a quarterly retainer of 
$10,000 payable on the Start Date and quarterly thereafter through the issuance of 
a Financing Order upon receipt of an invoice, and 2) upon issuance of a Financing 
Order by the Public Utilities Commission of the State of California, payment of 
$40,000 shall be made upon receipt of an invoice.  The Start Date shall be the date 
the financing for the Cal Am Project is authorized to proceed, as determined by the 
Client in consultation with Cal Am.  Payment and services provided hereunder may 
be suspended in the event the Cal Am project is stalled, delayed, or cancelled.  
Client will notify Underwriter of such suspension. 
 
For performance of the services related to other bond financings, Client will 
compensate the Underwriter within the quarterly retainer described above, or in the 
event services and payment for underwriting services for the Cal Am Project have 
not been initiated or have been suspended, then at the rate of $300 per hour, not to 
exceed 80 hours without written authorization by the Client.  
 
Client may also suspend services and payment in the event Robert Larkins leaves 
the employment of the Underwriter. 
 

2) As compensation for the Underwriter’s services hereunder, Client will pay an 
underwriting fee equal as follows: 

$6/$1,000 bond, assuming a minimum rating of BBB-, but less than the A 
category; 
$5/$1,000 bond if A category; and 
$4/$1,000 bond if AA category or better, 
 

17



DRAFT 

Page 4 of 8 

each exclusive of the Underwriter’s out-of-pocket expenses, assuming the Client 
retains separate disclosure counsel, and assuming a term not to exceed 30 years. 
 

3) The Client and the Underwriter expressly agree that the Underwriter’s services will 
be fully performed and such underwriting fee will be due and payable only upon 
issuance of the Bonds, whether or not the issuance of the Bonds was arranged or 
underwritten by the Underwriter or such issuance occurs subsequent to the 
expiration of this Agreement.   
 

4) The Client agrees to pay the Underwriter’s out-of-pocket expenses in connection 
with any services provide hereunder, which shall include, but not be limited to, 
travel, delivery and similar charges, and fees and expenses of the Underwriter’s 
legal counsel.  
 

IV. PAYMENT OF COSTS OF ISSUANCE 
 

Regardless of the plan of financing selected, the Client shall be responsible for payment of 
all the costs of issuing the Bonds or other debt instruments and completing a financing, 
including but not limited to: 

 
a) Printing and distribution of any offering documents (as relevant); 
b) Other printing costs; 
c) Counsel fees; 
d) Financial advisory fees 
e) Auditor fees; 
f) Feasibility Consultant fees; 
g) Rating Agency fees; 
h) Bond Trustee fees; 
i) Letter of Credit fees;  
j) Bank fees and expenses as required (for bank loans or direct purchase 

arrangements); and 
k) Bond insurance premiums, if any. 

 
V.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
1) Client acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement does not constitute a guarantee 

by the Underwriter to underwrite or place any bonds or other financing.  It is 
understood that the Underwriter’s obligations under this agreement are to use 
reasonable efforts throughout the term of this agreement to perform the services 
described herein.  The Client acknowledges and agrees that the Underwriter is being 
retained to act solely as underwriter for the Bonds, and not as an agent or advisor.  
This agreement is not intended to confer rights or benefits on any member, affiliate, 
shareholder or creditor of Client or any other person or entity or to provide Client 
or any other person with any assurances that the transaction will be consummated.  
Underwriter shall act as an independent contractor under this Agreement, and not 
in any other capacity, including as a fiduciary.  Client acknowledges and agrees 

18



DRAFT 

Page 5 of 8 

that: (i) the transaction contemplated by this Agreement is an arm’s length, 
commercial transaction between Client and the Underwriter in which Underwriter 
is acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a municipal advisor, financial 
advisor or fiduciary to the Client; (ii) Underwriter has not assumed any advisory or 
fiduciary responsibility to the Client with respect to the transaction contemplated 
hereby and the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto 
(irrespective of whether the Underwriter has provided other services or is currently 
providing other services to the Client on other matters); (iii) the only obligations 
Underwriter has to the Client with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby 
expressly are set forth in this Agreement; and (iv) the Client has consulted its own 
legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it 
has deemed appropriate.  
 

2) The Underwriter will enter into a definitive agreement to underwrite or place bonds 
if and only if the security, structure, disclosure and other aspects of the issue are 
satisfactory in all respects to the Underwriter.  Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing, the approval of the Underwriter’s management and its appropriate 
internal credit committee(s), based upon independent internal credit review and 
analysis of the Bonds, will be required for the Underwriter to serve as underwriter 
or placement agent for the bonds. Client acknowledges and agrees that if either the 
Underwriter’s management or the Underwriter’s internal credit committee does not 
approve such underwriting or private placement, the Underwriter’s obligations 
under this agreement will terminate immediately, with no liability to the 
Underwriter.  Upon such termination Client shall be obligated to pay any 
unreimbursed out of pocket expenses described above. 
 

3) Client should be aware that the Underwriter or its affiliates may have trading and 
other business relationships with public agencies within Cal Am’s Monterey 
Service District, other participants in the proposed transaction, including financial 
services firms engaged by Cal Am, as well as potential purchasers of the Bonds.  
These relationships include, but may not be limited to, trading lines, frequent 
purchases and sales of securities and other engagements through which the 
Underwriter may have, among other things, an economic interest. .  In addition, you 
should be aware that the primary role of an underwriter is to purchase, or arrange 
for the placement of, securities in an arm’s-length commercial transaction between 
the issuer and the underwriter and that the Underwriter has financial and other 
interests that differ from those of the issuer.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Underwriter will not receive any compensation with respect to the Bonds other than 
as disclosed above or otherwise disclosed to Client.  The Underwriter is involved 
in a wide range of activities from which conflicting interests or duties may arise.  
Information which is held elsewhere within the Underwriter, but of which none of 
the Underwriter’s personnel involved in the proposed transaction actually has 
knowledge, will not for any purpose be taken into account in determining 
Underwriter’s responsibilities to the Client. 

4) Both parties acknowledge and agree that the Underwriter is not serving as a 
financial advisor, municipal advisor or other fiduciary to the Client, nor is the 

19



DRAFT 

Page 6 of 8 

Underwriter serving as a fiduciary of any other party to the transaction.  The 
Underwriter is not providing legal or accounting advice. Client also acknowledges 
that Susan N. Story, a Director of the Underwriter, is President and Chief Executive 
Officer of American Water Works Company, Inc., parent of Cal Am. 

5) Either Client or the Underwriter may terminate this agreement in its sole discretion 
upon 30 days’ written notice without liability to the other except that the 
Underwriter shall be entitled to the prompt payment of any unreimbursed out-of-
pocket expenses described above, and Client shall remain obligated to the 
Underwriter as provided in Article III, above.  Client’s indemnification obligation 
shall survive any termination of this agreement. 

6) No opinion or advice of the Underwriter shall be reproduced, disseminated, quoted 
or referred to at any time without the prior written consent of the Underwriter.  
Upon the completion of the financing, the Underwriter will be entitled to advertise 
the transaction in publications and at times selected by it at its own expense. 

7) It is understood that any decision to enter into any Financing and acceptance of the 
terms and conditions of any Financing is the sole responsibility of the Client. 

8) The Client hereby covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless 
the Underwriter against any and all losses, claims, demands, damages or liabilities 
of any  kind whatsoever, arising from or out of the acts, omissions or doings of the 
Client, its representatives, agents or employees,  or in any way relating to the 
Financing or other matter within the purview of this Agreement, whether pursuant 
to statute or at common law or otherwise (hereinafter, “Claims”), and will 
reimburse the Underwriter for any legal or other expense reasonably incurred by it 
in connection with investigating or defending any such Claims or actions or 
proceedings arising from such Claims, whether or not resulting in any liability. 

9) The term of this Agreement shall be for three years from the date shown in the 
signature block, below. 

10) This Agreement embodies all the terms, agreements, conditions and rights 
contemplated and negotiated by Client and the Underwriter, and supersedes any 
and all discussions and understandings, written or oral, between the Client and the 
Underwriter regarding the subject matter hereof.  Any modifications and/or 
amendments must be made in writing and signed by both parties. 

11) This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California without reference to any conflicts of law provisions that 
would require application of the law of a different jurisdiction.  

12) Any dispute arising out of this Agreement or the performance hereof shall be 
resolved in binding arbitration before the American Arbitration Association, 
pursuant to its commercial arbitration rules.  Each party, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, knowingly, voluntarily and intentionally waives its right to a jury 

20



DRAFT 

Page 7 of 8 

trial in any action or other legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this 
agreement or the performance hereof. 
 

VI. INSURANCE 
 
1) Underwriter shall obtain and keep insurance policies in full force and effect for the 

following form of coverage: 
 

a. Automobile liability including property damage and bodily injury with a 
combined single limit of $300,000. 

b. Commercial General Liability (CGL) with a combined single limit of 
$1,000,000. 

c. Consultant shall add to his/her Commercial General Liability insurance policy 
a severability or interest clause or such similar wording if his/her policy does 
not automatically have this clause already written into it.  Such language shall 
be similar to: “The insurance afforded applies separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, including claims made or suits brought 
by any person any other such person or organization.” 
 

2) Underwriter shall provide photocopies of its current Automobile insurance policy 
or policies including endorsements thereto, or current certificates of insurance in 
lieu thereof, to the Client. 

 
3) Underwriter shall require any subcontractor to provide evidence of the same 

insurance coverages specified in Article VI paragraph 1. 
 
4) Underwriter shall provide notice to the Client of any non-payment cancellation in 

insurance coverage where the Client has been named as additional insured, such 
notice to be delivered to the Client at least ten (10) days before the effective date of 
such non-payment cancellation of insurance. 

 
5) Evidence acceptable to the Client that Underwriter has complied with the 

provisions of this Article VI shall be provided to the Client, prior to commencement 
of work under this Agreement. 

 
6) All policies carried by the Underwriter, under which the Client is named additional 

insured, shall provide primary coverage instead of any and all other policies that 
may be in force.  The Client shall not be responsible for any premium due for the 
insurance coverages specified in this Agreement. 

  

21



DRAFT 

Page 8 of 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE DULY CAUSED THIS 
AGREEMENT to be signed and sealed by their respective authorized officers this _____ 
day of ________________, 2019. 
 
 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District    
 
 
By: ____________________________________  
Name:   
Title:   
 
 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 
 
By: ___________________________ 
Name:   
Title:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\03\Item-3-Exh-A.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



 
 

 
SUMMARY:  Permanent water treatment facilities at MPWMD’s Aquifer Storage and Recovery 
(ASR) Santa Margarita site located at 1910 General Jim Moore Boulevard must be constructed.  
Improvements to the water treatment facilities analyzed in the MPWMD ASR Project 
Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment (ASR EIR/EA) are required to 
accommodate production from Cal-Am’s Seaside Middle School ASR site.  The improvements 
include increased capacity, a second building, and an exterior injection manifold. 
 
Staff proposes to enter into a contract with Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. (DD&A) to assist with 
the preparation of an Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA for the proposed improvements to the Santa 
Margarita site water treatment facilities (Project).  Based on a review of the preliminary plans, the 
Project is not expected to create new significant environmental impacts or substantially increase 
the severity of previously identified significant impacts.   

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to 
contract with DD&A for preparation of an Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA for the amount of 
$19,831 with a 20% contingency, a total authorization not-to-exceed (NTE) $23,797.   
 
BACKGROUND:  Water recovered, also referred to as water produced, from ASR wells must be 
treated prior to distribution.  The ASR EIR/EA, adopted August 22, 2006, evaluated the 
environmental impact for the Phase 1 ASR Project located at MPWMD’s Santa Margarita site.  
The ASR EIR/EA evaluated Water Treatment Following Extraction for water recovered from the 
Santa Margarita site.  Mitigation measures to reduce the significant impacts to less-than-significant 
level were adopted.   
 
Addendum 1 to the ASR EIR/EA, adopted April 23, 2012, evaluated environmental impact for the 
Phase 2 ASR Project located at Cal-Am’s Seaside Middle School site.  Water treatment equipment 
at that site was disallowed by the School Board and was not environmentally evaluated.  Recovered 

ITEM:  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. CONSIDER ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR AN ADDENDUM TO 

THE MPWMD AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   Yes 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ Water Supply Projects 
 General Manager Line Item: 35-04-786004 
 
Prepared By: Maureen Hamilton Cost Estimate: $23,797 
 
General Counsel  Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee has not reviewed this item 
due to cancellation of the January 2019 meeting. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

23



 
 

water from the Seaside Middle School site will be conveyed using existing transmission to the 
Santa Margarita site for treatment. 
 
Cal-Am will construct two additional ASR wells at the planned Fitch Park site.  Although the Fitch 
Park ASR facility will include water treatment, several project conditions might require treatment 
of additional recovered water at the Santa Margarita site.  Conditions include planned or 
emergency shutdowns of that treatment equipment, the potential for additional ASR or production 
wells which may be intertied to the northern transmission line, and delays in Fitch Park facilities 
completion.  The existing northern transmission line is sized to accommodate 12.9 MGD.  Thus, 
the environmental review will evaluate increased capacity to accommodate water produced from 
three sites, or 12.9 MGD.   
 
Other modifications to the original ASR EIR that will be evaluated include: 

• a new building to house treatment works1, 
• a delivery system, and 
• a water treatment manifold constructed outside and located in between the buildings. 

 
Based on a review of the proposed changes, the preliminary determination is that an Addendum 
would be appropriate because the Project is not expected to create new significant environmental 
impacts or substantially increase the severity of previously identified significant impacts.  The 
Addendum sections and analysis will document the preliminary determination per CEQA 
Guidelines sections 15162 and 15164.   
 
DD&A has extensive experience providing similar services in connection with a number of 
infrastructure related projects. DD&A prepared the Santa Margarita Backflush Basin Expansion 
Addendum to the ASR EIR/EA, and the Pure Water Monterey/Groundwater Replenishment 
Project Environmental Impact Report located on the same Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN).  The 
parcel has unique and complex requirements due to its location on a Munitions Response Area and 
as part of the Installation-Wide Multispecies Habitat Management Plan for Former Fort Ord, 
California.  As a result, DD&A is uniquely qualified to assist MPWMD with the preparation of an 
Addendum for the proposed Project.  The proposal is attached as Exhibit 4-A. 
 
A twenty percent contingency, to be expended upon written authorization by staff, is requested 
due to the strict timeline and likelihood of changes at this stage of the design.   
 
EXHIBIT   
4-A Proposal for Environmental Services for Aquifer Storage and Recovery CEQA Addendum 

dated January 9, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\04\Item-4.docx 

                                                 
1 The new building will be similar in size and architecture to the existing building on-site.  Chemicals stored inside 
the building will be below-grade with double containment. 

24



Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc. 
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING  

San Jose  Monterey  Santa Barbara 
947 Cass Street, Monterey, CA  93940, Phone (831) 373-4341, Fax (831) 373-1417 

1 

Environmental Services 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Aquifer Storage and Recovery CEQA Addendum 

January 9, 2019 

Background/Project Understanding 

The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD or District) has requested that Denise Duffy 
& Associates (DD&A) prepare a CEQA addendum to the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project (ASR) 
Envriomnetal Impact Report/Envriomental Assessment (EIR/EA) for the revision to a component of the 
ASR Project. 

The proposed revision to the ASR Project involves: 

 The construction of a new treatment building and above-grade treatment works. The proposed
building will be located on the existing site and be esthetically consistent with existing facilities;

 Increased disinfection capacity to accommodate production from existing facilities located at the
Seaside Middle School site and potential future facilities; and

 The potential inclusion of an additional water supply treatment if required in the future.

Together these changes comprise the Proposed Project. 

Previous Environmental Documentation 

Pursuant   to   the   California   Environmental   Quality Act, Public Resources   Code Sections 21000 et seq. 
(“CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Sections 15000 et seq.  
(“CEQA Guidelines”), the District has considered the following documents: 

 Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR), certified by the District in August 2006 for the Seaside
Groundwater Basin (“SGB”) Aquifer Storage and Recovery (“ASR”) Project (or “ASR Project”);

 Addendum No. 1 to the ASR EIR/EA addressing the full implementation of Phase 2 ASR, dated April
2012;

 Addendum No. 2 to the ASR EIR/EA addressing the Hilby Avenue Pump Station, dated June 2016;
 Addendum No. 3 to the ASR EIR/EA addressing the Monterey Pipeline, dated February 2017;
 Addendum No. 4 to the ASR EIR/EA addressing the Backflush Basin Expansion Project, dated July

2018; and

EXHIBIT 4-A 25



DD&A Scope and Budget 
MPWMD ASR CEQA Addendum    
January 9, 2018 

 

 
2 

 Additional documentation for background information includes the Final PWM/GWR EIR certified 
October 2015 and the Final Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project EIR/EIS, April 2018.  

Based on a review of the preliminary plans, an addendum would be appropriate because the proposed project 
is not expected to create new significant environmental impacts or substantially increase the severity of 
previously identified significant impacts per CEQA Guidelines sections 15162 and 15164.  The following 
presents DD&A’s proposed scope of work for preparation of the Addendum.  

Scope of Services 

The following provides a scope of services and budget based on the preliminary project information provided 
by the District (December 2018) and information from conversations with the District.  

Task 1.  Project Initiation/Site Visit/Initial Checklist 

DD&A will initiate the Addendum process by completing the following tasks necessary for ultimate preparation 
of a thorough and defensible addendum: 

 DD&A will communicate with District staff to confirm project details and schedule needs, and to 
gather and review available information; 

 DD&A staff will conduct one site visit and photograph existing conditions; 
 DD&A will conduct an assessment of the existing relevant background reports. DD&A will collect 

data required to supplement the existing analysis consistent with CEQA;  
 DD&A will review and edit the MPWMD provided project description for the Addendum;  
 DD&A will generate a basic site plan for use in the project description of the Addendum; and 
 DD&A will conduct initial evaluation by reviewing applicable CEQA regulations, existing CEQA 

documentation prepared for the project, and prepare an Initial Study checklist.   

The Addendum will concisely describe and graphically depict the relevant site-specific features of the project. 

Task 2.  Prepare Administrative Draft Addendum 

An Administrative Draft Addendum will be prepared in compliance with Section 15164 of the CEQA 
Guidelines to clearly and concisely describe the changes due to the proposed project.   The Addendum will 
include a description of the changes to the project and itemize revisions to the projects compared to how they 
are described in the base environmental documentation. The administrative draft will be submitted in electronic 
form (in MS Word and PDF via email) to the District for review and comment. The Addendum will clearly and 

EXHIBIT 4-A 26



DD&A Scope and Budget 
MPWMD ASR CEQA Addendum    
January 9, 2018 

 

 
3 

concisely describe the reasons for the Addendum determination.  The following sections and analysis in the 
addendum will document the preliminary determination per CEQA Guidelines sections 15162 and 151641.   

Sections of the Addendum may include the following: 

 Introduction 
 Addendum Overview 
 Background on the Project 
 Addendum Requirements 
 Review of existing CEQA documentation 

 Description of the Project 
 Location 
 Description of construction and operational characteristics 
 Comparison of Project to facilities evaluated in the existing CEQA documentation 

 Impacts and Mitigation of the Project* (See Topical Analysis below) 
 Comparison to the Conditions Listed in CEQA Guidelines Related to Addendum Preparation 

 Changes to the Project Considered Not Substantial 
 No New Information Leading to Environmental Effects 
 No Change in Project Circumstances 

 Conclusions 
 References/Acronyms/Appendices 

*Topical Analysis: The addendum will include the following brief analyses, at a minimum:  

Air Quality/Greenhouse Gasses. The Addendum will evaluate any potential changes to the previous impact 
analysis for air quality and greenhouse gasses based on the proposed increase in construction area.  The 
environmental documentation previously prepared for the project concluded that project and cumulative air 
quality impacts are considered to be less-than-significant.  No change in the conclusions from the previous 
assessment is anticipated. 

Biological Resources.  The Addendum will evaluate whether the proposed revised construction area would 
result in any additional biological impacts. DD&A will review the existing biological reports for the site and 
provide updated technical documentation related to biological resources as needed. Based upon a preliminary 
review of relevant project documentation, no new significant impacts or a worsening of severity of significant 
impact is anticipated.        

                                                      

1 Note: As noted above, a preliminary determination has been made that use of an addendum would be appropriate under CEQA and 
the proposed project would not create new significant environmental impacts or substantially increase the severity of previously 
identified significant impacts.   

EXHIBIT 4-A 27



DD&A Scope and Budget 
MPWMD ASR CEQA Addendum    
January 9, 2018 

 

 
4 

Cultural Resources.  The Addendum will also evaluate potential impacts to cultural resources. More 
specifically, the Addendum will describe how the impacts on cultural resources will not be increased in severity 
when compared to the impacts identified in the previous environmental documentation. 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials. The Addendum will identify potential hazards that exist on the site 
including those specific to the Former Fort Ord, such as the potential for unexploded ordinances (UXO) and 
soil contamination. This section will describe local protections that apply to the site and discuss the project’s 
ability to comply with applicable regulations.  

Hydrology and Water Quality. The Addendum will evaluate hydrology and water quality effects of the 
project. The Addendum will also describe the proposed storm water management system and identify the 
potential drainage and water quality impacts from the project. This section will identify local and regional 
programs for maintenance of water quality and the project’s adherence to these programs. 

Land Use and Planning. The Addendum will describe the existing land uses in the project area compared to 
the base environmental documentation and address potential land use effects.   

Noise.  The Addendum will describe the noise impacts on sensitive receptors when compared to the impacts 
identified in the previous environmental documentation and review applicable mitigation. Based upon a 
preliminary review of relevant project documentation, no new significant impacts or a worsening of severity of 
significant impact is anticipated.        

Traffic.  The Addendum will evaluate any potential changes to construction traffic based on the proposed 
revised construction area. The environmental documentation previously prepared for the project concluded 
that project and cumulative traffic impacts are considered to be less-than-significant. It is assumed that only 
minor traffic modifications would be needed for the proposed project.  

Topic by Topic Discussion.  Other topics, including geotechnical, geology, hazards/hazardous materials, 
hydrology and water quality, population/housing, public services and recreation, and utilities and service 
systems will be briefly addressed to describe how the revised project will not create any new impacts and will 
not increase the severity of those impacts previously identified. No assessment of agricultural resources is 
needed. 

The Administrative Draft Addendum will be transmitted digitally for MPWMD staff review.   

Task 3.  Prepare Screencheck Draft and Draft Addendum 

Based upon review comments from District staff, DD&A will prepare an Administrative Draft followed by a 
Screencheck Draft Addendum for final review by MPWMD staff.   This scope of work assumes DD&A will 
receive two sets of comments from MPWMD on the each of the above referenced documents.  The Addendum 
will be prepared pursuant to the California CEQA Guidelines Section 15164, to describe the modifications to 
the Project and to evaluate whether the modifications present any new significant impacts not identified in the 
previously certified documentation or any increase in severity in any previously identified significant impacts.  

EXHIBIT 4-A 28



DD&A Scope and Budget 
MPWMD ASR CEQA Addendum    
January 9, 2018 

 

 
5 

Task 4.  Prepare Final Addendum 

Based upon comments on the Draft Addendum, DD&A will revise a Final Addendum to accompany the final 
staff report.  

Task 5.  Prepare CEQA Findings, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; Review 
Staff Report, Draft, and Final Resolution 

In preparation for the MPWMD Board action on the Addendum and project approval, DD&A will prepare 
CEQA-required findings related to the conclusions of the Addendum. DD&A will also assist with review and 
preparation of a staff report and draft Board Resolution. It is assumed that the proposed project will not result 
in amendments to the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP). This scope does not include an 
update to the MMRP. Based upon comments on the CEQA findings, DD&A will revise and prepared the final 
document to accompany the staff report. 

Task 6.  Prepare Notices  

After project approval, DD&A will prepare draft and final notices, as needed, related to the project approval. 
DD&A will file notices with proper documentation of previous fee payment to the Monterey County Clerk, 
Office of Planning and Research (OPR), or others, if requested.2 

Task 7.  Meetings and Conference Calls 

This task includes attendance/involvement in meetings and conference calls with the involved agencies and 
MPWMD.  The budget assumes attendance by the Project Manager at up to one public hearing.  In addition, 
DD&A’s Project Manager will coordinate meeting and conference call scheduling and prepare and distribute 
meeting agendas and summaries of key discussion points, if requested. 

Task 8.  Project Management 

This task consists of project management and communication responsibilities, including correspondence, 
schedule/budget tracking, project oversight, and document production.  This task also includes coordination 
with MPWMD and others during preparation of the Addendum.   

Schedule 

Assuming there are no changes to the proposed project described above, work performed under this scope of 
services will be completed within sixty (60) days of authorization by the District.  

 

                                                      

2 Filing a Notice of Determination is optional; thus DD&A would do this task only after confirmation by the MPWMD.  

EXHIBIT 4-A 29



DD&A Scope and Budget 
MPWMD ASR CEQA Addendum    
January 9, 2018 

 

 
6 

Budget  

 

 NOTES: 

1.  Approach. This budget estimate is based on the current understanding of approach per consultation with District.  

2.  Responding to agency comments.  This budget estimate assumes an average number and length of comments from the reviewers with no new 
technical analysis.  DD&A reserves the right to review the comments and adjust the estimated budget to accommodate responding to excessive 
comments.  Specifically, responding to more than an average number of comments revising or conducting new analysis and/or excessively complex 
comments may require an amendment to the contract. 

3. Direct Costs.  Estimate does not include any filing fee for Notice of Determination or photocopying costs. Unless otherwise noted or requested, 
DD&A assumes that all deliverables would be submitted electronically (in PDF format, or if needed, Microsoft Word) only.     

4. New technical studies.  This task assumes assessment of the following issue areas based upon available information and assumes no new technical 
studies are needed: aesthetics/visual resources (visual simulations), air quality, biological resources, coastal act consistency, cultural resources, energy, 
geotechnical and geologic hazards, hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, noise, traffic and transportation, and utilities/water supply.    

 

Task # Task Description D
en

is
e 

D
uf

fy
, 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l

D
ia

na
 S

ta
in

es
, 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
 

M
an

ag
er

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 

Pl
an

ne
r/

Sc
ie

nt
is

t

G
ra

ph
ic

s/
G

IS

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

Total
Rate $225 $119 $108 $103 $63 

1 Project Initiation/Site Visit 1 4 4 2 $1,259
2 Prepare Administrative Draft Addendum 2 30 20 4 3 $6,781
3 Prepare Draft Addendum 2 24 12 2 2 $4,934
4 Prepare Final Addendum 2 4 4 3 1 $1,730

5
Prepare Draft and Final Resolution/CEQA 
Findings/MMRP

2 12 2 1 $2,157

6 Prepare Notices 1 3 4 $695
7 Meetings and Conference Calls 2 4 2 $1,142
8 Project Management 2 3 2 $933

11 74 47 9 13
$200

$2,475 $8,806 $5,076 $927 $819 $19,831

$19,831
*Please note that all deliverables will be provided electronically.

Denise Duffy & Associates, Inc.
Budget Estimate for the 

CEQA Addendum for ASR Addendum No. 5

Total Budget

Expenses*
TOTAL

Total DD&A hours by person

EXHIBIT 4-A 30



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF TWO TEMPORARY FIELD STAFF POSITIONS 

AND SUPPLIES FUNDED THROUGH A SECOND INTERAGENCY 
CONTRACT BETWEEN MPWMD AND NMFS TO PROVIDE FOR AN 
ADDITONAL COOPERATIVE RESEARCH AND MONITORING PROJECT 

 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   No 
   
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/  
 General Manager Line Item No.:    
   
Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:   Up to $39,198 

(reimbursable) 
 
General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee did not review this item due 
to cancellation of the January 2019 committee meeting. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  In 2017 and 2018, the District entered into an interagency contract with National 
Oceanographic and Atmospheric Agency’s (NOAA) National Marine Fisheries Service-Southwest 
Fisheries Science Center (NMFS-SWFSC) for the purposes of conducting juvenile steelhead 
population studies. As part of a second new three-year contract, for fiscal year 2018-2019,   
MPWMD will provide local employees to support up to two positions. The positions will be filled 
at one of five levels, depending on increasing skill level, possession of specific certifiable skills in 
electrofishing, surgical fish tagging, and red-legged frog identification and avoidance. Field work 
will be conducted for five months from January through May for a total of 1,360 combined hours.   
 
The contract is limited to $39,198 per year.  The funding for this contract comes from California 
American Water as a requirement of Water Rights Order 2016-0016. This field work will focus on 
evaluating steelhead survival through Los Padres Reservoir and over the spillway and through the 
new Behavioral Guidance System of Los Padres Dam (LPD).  The data collected will guide future 
steelhead management by the NMFS and California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and is 
required information needed in future decisions on what to do with LPD. 
 
Authorization is requested to hire a combination of limited-term Water Resources Assistants, 
Fisheries Aides, Fish Rescue Crew Leader, Fisheries Technician, Field Biology Assistant not to 
exceed the allocated contract amount for the year, and to purchase a boat, motor, and trailer and 
miscellaneous supplies for the project.  The District is also loaning its existing 5’ Screw Trap to 
the project. These positions would prevent the accrual of excessive compensatory time and 
overtime for higher level regular full-time positions.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board approve two temporary field staff 
positions for cooperative research and monitoring projects with the NOAA/NMFS for fiscal year 

31



2018-2019.  This is a fully reimbursed project so the impact to the District will be zero. This project 
was not part of the FY 2018-2019 Budget so it will be included in the District’s mid-year budget 
amendment.  
 
IMPACTS TO STAFF/RESOURCES:  The total cost of the limited-term staffing described 
above would not exceed the interagency contract amount.  MPWMD will provide the 
administrative overhead for onboarding, and payroll administration.  The employees will not use 
the District’s vehicles.  

EXHIBIT 
None 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\05\Item-5.docx 

32



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

6. CONFIRM APPOINTMENTS TO ORDINANCE NO. 152 OVERSIGHT PANEL 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019  Budgeted:    N/A 
 
From: David Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation: N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Ordinance No. 152 created a nine member “Ordinance 152 Citizen’s Oversight 
Panel” as an advisory group to the Board of Directors on expenditures from the Connection Charge 
adopted in June 2012.   Each Director selects an appointee to the Panel for a two-year term.  Shown 
below are the appointees selected by recently-elected Directors Edwards, Riley and Hoffmann, 
and Director Evans’ appointee who replaces a committee member that resigned.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Ratify the appointment of members to the Ordinance No. 152 
Oversight Panel for a two-year term ending January 1, 2021, or the date the appointing Director 
vacates office as a member of the MPWMD Board of Directors, whichever shall occur first. 
 
 

Directors’ Appointees to Ordinance No. 152 Oversight Panel 
Presented for Confirmation on 1/23/2019 

Panel Member Appointed by 

Susan Schiavone Alvin Edwards, Division 1 

Jason Campbell George Riley, Division 2 

John Tilley Gary Hoffmann, Division 5 

Patie McCracken Molly Evans, Division 3 

 
EXHIBIT 
None 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\06\Item-6.docx 

33



34



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
7. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ANNUAL UPDATE ON INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  There was no Administrative Committee in January 2019. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  The State of California Government Code requires the District Board to annually 
review and approve the District Investment Policy. The District’s current investment policy, 
included as Exhibit 7-A, was adopted by the Board on September 20, 1997 and has been 
reviewed and approved annually by the Board.  The policy provides guidance for the District 
Treasurer, who acts on behalf of the Board in all investment matters.  The policy was last 
reviewed and approved by the Board on January 24, 2018.  District staff has again reviewed the 
investment policy and determined that it complies with the current Government Code; and that it 
is adequate for protecting safety and providing liquidity while yielding a reasonable rate of return 
given current market conditions. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends that the Board review and approve the 
District’s Investment Policy.  This item will be approved if adopted along with the Consent 
Calendar. 
  
BACKGROUND:  The State of California Government Code requires the District Board to 
annually review and approve the District Investment Policy.  The District’s current policy was 
adopted on September 20, 1997 and has been reviewed and approved annually by the Board 
since that time.  Additionally, State law, as well as District policy, requires that each quarter the 
Board receive and approve a report of investments held by the District.  This requirement has 
been met as the Board has received quarterly reports on the contents and performance of the 
investment portfolio since adoption of the investment policy. 
 
EXHIBIT 
7-A Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Investment Policy 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\07\Item-7.docx 
 
 
 

35



36



Page 1 of 6 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

Approved by the MPWMD Board on January 243, 20189 

EXHIBIT 7-A 37



 Page 2 of 6 

Table of Contents 
 
1   Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 33 

2   Prudence ............................................................................................................................ 33 

3   Investment and Risk .......................................................................................................... 33 

4   Types of Investments ........................................................................................................ 44 

5   Prohibited Investments...................................................................................................... 44 

6   Access to Funds ................................................................................................................ 44 

7   Authority ........................................................................................................................... 44 

8   Reports .............................................................................................................................. 44 

9   Audits ................................................................................................................................ 55 

10   Policy Review ................................................................................................................... 55 

11   Attachment I...................................................................................................................... 66 

 
 
 

  

EXHIBIT 7-A 38



 Page 3 of 6 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

1  Introduction 
 
This policy governs the investment of District funds. The purpose of the policy is to provide 
guidance to the District Treasurer to invest funds in a manner that provides for the protection of 
principal (safety), meets the cash flow (liquidity) demands of the District and earns a reasonable 
yield. It shall be the policy of the District to invest all funds in strict conformance with all state 
statutes governing the investment of public monies. Moreover, it shall be the policy to manage 
investments under the prudent investor rule. This rule affords the District a broad spectrum of 
investment opportunities so long as the investment is deemed prudent and is allowable under State 
of California Government Code section 53600 et. seq., the investment policy of Monterey County 
and Section 118-507 (West’s Annotated Government Code) of the District's enabling legislation. 
 
2  Prudence 
 
The District Treasurer is a trustee and therefore a fiduciary subject to the prudent investor standard.  
When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing public 
funds, the treasurer shall act with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances 
then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters 
would use in the conduct of investments of a like character and with like aims to safeguard the 
principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the District. Within the limitation of this policy and 
considering individual investments as part of an overall investment strategy, a trustee is authorized 
to acquire investments as authorized by law.       
 
3  Investment and Risk 
 
The objectives of the District’s investment program in order of priority are: 
 

1) Safety of invested funds – The Treasurer shall ensure the safety of the District's invested 
funds by limiting, as much as possible, credit and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk 
of loss due to failure of the security issuer or backer. Interest rate risk is the risk that the 
market value of investments will fall due to an increase in the general level of interest rates. 

 
2) Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet cash flow requirements – Attainment of a 

market average rate of return during budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the District's investment risk constraints and cash requirements.  The Treasurer, acting in 
accordance with District procedures and this policy and exercising due diligence shall be 
relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price 
change, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and 
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.  

 

EXHIBIT 7-A 39



 Page 4 of 6 

4  Types of Investments  
 
District funds may be placed in any instrument or medium approved by the State of California as 
enumerated in Government Code Section 53651, and not otherwise limited by the Monterey 
County Investment Policy. A listing of currently eligible securities shall be maintained. The 
Treasurer shall submit any proposed changes to the list of eligible investments to the 
Administrative Committee and Board of Directors.  The Administrative Committee shall approve 
investment in a class of securities included on the list, but in which the District has not previously 
invested. The Board of Directors shall approve changes to the list of eligible securities. The 
currently approved list of securities is incorporated as Attachment I. 
 
5  Prohibited Investments 
 
The District shall not be authorized to invest in any security that has the possibility of returning a 
zero or negative yield if held to maturity except that investment in U. S. Treasury Certificates of 
indebtedness ("SLUGS") issued by the U. S. Bureau of Public debt is authorized.  Prohibited 
investments shall include inverse floaters, range notes and interests only strips derived from a pool 
of mortgages. 
 
6  Access to Funds 
 
The premise underlying the District’s investment policy is to ensure that money is available when 
needed. To this end, the District will maintain funds on deposit in a local bank or other federal or 
state regulated depository sufficient to meet expenditure requirements for the following six months 
as represented in the most recent budget adopted by the Board of Directors.  
 
7  Authority 
 
The Treasurer of the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District is 
responsible for the custody and management of District investments. Management activity will 
adhere to applicable state law, provisions of the District’s enabling legislation and this policy. The 
Treasurer may delegate ministerial duties related to the investment program to other District staff, 
but shall retain responsibility for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of internal 
control to regulate activity of subordinate personnel.  
 
8  Reports 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 53646 the Treasurer shall provide quarterly investment 
reports to the Board of Directors.  Each report shall include a listing of all securities held in the 
portfolio.  It shall list investments by type, issuer, maturity, par value, market value, and dollar 
amount invested. The report shall contain a citation of compliance with this policy, an explanation 
for any non-compliance and a statement as to the ability or inability to meet expenditure 
requirements for the following six months. District monies over which the Treasurer does not 
exercise control or safekeeping e.g., does not determine how the funds are to be invested or banked, 
need not be included in the report. Agency contributions to the Public Employees Retirement 

EXHIBIT 7-A 40



 Page 5 of 6 

System need not be included.  Deferred compensation funds (Section 457) held by third-party 
administrators and invested at the direction of program participants need not be included pursuant 
to PL 104-188. 
 
9  Audits 
 
The District's portfolio, quarterly reports, policy, internal control procedures and investment 
practices shall be the subject of scrutiny in the course of annual audits performed by external 
independent auditors selected by the Board of Directors. and approved by the Monterey County 
Auditor-Controller.  
  
10  Policy Review 
 
The Board of Directors shall review this policy at least annually.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\suresh\Investments\Investment Policy 2019.docxU:\suresh\Investments\Investment Policy 2017.docx  

EXHIBIT 7-A 41



 Page 6 of 6 

11  Attachment I 
  

ALLOWABLE INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS PER STATE GOVERNMENT CODE 
AS OF JANUARY 1, 20169 

 
INVESTMENT 

TYPE 
MAXIMUM 
SECURITY 

MAXIMUM 
SPECIFIED 

% OF 
PORTFOLIO 

MINIMUM 
QUALITY 

REQUIREMENTS 

Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None 
State Obligations – CA and Others 5 years None None 
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years None None 
U.S. Agency Obligations 5 years None None 
Bankers’ Acceptances 180 days 40%  None 
Commercial Paper – Pooled Funds  270 days 40% of the 

agency’s money 
Highest letter and 

number rating by an 
NRSRO 

Commercial Paper – Non-Pooled Funds  270 days 25% of the 
agency’s money 

Highest letter and 
number rating by an 

NRSRO 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 5 years 30%  None 
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposits 5 years None None 
Placement Service Deposits 5 years 30% None 
Placement Service Certificates of Deposits 5 years 30% None 
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements and 
Securities Lending Agreements 

92 days 20% of the base 
value of the 

portfolio 

None 

Medium-Term Notes  5 years 30% “A” rating category 
or its equivalent or 

better 
Mutual Funds And Money Market Mutual 
Funds 

N/A 20%  Multiple 

Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None None 
Mortgage Pass–Through Securities 5 years 20% “AA” rating 

category or its 
equivalent or better 

County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None 
Joint Powers Authority Pool N/A None Multiple 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None 
Voluntary Investment Program Fund  N/A None None 
Supranational Obligations  5 years 30% “AA” rating 

category or its 
equivalent or better 

 
 

EXHIBIT 7-A 42



CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
8. RECEIVE SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT ON THE CAWD/PBCSD WASTEWATER 

RECLAMATION PROJECT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  There was no Administrative Committee in January 2019. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

 
This report relates to the original CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project (Phase I) only 
and does not contain any information related to the CAWD/PBCSD Recycled Water Expansion 
Project (Phase II).  On December 10, 1992, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
(MPWMD or District) sold $33,900,000 worth of variable rate certificates of participation to 
finance the wastewater reclamation project in Pebble Beach.  The tables below summarize the 
investment information on funds held for future use, disbursements, and interest rate trends on the 
outstanding certificates for the period July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018.  During the first 
reporting period in 2006, the Wastewater Reclamation Project’s (Project) Operations and 
Maintenance Reserve and Renewal and Replacement Reserve accounts were transferred to the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District in accordance with the Project’s Amended Construction and 
Operations Agreement dated December 15, 2004.  The Project’s Operations and Maintenance 
account (Bank of America) and Certificate of Participation accounts (U.S. Bank) remain under the 
control of the District and will continue to be reported on this report and future reports. 
  
Par of 1992 Certificates 

 
$33,900,000 

 
Investments as of December 31, 2018: 

 
Description 

 
Institution Market Value Rate/Yield Term 

Interest Fund U.S. Bank $331  0.00% Daily 
 

Certificate Payment Fund  
 

U.S. Bank $801  0.00% Daily 

Acquisition/Rebate Funds U.S. Bank $19 0.00% Daily 
  

Water Sales Revenue Acct. 
 
Bank of America 

 
$941,321 

 
0.04% 

 
Daily 

43



Operation and Maintenance Disbursements: 
 
MPWMD transferred advances in the amount of $2,920,000 from the Water Sales Revenue 
Account to the Carmel Area Wastewater District during this reporting period.  Advance payments 
are provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 5.5 (a) of the Operation and 
Maintenance Agreement. 
 
As provided in the Water Purchase Agreement, the obligation of the District to make 
disbursements is a special obligation of the District, payable solely from net operating revenues of 
the project, monies in the Revenue Fund, and other funds described in the Trust Agreement. In no 
event, will disbursements be payable out of any funds or properties of the District other than such 
sources.   
 
Principal and Interest on Certificates: 
 
A principal payment of $2,100,000 was made by the Project during this reporting period.  The 
outstanding balance on the Certificates is currently $9,800,000.    
 
The interest rate on the Series 1992 Certificates was set initially at 2.30 percent per annum until 
December 16, 1992. On that date and weekly thereafter, so long as the certificates are in the 
variable mode, the Remarketing Agent, Stone & Youngberg, determines the rate of interest.  
Interest rates for this reporting period fluctuated between 0.70% and 1.42%. 
 
On June 7, 2000, the Reclamation Management Committee noted that the Capital Interest Fund, 
used for payment of monthly interest on the outstanding certificates, would soon be exhausted.  
The Committee discussed the use of water sales revenue to make future interest payments. On July 
3, 2000, the Reclamation Technical Advisory Committee affirmed the use of water sales revenue 
for interest payments when excess funds are available.  
 
Effective July 1, 2013, the Reclamation Project water rates have been delinked from the California 
American Water Company potable rates.  The rates are now set based on revenue requirement for 
the Project. 
 
EXHIBIT 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\08\Item-8.docx 

44



ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
9. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF TREASURER’S REPORT FOR NOVEMBER 2018 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Suresh Prasad Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  There was no Administrative Committee in January 2019. 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  Exhibit 9-A comprises the Treasurer’s Report for November 2018.  Exhibit 9-B 
and Exhibit 9-C are listings of check disbursements for the period November 1-30, 2018.  Check 
Nos. 33204 through 33612, the direct deposits of employee’s paychecks, payroll tax deposits, 
and bank charges resulted in total disbursements for the period in the amount of $793,333.36.  
That amount included $71,746.39 for conservation rebates.  Exhibit 9-D reflects the unaudited 
version of the financial statements for the month ending November 30, 2018.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  District staff recommends adoption of the November 2018 
Treasurer’s Report and financial statements, and ratification of the disbursements made during 
the month.   
   
EXHIBITS 
9-A Treasurer’s Report 
9-B Listing of Cash Disbursements-Regular 
9-C Listing of Cash Disbursements-Payroll 
9-D Financial Statements 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ConsentClndr\09\Item-9.docx 

45



46



PB

MPWMD Wells Fargo Multi-Bank MPWMD Rabobank Reclamation
Description Checking Money Market L.A.I.F. Investments Securities Total Line of Credit Money Market

     Beginning Balance $175,039.28 $373,067.08 $6,585,872.04 $2,751,346.95 $1,493,221.49 $11,378,546.84 $0.00 $22,377.12
Fee Deposits 719,641.03 719,641.03 866,082.49
Line of Credit Draw/Payoff 0.00
Interest Received 5.70 3,729.06         2,421.44         6,156.20 3.61
Transfer to/from LAIF 0.00
Transfer - Money Market/Checking 420,000.00       (420,000.00)    0.00
Transfer - Money Market/Multi-Bank (246,000.00) 246,000.00     0.00
Transfer - Money Market/Wells Fargo 254,492.01 (254,492.01) 0.00
MoCo Tax & WS Chg Installment Pymt 0.00
Transfer to CAWD 0.00
Voided Cks 0.00
Bank Corrections/Reversals/Errors 0.00
Bank Charges/Rtn'd Deposits/Other (301.06)            (301.06)
Payroll Tax/Benefit Deposits (37,892.40)       (37,892.40)
Payroll Checks/Direct Deposits (127,215.90)     (127,215.90)
General Checks (572,739.48)     (572,739.48)
Bank Draft Payments (55,184.52)       (55,184.52)
     Ending Balance ($198,294.08) $681,205.82 $6,585,872.04 $2,500,584.00 $1,741,642.93 $11,311,010.71 $0.00 $888,463.22

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT FOR NOVEMBER 2018

U:\mpwmd\Finance\Treasurers Report\18-19 Treasurers Report
1/14/2019

EXHIBIT 9-A 47



48



1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 1 of 10

Check Report
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District By Check Number

Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: APBNK       -Bank of America Checking

Payment Type: Regular

02660 Forestry Suppliers Inc. 11/16/2018 33072-77.90Regular 0.00

05370 California Secretary of State 11/13/2018 33151-1.00Regular 0.00

02840 California Conservation Corps 11/01/2018 332048,580.00Regular 0.00

01009 Cory Hamilton 11/01/2018 33205313.23Regular 0.00

08109 David Olson, Inc. 11/01/2018 33206727.00Regular 0.00

00761 Delores Cofer 11/01/2018 33207356.00Regular 0.00

00041 Denise Duffy & Assoc. Inc. 11/01/2018 3320812,614.50Regular 0.00

07418 McMaster-Carr 11/01/2018 3320954.12Regular 0.00

00118 Monterey Bay Carpet & Janitorial Svc 11/01/2018 332101,000.00Regular 0.00

13396 Navia Benefit Solutions, Inc. 11/01/2018 3321170.00Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/01/2018 33212216.68Regular 0.00

00166 Rickly Hydrological Co. 11/01/2018 332132,854.58Regular 0.00

09989 Star Sanitation Services 11/01/2018 33214106.51Regular 0.00

00258 TBC Communications & Media 11/01/2018 332153,500.00Regular 0.00

07769 University Corporation at Monterey Bay 11/01/2018 332165,010.83Regular 0.00

00221 Verizon Wireless 11/01/2018 33217653.63Regular 0.00

00249 A.G. Davi, LTD 11/09/2018 33304395.00Regular 0.00

01188 Alhambra 11/09/2018 33305141.54Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 11/09/2018 33306212.27Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 11/09/2018 333073,739.75Regular 0.00

00236 AT&T Long Distance 11/09/2018 3330888.92Regular 0.00

16311 Big Sur Land Trust 11/09/2018 333093,549.61Regular 0.00

12188 Brown and Caldwell 11/09/2018 3331020,321.33Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 11/09/2018 3331184.48Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 11/09/2018 33312114.33Regular 0.00

02840 California Conservation Corps 11/09/2018 333135,060.00Regular 0.00

00243 CalPers Long Term Care Program 11/09/2018 33314150.18Regular 0.00

12601 Carmel Valley Ace Hardware 11/09/2018 33315117.41Regular 0.00

01001 CDW Government 11/09/2018 333163,112.99Regular 0.00

00024 Central Coast Exterminator 11/09/2018 33317104.00Regular 0.00

00230 Cisco WebEx, LLC 11/09/2018 33318174.80Regular 0.00

16910 Corryn Bennett 11/09/2018 33319207.68Regular 0.00

00267 Employment Development Dept. 11/09/2018 333202,060.00Regular 0.00

00225 Escalon Services c/o Palace Business Solutions 11/09/2018 33321669.46Regular 0.00

00758 FedEx 11/09/2018 33322207.02Regular 0.00

02660 Forestry Suppliers Inc. 11/09/2018 3332373.38Regular 0.00

00993 Harris Court Business Park 11/09/2018 33324721.26Regular 0.00

00083 Hayashi & Wayland Accountancy Corp. 11/09/2018 333258,000.00Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 11/09/2018 33326170.55Regular 0.00

00768 ICMA 11/09/2018 333275,235.09Regular 0.00

04717 Inder Osahan 11/09/2018 333281,218.97Regular 0.00

06745 KBA Docusys - Lease Payments 11/09/2018 33329947.22Regular 0.00

00259 Marina Coast Water District 11/09/2018 333301,556.36Regular 0.00

00259 Marina Coast Water District 11/09/2018 3333189.95Regular 0.00

05829 Mark Bekker 11/09/2018 33332814.00Regular 0.00

00223 Martins Irrigation Supply 11/09/2018 33333109.36Regular 0.00

00242 MBAS 11/09/2018 333343,600.00Regular 0.00

07418 McMaster-Carr 11/09/2018 33335951.63Regular 0.00

00118 Monterey Bay Carpet & Janitorial Svc 11/09/2018 333361,000.00Regular 0.00

00127 Monterey Peninsula Engineering 11/09/2018 3333724,711.40Regular 0.00

13396 Navia Benefit Solutions, Inc. 11/09/2018 33338798.34Regular 0.00

04032 Normandeau Associates, Inc. 11/09/2018 333396,792.50Regular 0.00

00154 Peninsula Messenger Service 11/09/2018 33340244.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 49



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 2 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

00755 Peninsula Welding Supply, Inc. 11/09/2018 33341143.83Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/09/2018 333422,067.99Regular 0.00

00752 Professional Liability Insurance Service 11/09/2018 3334333.55Regular 0.00

00159 Pueblo Water Resources, Inc. 11/09/2018 3334422,808.55Regular 0.00

07627 Purchase Power 11/09/2018 33345500.00Regular 0.00

00262 Pure H2O 11/09/2018 3334665.24Regular 0.00

00251 Rick Dickhaut 11/09/2018 333471,030.00Regular 0.00

04709 Sherron Forsgren 11/09/2018 33348715.47Regular 0.00

00766 Standard Insurance Company 11/09/2018 333491,421.19Regular 0.00

01349 Suresh Prasad 11/09/2018 33350170.92Regular 0.00

00258 TBC Communications & Media 11/09/2018 333514,586.42Regular 0.00

00207 Universal Staffing Inc. 11/09/2018 333523,505.02Regular 0.00

00271 UPEC, Local 792 11/09/2018 333531,023.00Regular 0.00

06009 yourservicesolution.com 11/09/2018 33354365.00Regular 0.00

05368 Zim Industries, Inc. 11/09/2018 3335510,066.00Regular 0.00

00763 ACWA-JPIA 11/16/2018 33508307.65Regular 0.00

00760 Andy Bell 11/16/2018 33509699.00Regular 0.00

00232 Balance Hydrologics, Inc 11/16/2018 335101,835.90Regular 0.00

00252 Cal-Am Water 11/16/2018 33511292.78Regular 0.00

05370 California Secretary of State 11/16/2018 335121.00Regular 0.00

16911 Cruz By Leak Detection & Pipe Locating 11/16/2018 33513375.00Regular 0.00

02660 Forestry Suppliers Inc. 11/16/2018 3351477.90Regular 0.00

00083 Hayashi & Wayland Accountancy Corp. 11/16/2018 3351530,000.00Regular 0.00

00986 Henrietta Stern 11/16/2018 335161,218.97Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 11/16/2018 335174.92Regular 0.00

03857 Joe Oliver 11/16/2018 335181,218.97Regular 0.00

00094 John Arriaga 11/16/2018 335192,500.00Regular 0.00

00222 M.J. Murphy 11/16/2018 335202.79Regular 0.00

00117 Marina Backflow Company 11/16/2018 3352175.00Regular 0.00

00256 PERS Retirement 11/16/2018 335221,544.40Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/16/2018 3352318.23Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/16/2018 3352441,957.35Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/16/2018 3352510.13Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/16/2018 3352620,509.19Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/16/2018 3352757.87Regular 0.00

13394 Regional Government Services 11/16/2018 335282,285.15Regular 0.00

04703 Schaaf & Wheeler 11/16/2018 33529277.50Regular 0.00

00283 SHELL 11/16/2018 33530903.58Regular 0.00

04719 Telit  lo T Platforms, LLC 11/16/2018 33531576.25Regular 0.00

09425 The Ferguson Group LLC 11/16/2018 335328,000.00Regular 0.00

00203 ThyssenKrup Elevator 11/16/2018 33533623.28Regular 0.00

00207 Universal Staffing Inc. 11/16/2018 335341,845.20Regular 0.00

00994 Whitson Engineers 11/16/2018 33535630.00Regular 0.00

04039 American Water Works Association 11/21/2018 335411,757.00Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 11/21/2018 33542773.59Regular 0.00

00253 AT&T 11/21/2018 33543222.13Regular 0.00

00036 Bill Parham 11/21/2018 33544650.00Regular 0.00

01001 CDW Government 11/21/2018 33545130.32Regular 0.00

00024 Central Coast Exterminator 11/21/2018 33546104.00Regular 0.00

06268 Comcast 11/21/2018 33547276.72Regular 0.00

04362 Costco Membership 11/21/2018 33548120.00Regular 0.00

06001 Cypress Coast Ford 11/21/2018 3354964.75Regular 0.00

00761 Delores Cofer 11/21/2018 33550356.00Regular 0.00

00192 Extra Space Storage 11/21/2018 33551833.00Regular 0.00

00758 FedEx 11/21/2018 3355246.72Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 11/21/2018 3355338.26Regular 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 33554245.40Regular 0.00

00768 ICMA 11/21/2018 335558,719.09Regular 0.00

09982 Kyle Smith 11/21/2018 33556502.45Regular 0.00

05830 Larry Hampson 11/21/2018 33557250.17Regular 0.00

13431 Lynx Technologies, Inc 11/21/2018 335581,800.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 50



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 3 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

00117 Marina Backflow Company 11/21/2018 33559150.00Regular 0.00

00242 MBAS 11/21/2018 335604,040.00Regular 0.00

13396 Navia Benefit Solutions, Inc. 11/21/2018 33561798.34Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/21/2018 3356224.34Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/21/2018 3356322.40Regular 0.00

00752 Professional Liability Insurance Service 11/21/2018 3356472.12Regular 0.00

**Void** 11/21/2018 335650.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 11/21/2018 335660.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 11/21/2018 335670.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 11/21/2018 335680.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 11/21/2018 335690.00Regular 0.00

00207 Universal Staffing Inc. 11/21/2018 335701,476.16Regular 0.00

08105 Yolanda Munoz 11/21/2018 33571540.00Regular 0.00

00176 Sentry Alarm Systems 11/21/2018 33572215.50Regular 0.00

02838 Solinst Canada Ltd 11/21/2018 335731,184.64Regular 0.00

00766 Standard Insurance Company 11/21/2018 335741,494.08Regular 0.00

00269 U.S. Bank 11/21/2018 335755,124.68Regular 0.00

**Void** 11/21/2018 335760.00Regular 0.00

15399 Accela Inc. 11/30/2018 3357750,660.96Regular 0.00

00767 AFLAC 11/30/2018 335781,207.44Regular 0.00

00236 AT&T Long Distance 11/30/2018 33579344.29Regular 0.00

16235 California Department of Tax and Fee Administration11/30/2018 33580401.37Regular 0.00

16235 California Department of Tax and Fee Administration11/30/2018 335811,000.00Regular 0.00

16235 California Department of Tax and Fee Administration11/30/2018 33582435.97Regular 0.00

16235 California Department of Tax and Fee Administration11/30/2018 335831,952.47Regular 0.00

00243 CalPers Long Term Care Program 11/30/2018 3358450.06Regular 0.00

04043 Campbell Scientific, Inc. 11/30/2018 335859,462.28Regular 0.00

00237 Chevron 11/30/2018 33586421.52Regular 0.00

00230 Cisco WebEx, LLC 11/30/2018 3358791.60Regular 0.00

00224 City of Monterey 11/30/2018 3358850.00Regular 0.00

00028 Colantuono, Highsmith, & Whatley, PC 11/30/2018 335899,277.68Regular 0.00

00281 CoreLogic Information Solutions, Inc. 11/30/2018 335901,251.62Regular 0.00

16912 Cortina Whitmore 11/30/2018 33591316.76Regular 0.00

04041 Cynthia Schmidlin 11/30/2018 33592682.59Regular 0.00

00046 De Lay & Laredo 11/30/2018 3359324,367.50Regular 0.00

00225 Escalon Services c/o Palace Business Solutions 11/30/2018 33594233.76Regular 0.00

00993 Harris Court Business Park 11/30/2018 33595721.26Regular 0.00

08929 HDR Engineering, Inc. 11/30/2018 335963,322.08Regular 0.00

00277 Home Depot Credit Services 11/30/2018 3359776.42Regular 0.00

04717 Inder Osahan 11/30/2018 335981,218.97Regular 0.00

08828 Johnson Construction Enterprise LLC 11/30/2018 33599425.42Regular 0.00

06999 KBA Docusys 11/30/2018 336002,015.17Regular 0.00

06745 KBA Docusys - Lease Payments 11/30/2018 33601947.22Regular 0.00

12658 McCampbell Analytical, Inc. 11/30/2018 336021,981.00Regular 0.00

13396 Navia Benefit Solutions, Inc. 11/30/2018 3360370.00Regular 0.00

04032 Normandeau Associates, Inc. 11/30/2018 336042,992.62Regular 0.00

00282 PG&E 11/30/2018 3360536,731.59Regular 0.00

09989 Star Sanitation Services 11/30/2018 3360688.76Regular 0.00

00258 TBC Communications & Media 11/30/2018 336076,742.84Regular 0.00

09425 The Ferguson Group LLC 11/30/2018 3360846.79Regular 0.00

00207 Universal Staffing Inc. 11/30/2018 336091,063.63Regular 0.00

07769 University Corporation at Monterey Bay 11/30/2018 336107,475.81Regular 0.00

04340 Valley Trophies & Detectors 11/30/2018 33611251.49Regular 0.00

00221 Verizon Wireless 11/30/2018 33612709.14Regular 0.00

500,993.09Total Regular:

EXHIBIT 9-B 51



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 4 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Payment Type: Bank Draft

00266 I.R.S. 11/09/2018 DFT000125311,227.26Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/09/2018 DFT00012542,685.66Bank Draft 0.00

00267 Employment Development Dept. 11/09/2018 DFT00012554,438.79Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/09/2018 DFT0001256312.76Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/07/2018 DFT00012589.58Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/07/2018 DFT000125954.82Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/07/2018 DFT0001260234.36Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 DFT000126611,252.81Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 DFT00012672,686.66Bank Draft 0.00

00267 Employment Development Dept. 11/21/2018 DFT00012684,451.26Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 DFT000126976.82Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 DFT000127169.16Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 DFT000127274.40Bank Draft 0.00

00266 I.R.S. 11/21/2018 DFT0001273318.06Bank Draft 0.00

00256 PERS Retirement 11/09/2018 DFT000127614,924.98Bank Draft 0.00

00256 PERS Retirement 11/21/2018 DFT000127715,179.54Bank Draft 0.00

00769 Laborers Trust Fund of Northern CA 11/14/2018 DFT000127825,080.00Bank Draft 0.00

93,076.92Total Bank Draft:

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code APBNK        Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

160

0

8

17

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

185 0.00

Payment

501,071.99

0.00

-78.90

93,076.92

0.00

594,070.01

Payable
Count

212

0

0

25

0

237

EXHIBIT 9-B 52



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 5 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: REBATES-02-Rebates: Use Only For Rebates

Payment Type: Regular

16857 ADRIANNE DAMICO 11/09/2018 3322375.00Regular 0.00

16883 ALISSA M KISPERSKY 11/09/2018 33224500.00Regular 0.00

16868 Anthony Peacock 11/09/2018 33225150.00Regular 0.00

16842 Brittany McAnally 11/09/2018 33226500.00Regular 0.00

16898 BRODIE & LYNNE KEAST 11/09/2018 33227500.00Regular 0.00

16876 BRUCE TEIGEN 11/09/2018 33228125.00Regular 0.00

16836 CARA COHEN 11/09/2018 33229494.99Regular 0.00

16869 CASS GIL 11/09/2018 3323075.00Regular 0.00

16853 CASS GIL 11/09/2018 3323175.00Regular 0.00

16871 CHARLES DAVIES 11/09/2018 33232125.00Regular 0.00

16827 CHERI  PADIN 11/09/2018 3323375.00Regular 0.00

16895 CHRISTINE A VITALE 11/09/2018 33234500.00Regular 0.00

16859 CHRISTINE MEYER 11/09/2018 33235150.00Regular 0.00

16829 Custom House Realty 11/09/2018 3323675.00Regular 0.00

16904 Custom House Realty & Property Management 11/09/2018 3323775.00Regular 0.00

16893 DAN KERR 11/09/2018 33238500.00Regular 0.00

16856 DAVID ALBIOL 11/09/2018 3323975.00Regular 0.00

16862 DAVID DAI 11/09/2018 33240125.00Regular 0.00

16890 Dolores Bell 11/09/2018 33241500.00Regular 0.00

16841 Don Corona 11/09/2018 33242500.00Regular 0.00

16879 DONNA  SHADE 11/09/2018 33243500.00Regular 0.00

16854 DUANE L  YOUNG 11/09/2018 3324475.00Regular 0.00

16901 DUANE L  YOUNG 11/09/2018 3324575.00Regular 0.00

16902 ELSBETH  STRATTON 11/09/2018 33246225.00Regular 0.00

16874 G. MICHAEL  BUTLER 11/09/2018 33247125.00Regular 0.00

16900 GREGG & MARY WELLS 11/09/2018 33248500.00Regular 0.00

16867 HOWARD  ORIBA 11/09/2018 3324975.00Regular 0.00

16865 IAN L. SAYERS 11/09/2018 33250250.00Regular 0.00

16884 JACQUELYN C.  CERCHI 11/09/2018 33251500.00Regular 0.00

16843 JAMES & PATRICIA  KIRSHNER 11/09/2018 33252500.00Regular 0.00

16875 JAMES C  HENRY, JR . 11/09/2018 33253125.00Regular 0.00

16870 Jason Lei 11/09/2018 33254125.00Regular 0.00

16886 Jay Hughes 11/09/2018 33255500.00Regular 0.00

16849 JOANNE DAVISON 11/09/2018 33256500.00Regular 0.00

16863 JOANNE M MAY 11/09/2018 3325775.00Regular 0.00

16880 JOSEPH  LUCIDO 11/09/2018 33258500.00Regular 0.00

16837 JOSEPH & ALICIA ASHBY 11/09/2018 33259500.00Regular 0.00

16872 JOSEPHINE FAVAZZA 11/09/2018 33260125.00Regular 0.00

16835 JULIE AULENTA 11/09/2018 33261500.00Regular 0.00

16888 KATHLEEN REYNOLDS 11/09/2018 33262500.00Regular 0.00

16851 Kent Durgan 11/09/2018 3326375.00Regular 0.00

16850 LARRY & CARMELA BORRELLI 11/09/2018 3326475.00Regular 0.00

16861 LEE CHANG 11/09/2018 3326575.00Regular 0.00

16897 LILLIAN  DEAN 11/09/2018 33266500.00Regular 0.00

16908 LILLIAN  DEAN 11/09/2018 33267500.00Regular 0.00

16830 LINDA  STROH 11/09/2018 33268375.00Regular 0.00

16882 Lucas Connolly 11/09/2018 33269500.00Regular 0.00

16889 LUCY  CARLTON 11/09/2018 33270500.00Regular 0.00

16828 LYLE  BREWER 11/09/2018 3327175.00Regular 0.00

16844 MARIA STAROW 11/09/2018 33272500.00Regular 0.00

16906 Mark J. Schott 11/09/2018 33273500.00Regular 0.00

16826 MICHAEL  GORTZ 11/09/2018 3327475.00Regular 0.00

16892 MICHAEL & LINDA  DELEHUNT 11/09/2018 33275500.00Regular 0.00

16846 Michelle And Warren Lally 11/09/2018 33276500.00Regular 0.00

16891 MONICA SCIUTO 11/09/2018 33277500.00Regular 0.00

16831 NICHOLAS SASSON 11/09/2018 33278125.00Regular 0.00

16894 Norma Curiel 11/09/2018 33279500.00Regular 0.00

16840 OLIVER & JENNIFER FELLGUTH 11/09/2018 33280500.00Regular 0.00

16839 PAUL  BOON 11/09/2018 33281500.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 53



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 6 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

16860 PAUL S  O'LEARY 11/09/2018 3328275.00Regular 0.00

16833 Peter Berry 11/09/2018 33283125.00Regular 0.00

16885 QIAN WANG 11/09/2018 33284500.00Regular 0.00

16899 RATNA  ANAGOL 11/09/2018 33285500.00Regular 0.00

16873 ROBERT RICHARDS 11/09/2018 33286125.00Regular 0.00

16852 ROBERT WALDERMAR YOUNG 11/09/2018 3328775.00Regular 0.00

16866 ROGER MANLEY 11/09/2018 33288150.00Regular 0.00

16878 RON  EVANS 11/09/2018 33289125.00Regular 0.00

16896 SALLY A BARTON 11/09/2018 33290500.00Regular 0.00

16847 SAM G TARANTINO 11/09/2018 33291200.00Regular 0.00

16881 Sharon Nuss 11/09/2018 33292500.00Regular 0.00

16864 SIRVANT M NIMRI 11/09/2018 33293150.00Regular 0.00

16855 STEVE R  KAHN 11/09/2018 3329475.00Regular 0.00

16903 SVETLANA V MINDIRGASOVA 11/09/2018 33295150.00Regular 0.00

16907 Talmadge Dodson 11/09/2018 33296500.00Regular 0.00

16858 Terri Milligan 11/09/2018 33297575.00Regular 0.00

16832 THOMAS W DIETRICH 11/09/2018 33298125.00Regular 0.00

16887 TIMOTHY  PIPES 11/09/2018 33299500.00Regular 0.00

16905 TINA LIU ANNESLEY 11/09/2018 33300150.00Regular 0.00

16838 URSULA HERRICK TRS 11/09/2018 33301500.00Regular 0.00

16848 Veronica F. Wilcox 11/09/2018 33302500.00Regular 0.00

16845 XIBO  HENDERSON 11/09/2018 33303500.00Regular 0.00

17259 A J  HOUSTON 11/16/2018 33356500.00Regular 0.00

17557 ADRIENNE  CLEARY 11/16/2018 33357200.00Regular 0.00

17536 Ahmed Shehadey 11/16/2018 3335875.00Regular 0.00

17260 ALLISON LENZI 11/16/2018 33359449.10Regular 0.00

17145 ANDRES ROBERTO VENEGAS 11/16/2018 33360500.00Regular 0.00

17213 ANDREW W RAPP 11/16/2018 3336175.00Regular 0.00

17276 Angel Morales 11/16/2018 33362500.00Regular 0.00

17590 Ann Houle 11/16/2018 33363500.00Regular 0.00

17241 ANNE MARTELLARO 11/16/2018 33364500.00Regular 0.00

17226 BARBARA JAMISON 11/16/2018 33365125.00Regular 0.00

17250 BEDREDIN E  VENTURA 11/16/2018 33366500.00Regular 0.00

17593 Benjamin Carpenter 11/16/2018 33367500.00Regular 0.00

17148 BERJ AMIR 11/16/2018 33368500.00Regular 0.00

17207 BRENDA LEWIS 11/16/2018 33369179.10Regular 0.00

17219 BRENDA S HOOT 11/16/2018 3337075.00Regular 0.00

17230 BRUCE  GAYA 11/16/2018 33371125.00Regular 0.00

17254 BRYAN DRAPER 11/16/2018 33372500.00Regular 0.00

17555 BUENA VISTA LAND COMPANY 11/16/2018 3337375.00Regular 0.00

17264 Carmen Black 11/16/2018 33374500.00Regular 0.00

17217 CAROL J IMWALLE 11/16/2018 3337575.00Regular 0.00

17247 CAROLINE T STEPOVICH 11/16/2018 33376500.00Regular 0.00

17221 CATHERINE FLATLEY 11/16/2018 3337775.00Regular 0.00

17146 CHARLES L. CLIFTON JR. 11/16/2018 33378500.00Regular 0.00

17229 CHARLES R  ESHLEMAN 11/16/2018 33379125.00Regular 0.00

17233 CHRISTIAN TORREY 11/16/2018 33380500.00Regular 0.00

17600 Christine Sutphen 11/16/2018 33381500.00Regular 0.00

17245 CHRISTOPHER TINKER 11/16/2018 33382500.00Regular 0.00

17139 CLAGETT E  RAINS 11/16/2018 3338375.00Regular 0.00

17549 CLAUDIA  WARD 11/16/2018 3338475.00Regular 0.00

17556 Custom House Realty 11/16/2018 3338575.00Regular 0.00

17268 Custom House Realty & Property Mgt. 11/16/2018 3338675.00Regular 0.00

17265 Daeyoon Yung 11/16/2018 33387500.00Regular 0.00

17538 DAN ROBINSON 11/16/2018 3338875.00Regular 0.00

17533 DAVID  FINKBEINER 11/16/2018 3338975.00Regular 0.00

17577 DAVID  FINKBEINER 11/16/2018 33390500.00Regular 0.00

17543 DAVID EISEN 11/16/2018 3339175.00Regular 0.00

17220 DAVID L & KATHLEEN M HOWE 11/16/2018 33392150.00Regular 0.00

17575 DEBBIE BRITZ 11/16/2018 33393500.00Regular 0.00

17152 DEBRA LYN SIMONIAN 11/16/2018 33394500.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 54



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 7 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

17239 DENNIS H JONES 11/16/2018 33395500.00Regular 0.00

17227 Derek Gibson 11/16/2018 33396125.00Regular 0.00

17535 DIANE  DEWEESE 11/16/2018 3339775.00Regular 0.00

17586 ELLEN  EVERS 11/16/2018 33398500.00Regular 0.00

17542 ELMER  LARIOS 11/16/2018 3339975.00Regular 0.00

17571 Eric Wikman 11/16/2018 33400500.00Regular 0.00

17253 ERIKA S FAUST 11/16/2018 33401500.00Regular 0.00

17136 ERNEST  ZERMENO 11/16/2018 3340275.00Regular 0.00

17272 FAY Y WU 11/16/2018 3340375.00Regular 0.00

17273 FAY Y WU 11/16/2018 33404225.00Regular 0.00

17552 GARY  MEDLIN 11/16/2018 33405225.00Regular 0.00

17154 GARY HUBER 11/16/2018 33406100.00Regular 0.00

17211 GEORGE ROBERT II & KATHY EYERMAN 11/16/2018 3340775.00Regular 0.00

17149 GLEN  MOZINGO 11/16/2018 33408500.00Regular 0.00

17261 Glenn Tozier 11/16/2018 33409500.00Regular 0.00

17225 Greg Hiltunen 11/16/2018 33410125.00Regular 0.00

17550 GUS  BRUNO 11/16/2018 33411150.00Regular 0.00

17141 HARRY M. CHRISTENSEN 11/16/2018 33412125.00Regular 0.00

17559 HELEN G. MCFARLAND 11/16/2018 33413125.00Regular 0.00

17218 HUYEN L NGUYEN 11/16/2018 3341475.00Regular 0.00

17246 IAN L. SAYERS 11/16/2018 33415500.00Regular 0.00

17238 JAMES  FILICE 11/16/2018 33416500.00Regular 0.00

17580 James Camp 11/16/2018 33417500.00Regular 0.00

17240 JAMES L WAYMAN 11/16/2018 33418500.00Regular 0.00

17547 JANET  SMITH 11/16/2018 3341975.00Regular 0.00

17581 Jason Johnson 11/16/2018 33420500.00Regular 0.00

17565 JENNIFER  ROXAS 11/16/2018 33421125.00Regular 0.00

17243 JOAN D MILLER 11/16/2018 33422500.00Regular 0.00

17269 JOANNE M MAY 11/16/2018 3342330.00Regular 0.00

17135 JOHN  POULOS 11/16/2018 3342475.00Regular 0.00

17140 JOHN BUTLER 11/16/2018 3342575.00Regular 0.00

17578 Jordan Smith 11/16/2018 33426493.20Regular 0.00

17137 Joseph J Vrhel 11/16/2018 3342775.00Regular 0.00

17587 JOSEPHINE  CALLAHAN 11/16/2018 33428500.00Regular 0.00

17208 JUAN QUINTANA 11/16/2018 3342975.00Regular 0.00

17591 Justin Atwood 11/16/2018 33430500.00Regular 0.00

17138 Kathleen Eckerson 11/16/2018 3343175.00Regular 0.00

17257 KATHLEEN F  FLYNN 11/16/2018 33432500.00Regular 0.00

17234 KATHLEEN PORTER 11/16/2018 33433500.00Regular 0.00

17570 Katrina  McFarland 11/16/2018 33434500.00Regular 0.00

17209 KAY ROSANNE WINTER 11/16/2018 3343575.00Regular 0.00

17236 KIM M HANSEN 11/16/2018 33436500.00Regular 0.00

17532 KIMBERLY  WILLISON 11/16/2018 3343775.00Regular 0.00

17212 KYLE  VAN HOUTEN 11/16/2018 3343875.00Regular 0.00

17574 Laura Alexander 11/16/2018 33439500.00Regular 0.00

17568 LAUREN KRANYAK 11/16/2018 33440500.00Regular 0.00

17572 Lauren Merin 11/16/2018 33441500.00Regular 0.00

17151 LEE  ROWAND 11/16/2018 33442500.00Regular 0.00

17215 LEON ANDERLE 11/16/2018 33443150.00Regular 0.00

17551 LINDA  MACDANNALD 11/16/2018 33444150.00Regular 0.00

17563 LINDSAY  SCHUTZLER 11/16/2018 33445125.00Regular 0.00

17210 Louise Slagel 11/16/2018 33446150.00Regular 0.00

17548 LYLE QUOCK 11/16/2018 33447150.00Regular 0.00

17537 MARGARET CASE 11/16/2018 3344875.00Regular 0.00

17224 MARK J  DEJONGHE 11/16/2018 3344975.00Regular 0.00

17544 Marla Benner 11/16/2018 3345075.00Regular 0.00

17270 MARSHA WALSH ANDREWS 11/16/2018 3345175.00Regular 0.00

17255 MARTA LOUISE KRAFTZECK 11/16/2018 33452500.00Regular 0.00

17258 MARY E BARTELS 11/16/2018 33453500.00Regular 0.00

17569 Mary Vaugh 11/16/2018 33454500.00Regular 0.00

17263 Mary Vaugh 11/16/2018 33455500.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 55



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 8 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

17584 Mary Walker 11/16/2018 33456500.00Regular 0.00

17266 Marzette Henderson 11/16/2018 33457500.00Regular 0.00

17573 Michael  McSwiggin 11/16/2018 33458500.00Regular 0.00

17561 MICHAEL  SEYBOLD 11/16/2018 33459125.00Regular 0.00

17155 MICHAEL MCMILLAN 11/16/2018 33460100.00Regular 0.00

17235 Michael Smith 11/16/2018 33461500.00Regular 0.00

17249 NANCY B CHIRA-GARCIA 11/16/2018 33462500.00Regular 0.00

17144 NOLAN AND SHELBY JOHNSON 11/16/2018 33463500.00Regular 0.00

17222 NORMA G MASON 11/16/2018 3346475.00Regular 0.00

17242 OSCAR DAVID ANTILLON 11/16/2018 33465500.00Regular 0.00

17134 PATRICIA  GAGLIOTI 11/16/2018 33466300.00Regular 0.00

17244 PAUL E  SCHEFFEL 11/16/2018 33467500.00Regular 0.00

17601 Raymond Johnson 11/16/2018 33468500.00Regular 0.00

17142 RICHARD TEZAK 11/16/2018 33469125.00Regular 0.00

17256 RICKY T SORCI 11/16/2018 33470500.00Regular 0.00

17589 ROBB T KARMAN 11/16/2018 33471500.00Regular 0.00

17566 ROBERT  & SANDRA RICE 11/16/2018 33472125.00Regular 0.00

17539 ROBERT & YUKIKO  SANFORD 11/16/2018 3347375.00Regular 0.00

17251 ROBERT BROWNING 11/16/2018 33474500.00Regular 0.00

17248 ROBERT C  GRITZMACHER 11/16/2018 33475500.00Regular 0.00

17214 ROBERT CRAIG HUTCHINSON 11/16/2018 3347675.00Regular 0.00

17594 ROSE DIROCCO 11/16/2018 33477200.00Regular 0.00

17541 ROXANNE MAHROOM 11/16/2018 33478225.00Regular 0.00

17582 Roy Estrada 11/16/2018 33479500.00Regular 0.00

17275 Ruben Costa 11/16/2018 33480500.00Regular 0.00

17228 SALLY T DEYKERHOFF 11/16/2018 33481125.00Regular 0.00

17150 SALVADOR LOPEZ RAMOS 11/16/2018 33482500.00Regular 0.00

17562 SANDRA KING 11/16/2018 33483125.00Regular 0.00

17147 Sandra Kupiec 11/16/2018 33484500.00Regular 0.00

17252 SARA D IVIE 11/16/2018 33485500.00Regular 0.00

17585 SETH  GOLDBERG 11/16/2018 33486500.00Regular 0.00

17567 SHIRLEY C TEMPLE TR 11/16/2018 33487125.00Regular 0.00

17534 SIRI  EKLUND 11/16/2018 3348875.00Regular 0.00

17592 SUNG PAK 11/16/2018 33489500.00Regular 0.00

17576 SUZANNE WALTON 11/16/2018 33490500.00Regular 0.00

17271 SYLVIA MONROY GARCIA 11/16/2018 3349175.00Regular 0.00

17274 Taylor T Howl 11/16/2018 33492500.00Regular 0.00

17545 THERESA  BRIANT 11/16/2018 3349375.00Regular 0.00

17153 Thomas Edwards 11/16/2018 33494500.00Regular 0.00

17546 THOMAS H  WILSON 11/16/2018 33495225.00Regular 0.00

17232 TIMOTHY ZIELINSKI 11/16/2018 33496125.00Regular 0.00

17267 TIMOTHY ZIELINSKI 11/16/2018 33497500.00Regular 0.00

17143 TOY LORD 11/16/2018 33498500.00Regular 0.00

17583 Valerie SAIDMAN 11/16/2018 33499500.00Regular 0.00

17553 VERA CHANDLER-HEASTON 11/16/2018 3350075.00Regular 0.00

17262 WARREN E HOY 11/16/2018 33501500.00Regular 0.00

17540 WENDY  SWANSON 11/16/2018 33502225.00Regular 0.00

17579 WILLIAM & SARAH SULLIVAN 11/16/2018 33503500.00Regular 0.00

17223 WILLIAM MARCUS 11/16/2018 3350475.00Regular 0.00

17588 WOLF  SOMMER 11/16/2018 33505500.00Regular 0.00

17237 YANA SHEVCHENKO 11/16/2018 33506500.00Regular 0.00

EXHIBIT 9-B 56



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:27:48 PM Page 9 of 10

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

17554 YOUNG GUN KIM 11/16/2018 33507225.00Regular 0.00

71,746.39Total Regular:

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code REBATES-02 Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

233

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

233 0.00

Payment

71,746.39

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

71,746.39

Payable
Count

233

0

0

0

0

233

EXHIBIT 9-B 57



Check Report Date Range: 11/01/2018 - 11/30/2018

Page 10 of 101/14/2019 2:27:48 PM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

393

0

8

17

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

418 0.00

572,818.38

0.00

-78.90

93,076.92

0.00

665,816.40

445

0

0

25

0

470

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

99 POOL CASH FUND 665,816.4011/2018

665,816.40

EXHIBIT 9-B 58



1/14/2019 2:28:11 PM Page 1 of 2

Payroll Bank Transaction Report - MPWMD
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District By Payment Number

Date: 11/1/2018 - 11/30/2018

Payroll Set: 01 - Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Employee
Number Employee Name Total Payment

Direct Deposit
AmountCheck AmountPayment Type

Payment
Number Payment Date

1024 Stoldt, David J 5,609.315,609.310.00Regular4052 11/09/2018

1025 Tavani, Arlene M 2,080.942,080.940.00Regular4053 11/09/2018

1044 Bennett, Corryn D 2,627.352,627.350.00Regular4054 11/09/2018

1006 Dudley, Mark A 2,834.252,834.250.00Regular4055 11/09/2018

1018 Prasad, Suresh 4,233.034,233.030.00Regular4056 11/09/2018

1019 Reyes, Sara C 1,767.361,767.360.00Regular4057 11/09/2018

1045 Atkins, Daniel 1,720.301,720.300.00Regular4058 11/09/2018

1005 Christensen, Thomas T 3,177.913,177.910.00Regular4059 11/09/2018

1042 Hamilton, Maureen C. 3,194.013,194.010.00Regular4060 11/09/2018

1008 Hampson, Larry M 3,060.653,060.650.00Regular4061 11/09/2018

1009 James, Gregory W 3,291.333,291.330.00Regular4062 11/09/2018

1011 Lear, Jonathan P 3,708.273,708.270.00Regular4063 11/09/2018

1012 Lindberg, Thomas L 2,508.712,508.710.00Regular4064 11/09/2018

1004 Chaney, Beverly M 2,495.182,495.180.00Regular4065 11/09/2018

1007 Hamilton, Cory R 2,221.162,221.160.00Regular4066 11/09/2018

6043 Robinson, Matthew D 620.28620.280.00Regular4067 11/09/2018

1043 Suwada, Joseph 1,826.671,826.670.00Regular4068 11/09/2018

1026 Urquhart, Kevan A 2,204.992,204.990.00Regular4069 11/09/2018

1001 Ayala, Gabriela D 2,448.352,448.350.00Regular4070 11/09/2018

1010 Kister, Stephanie L 2,680.542,680.540.00Regular4071 11/09/2018

1017 Locke, Stephanie L 3,451.993,451.990.00Regular4072 11/09/2018

1040 Smith, Kyle 2,073.662,073.660.00Regular4073 11/09/2018

7015 Adams, Mary L 124.67124.670.00Regular4074 11/07/2018

7013 Clarke, Andrew 374.02374.020.00Regular4075 11/07/2018

7014 Evans, Molly F 489.11489.110.00Regular4076 11/07/2018

7003 Lewis, Brenda 124.67124.670.00Regular4077 11/07/2018

1024 Stoldt, David J 5,609.315,609.310.00Regular4078 11/21/2018

1025 Tavani, Arlene M 2,080.942,080.940.00Regular4079 11/21/2018

1044 Bennett, Corryn D 2,627.352,627.350.00Regular4080 11/21/2018

1006 Dudley, Mark A 2,637.712,637.710.00Regular4081 11/21/2018

1018 Prasad, Suresh 4,233.034,233.030.00Regular4082 11/21/2018

1019 Reyes, Sara C 1,767.361,767.360.00Regular4083 11/21/2018

1045 Atkins, Daniel 1,720.301,720.300.00Regular4084 11/21/2018

1005 Christensen, Thomas T 3,177.913,177.910.00Regular4085 11/21/2018

1008 Hampson, Larry M 3,060.653,060.650.00Regular4086 11/21/2018

1009 James, Gregory W 3,291.333,291.330.00Regular4087 11/21/2018

1011 Lear, Jonathan P 3,708.283,708.280.00Regular4088 11/21/2018

1012 Lindberg, Thomas L 2,508.712,508.710.00Regular4089 11/21/2018

1004 Chaney, Beverly M 2,495.182,495.180.00Regular4090 11/21/2018

1007 Hamilton, Cory R 2,221.162,221.160.00Regular4091 11/21/2018

6043 Robinson, Matthew D 538.61538.610.00Regular4092 11/21/2018

1043 Suwada, Joseph 1,826.671,826.670.00Regular4093 11/21/2018

1026 Urquhart, Kevan A 2,205.002,205.000.00Regular4094 11/21/2018

1001 Ayala, Gabriela D 2,448.352,448.350.00Regular4095 11/21/2018

1010 Kister, Stephanie L 2,680.532,680.530.00Regular4096 11/21/2018

1017 Locke, Stephanie L 3,451.993,451.990.00Regular4097 11/21/2018

1040 Smith, Kyle 2,073.652,073.650.00Regular4098 11/21/2018

1047 Timmer, Christopher 1,512.621,512.620.00Regular4099 11/21/2018

7015 Adams, Mary L 124.67124.670.00Regular4100 11/21/2018

7013 Clarke, Andrew 439.11439.110.00Regular4101 11/21/2018

7014 Evans, Molly F 489.11489.110.00Regular4102 11/21/2018

7003 Lewis, Brenda 249.34249.340.00Regular4103 11/21/2018

6044 Masters, Trevor 876.510.00876.51Regular33218 11/09/2018

6045 Pentecost, Megan 655.070.00655.07Regular33219 11/09/2018

1046 Whitmore, Cortina 1,968.00750.001,218.00Regular33220 11/09/2018

7007 Byrne, Jeannie 374.020.00374.02Regular33221 11/07/2018

7016 Rubio, Ralph S 249.340.00249.34Regular33222 11/07/2018

EXHIBIT 9-C
59



1/14/2019 2:28:11 PM Page 2 of 2

Employee
Number Employee Name Total Payment

Direct Deposit
AmountCheck AmountPayment Type

Payment
Number Payment Date

1042 Hamilton, Maureen C. 0.000.000.00Regular33536 11/21/2018

1046 Whitmore, Cortina 1,968.00750.001,218.00Regular33537 11/21/2018

7006 Brower, Sr., Robert S 124.670.00124.67Regular33538 11/21/2018

7007 Byrne, Jeannie 498.690.00498.69Regular33539 11/21/2018

7016 Rubio, Ralph S 374.020.00374.02Regular33540 11/21/2018

127,215.90121,627.585,588.32Totals:

EXHIBIT 9-C
60



1/14/2019 2:41:44 PM Page 1 of 4

Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Revenue

R100 - Water Supply Charge 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-283,333 -3,400,000283,333 3,400,000

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-149,981 -1,800,000149,981 1,800,000

R130 - User Fees 600,458 1,514,808 35.64 %169.56 %246,325 -2,735,192354,133 4,250,000

R140 - Connection Charges 33,674 290,299 116.12 %161.63 %12,840 40,29920,833 250,000

R150 - Permit Processing Fee 19,468 104,151 59.51 %133.55 %4,891 -70,84914,578 175,000

R160 - Well Registration Fee 50 925 0.00 %0.00 %50 9250 0

R190 - WDS Permits Rule 21 3,000 8,400 15.00 %64.29 %-1,667 -47,6004,667 56,000

R200 - Recording Fees 115 1,996 4.99 %3.45 %-3,217 -38,0043,332 40,000

R210 - Legal Fees 0 2,250 14.06 %0.00 %-1,333 -13,7501,333 16,000

R220 - Copy Fee 5 42 0.00 %0.00 %5 420 0

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 165 911 6.07 %13.21 %-1,085 -14,0891,250 15,000

R250 - Interest Income 6,156 63,267 180.76 %211.12 %3,240 28,2672,916 35,000

R260 - CAW - ASR 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-40,950 -491,60040,950 491,600

R270 - CAW - Rebates 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-80,801 -970,00080,801 970,000

R290 - CAW - Miscellaneous 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-3,749 -45,0003,749 45,000

R300 - Watermaster 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-4,548 -54,6004,548 54,600

R308 - Reclamation Project 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-1,666 -20,0001,666 20,000

R310 - Other Reimbursements 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-6,665 -80,0006,665 80,000

R320 - Grants 820 926 0.04 %0.46 %-178,075 -2,146,674178,895 2,147,600

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-178,563 -2,143,500178,563 2,143,500

Total Revenue: 663,911 1,987,975 12.43 %49.84 %-668,282 -14,001,3251,332,193 15,989,300

EXHIBIT 9-D 61



62



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:41:44 PM Page 2 of 4

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 186,533 1,026,034 38.22 %83.41 %37,094 1,658,566223,627 2,684,600

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 462 2,308 38.47 %92.34 %38 3,692500 6,000

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 714 3,511 38.58 %94.21 %44 5,589758 9,100

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 2,060 68.67 %0.00 %250 940250 3,000

1150 - Temporary Personnel 6,148 22,123 63.21 %210.86 %-3,232 12,8772,916 35,000

1160 - PERS Retirement 15,972 380,189 71.88 %36.25 %28,086 148,71144,057 528,900

1170 - Medical Insurance 24,161 127,590 37.46 %85.16 %4,211 213,01028,372 340,600

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 7,832 39,881 48.34 %113.96 %-959 42,6196,872 82,500

1190 - Workers Compensation 3,655 21,623 38.75 %78.62 %994 34,1774,648 55,800

1200 - Life Insurance 312 1,697 29.25 %64.58 %171 4,104483 5,800

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 1,032 5,467 36.94 %83.68 %201 9,3331,233 14,800

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 205 1,085 33.91 %76.81 %62 2,115267 3,200

1230 - Other Benefits 70 370 24.67 %56.02 %55 1,130125 1,500

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 52 276 18.41 %41.38 %73 1,224125 1,500

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 571 2,332 48.59 %142.92 %-172 2,468400 4,800

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 2,689 16,267 40.87 %81.10 %626 23,5333,315 39,800

1290 - Staff Development & Training 1,618 4,749 17.65 %72.22 %623 22,1512,241 26,900

1300 - Conference Registration 0 3,631 74.10 %0.00 %408 1,269408 4,900

1310 - Professional Dues 115 605 21.61 %49.31 %118 2,195233 2,800

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 489 16.31 %0.00 %250 2,511250 3,000

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 252,139 1,662,288 43.13 %78.53 %68,941 2,192,212321,080 3,854,500

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 6,075 10,395 30.57 %214.50 %-3,243 23,6052,832 34,000

2020 - Board Expenses 440 805 8.05 %52.87 %393 9,195833 10,000

2040 - Rent 1,878 8,695 37.48 %97.18 %55 14,5051,933 23,200

2060 - Utilities 2,555 13,239 40.12 %92.94 %194 19,7612,749 33,000

2120 - Insurance Expense 0 95 0.18 %0.00 %4,332 51,9054,332 52,000

2130 - Membership Dues 4,114 26,029 72.91 %138.33 %-1,140 9,6712,974 35,700

2140 - Bank Charges 308 2,086 52.14 %92.55 %25 1,914333 4,000

2150 - Office Supplies 1,144 5,606 32.98 %80.78 %272 11,3941,416 17,000

2160 - Courier Expense 359 1,450 18.13 %53.87 %307 6,550666 8,000

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 30 5.96 %0.00 %42 47042 500

2180 - Postage & Shipping 47 1,818 27.14 %8.37 %511 4,882558 6,700

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 2,639 62,958 48.43 %24.37 %8,190 67,04210,829 130,000

2200 - Professional Fees 44,800 135,370 37.81 %150.23 %-14,979 222,63029,821 358,000

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 2,015 28.79 %0.00 %583 4,985583 7,000

2235 - Equipment Lease 975 5,520 39.43 %83.62 %191 8,4801,166 14,000

2240 - Telephone 6,021 28,017 69.01 %178.02 %-2,639 12,5833,382 40,600

2260 - Facility Maintenance 4,687 15,007 36.42 %136.57 %-1,255 26,1933,432 41,200

2270 - Travel Expenses 2,101 10,670 43.37 %102.51 %-52 13,9302,049 24,600

EXHIBIT 9-D 63



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:41:44 PM Page 3 of 4

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 2,041 11,324 33.30 %72.08 %791 22,6762,832 34,000

2300 - Legal Services 33,598 105,130 26.28 %100.83 %-278 294,87033,320 400,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 268 1,099 18.63 %54.55 %223 4,801491 5,900

2420 - Legal Notices 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %258 3,100258 3,100

2460 - Public Outreach 44 638 11.61 %9.62 %414 4,862458 5,500

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 379 12.63 %0.00 %250 2,621250 3,000

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %1,666 20,0001,666 20,000

2900 - Operating Supplies 1,241 5,993 31.38 %77.99 %350 13,1071,591 19,100

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 115,335 454,367 34.16 %104.10 %-4,538 875,733110,797 1,330,100

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 480,762 1,686,397 17.91 %61.31 %303,424 7,727,603784,186 9,414,000

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 116,005 269,562 47.01 %242.87 %-68,241 303,83847,764 573,400

5000 - Debt Service 65,400 65,400 28.43 %341.36 %-46,241 164,60019,159 230,000

5500 - Election Expenses 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %13,328 160,00013,328 160,000

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %6,248 75,0006,248 75,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %29,347 352,30029,347 352,300

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 662,167 2,021,360 18.71 %73.57 %237,864 8,783,340900,031 10,804,700

Total Expense: 1,029,641 4,138,015 25.88 %77.31 %302,267 11,851,2851,331,909 15,989,300

Report Total: -365,730 -2,150,039-366,014 -2,150,039284 0

EXHIBIT 9-D 64



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:41:44 PM Page 4 of 4

Fund Summary

Fund
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity Total Budget

24 - MITIGATION FUND -909,442137 -109,848 -909,442-109,710 0

26 - CONSERVATION FUND -335,1250 -55,038 -335,125-55,038 0

35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND -905,472147 -201,129 -905,472-200,982 0

Report Total: -2,150,039284.08 -366,014 -2,150,039-365,730 0

EXHIBIT 9-D 65



1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 1 of 10

Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Fund: 24 - MITIGATION FUND

Revenue

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-91,667 -1,100,00091,667 1,100,000

R130 - User Fees 377,203 837,686 31.61 %170.81 %156,370 -1,812,314220,833 2,650,000

R160 - Well Registration Fee 50 925 0.00 %0.00 %50 9250 0

R190 - WDS Permits Rule 21 3,000 8,400 15.00 %64.29 %-1,667 -47,6004,667 56,000

R220 - Copy Fee 2 2 0.00 %0.00 %2 20 0

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 65 200 3.99 %15.67 %-351 -4,800417 5,000

R250 - Interest Income 1,597 18,312 183.12 %191.76 %764 8,312833 10,000

R290 - CAW - Miscellaneous 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-3,749 -45,0003,749 45,000

R310 - Other Reimbursements 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-2,250 -27,0002,250 27,000

R320 - Grants 820 926 0.05 %0.52 %-157,450 -1,899,074158,270 1,900,000

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-23,750 -285,00023,750 285,000

Total Revenue: 382,738 866,452 14.26 %-75.57 %-123,697 -5,211,548506,435 6,078,000

EXHIBIT 9-D 66



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 2 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 71,259 410,187 38.44 %80.17 %17,631 656,91388,889 1,067,100

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 92 462 38.47 %92.34 %8 738100 1,200

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 143 702 50.14 %122.47 %-26 698117 1,400

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 824 68.67 %0.00 %100 376100 1,200

1150 - Temporary Personnel 2,459 8,849 63.21 %210.86 %-1,293 5,1511,166 14,000

1160 - PERS Retirement 6,176 153,702 72.50 %34.97 %11,484 58,29817,660 212,000

1170 - Medical Insurance 9,621 51,339 35.21 %79.22 %2,524 94,46112,145 145,800

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 3,211 16,031 48.58 %116.81 %-462 16,9692,749 33,000

1190 - Workers Compensation 2,066 12,866 38.75 %74.72 %699 20,3342,766 33,200

1200 - Life Insurance 130 700 26.93 %59.90 %87 1,900217 2,600

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 415 2,204 35.54 %80.34 %102 3,996516 6,200

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 82 438 33.67 %76.09 %26 862108 1,300

1230 - Other Benefits 28 148 24.67 %56.02 %22 45250 600

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 21 112 18.62 %41.70 %29 48850 600

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 345 1,946 97.28 %207.35 %-179 55167 2,000

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 1,089 6,914 43.76 %82.75 %227 8,8861,316 15,800

1290 - Staff Development & Training 495 1,480 17.41 %69.91 %213 7,020708 8,500

1300 - Conference Registration 0 1,139 81.34 %0.00 %117 261117 1,400

1310 - Professional Dues 115 115 19.17 %230.09 %-65 48550 600

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 224 18.64 %0.00 %100 976100 1,200

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 97,748 670,379 43.26 %75.72 %31,342 879,321129,090 1,549,700

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 2,430 4,158 30.57 %214.50 %-1,297 9,4421,133 13,600

2020 - Board Expenses 176 322 8.05 %52.87 %157 3,678333 4,000

2040 - Rent 856 3,936 37.13 %96.91 %27 6,665883 10,600

2060 - Utilities 1,028 5,325 40.03 %92.76 %80 7,9751,108 13,300

2120 - Insurance Expense 0 38 0.18 %0.00 %1,733 20,7621,733 20,800

2130 - Membership Dues 1,646 10,243 93.97 %181.23 %-738 657908 10,900

2140 - Bank Charges 123 777 48.56 %92.54 %10 823133 1,600

2150 - Office Supplies 458 2,277 34.49 %83.23 %92 4,323550 6,600

2160 - Courier Expense 144 580 18.13 %53.87 %123 2,620267 3,200

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 12 5.96 %0.00 %17 18817 200

2180 - Postage & Shipping 19 727 26.94 %8.31 %206 1,973225 2,700

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 1,056 25,183 48.43 %24.37 %3,276 26,8174,332 52,000

2200 - Professional Fees 17,920 52,625 36.75 %150.23 %-5,991 90,57511,929 143,200

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 806 28.79 %0.00 %233 1,994233 2,800

2235 - Equipment Lease 419 2,374 42.39 %89.90 %47 3,226466 5,600

2240 - Telephone 2,487 11,631 71.79 %184.28 %-1,137 4,5691,349 16,200

2260 - Facility Maintenance 1,875 6,003 36.16 %135.58 %-492 10,5971,383 16,600

2270 - Travel Expenses 290 2,326 30.20 %45.19 %352 5,374641 7,700

EXHIBIT 9-D 67



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 3 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 1,265 8,712 63.59 %110.88 %-124 4,9881,141 13,700

2300 - Legal Services 3,628 17,667 12.62 %31.11 %8,034 122,33311,662 140,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 93 395 16.44 %46.37 %107 2,005200 2,400

2420 - Legal Notices 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %108 1,300108 1,300

2460 - Public Outreach 18 250 11.38 %9.61 %166 1,950183 2,200

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 152 12.63 %0.00 %100 1,048100 1,200

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %483 5,800483 5,800

2900 - Operating Supplies 154 747 57.45 %142.33 %-46 553108 1,300

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 36,082 157,264 31.48 %86.72 %5,526 342,23641,608 499,500

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 337,547 904,050 25.07 %112.37 %-37,159 2,702,050300,388 3,606,100

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 21,071 44,201 26.53 %151.84 %-7,194 122,39913,878 166,600

5500 - Election Expenses 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %5,331 64,0005,331 64,000

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %2,499 30,0002,499 30,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %13,503 162,10013,503 162,100

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 358,618 948,251 23.54 %106.86 %-23,019 3,080,549335,599 4,028,800

Total Expense: 492,448 1,775,894 29.22 %97.26 %13,849 4,302,106506,297 6,078,000

Total Revenues 866,452382,738 -75.57 % -14.26 %-123,697 -5,211,548506,435 6,078,000

Total Fund: 24 - MITIGATION FUND: -109,710 -909,442-109,848 -909,442137 0

EXHIBIT 9-D 68



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 4 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Fund: 26 - CONSERVATION FUND

Revenue

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-47,481 -570,00047,481 570,000

R130 - User Fees 138,572 374,291 37.43 %166.35 %55,272 -625,70983,300 1,000,000

R150 - Permit Processing Fee 19,468 104,151 59.51 %133.55 %4,891 -70,84914,578 175,000

R200 - Recording Fees 115 1,996 4.99 %3.45 %-3,217 -38,0043,332 40,000

R210 - Legal Fees 0 2,250 14.06 %0.00 %-1,333 -13,7501,333 16,000

R220 - Copy Fee 1 1 0.00 %0.00 %1 10 0

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 46 598 11.96 %10.97 %-371 -4,402417 5,000

R250 - Interest Income 490 16,428 164.28 %58.84 %-343 6,428833 10,000

R270 - CAW - Rebates 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-80,801 -970,00080,801 970,000

R320 - Grants 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-12,712 -152,60012,712 152,600

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-24,632 -295,70024,632 295,700

Total Revenue: 158,692 499,714 15.45 %-58.90 %-110,725 -2,734,586269,417 3,234,300

EXHIBIT 9-D 69



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 5 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 41,236 235,994 34.68 %72.75 %15,449 444,50656,686 680,500

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 92 462 38.47 %92.34 %8 738100 1,200

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 143 702 30.52 %74.54 %49 1,598192 2,300

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 577 72.10 %0.00 %67 22367 800

1150 - Temporary Personnel 1,721 6,194 63.21 %210.86 %-905 3,606816 9,800

1160 - PERS Retirement 3,370 84,980 67.55 %32.16 %7,109 40,82010,479 125,800

1170 - Medical Insurance 5,723 31,066 34.14 %75.50 %1,857 59,9347,580 91,000

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 2,052 11,026 47.73 %106.64 %-128 12,0741,924 23,100

1190 - Workers Compensation 160 914 30.46 %64.01 %90 2,086250 3,000

1200 - Life Insurance 56 354 27.26 %51.79 %52 946108 1,300

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 225 1,256 33.06 %71.19 %91 2,544317 3,800

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 45 250 31.20 %67.17 %22 55067 800

1230 - Other Benefits 20 104 25.90 %58.82 %14 29633 400

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 12 67 16.82 %35.95 %21 33333 400

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 105 180 25.78 %180.81 %-47 52058 700

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 614 3,820 37.82 %72.98 %227 6,280841 10,100

1290 - Staff Development & Training 1,123 2,524 23.37 %124.85 %-224 8,276900 10,800

1300 - Conference Registration 0 1,581 68.75 %0.00 %192 719192 2,300

1310 - Professional Dues 0 490 30.63 %0.00 %133 1,110133 1,600

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 266 33.22 %0.00 %67 53467 800

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 56,698 382,806 39.44 %70.13 %24,145 587,69480,843 970,500

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 1,701 2,911 30.64 %214.95 %-910 6,589791 9,500

2020 - Board Expenses 123 225 8.05 %52.88 %110 2,575233 2,800

2040 - Rent 233 1,154 41.20 %100.00 %0 1,646233 2,800

2060 - Utilities 699 3,625 40.28 %93.29 %50 5,375750 9,000

2120 - Insurance Expense 0 27 0.18 %0.00 %1,216 14,5731,216 14,600

2130 - Membership Dues 1,152 7,591 47.15 %85.89 %189 8,5091,341 16,100

2140 - Bank Charges 86 625 56.78 %94.23 %5 47592 1,100

2150 - Office Supplies 320 1,632 32.65 %76.90 %96 3,368417 5,000

2160 - Courier Expense 101 406 18.45 %54.85 %83 1,794183 2,200

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 8 8.34 %0.00 %8 928 100

2180 - Postage & Shipping 13 509 28.29 %8.72 %137 1,291150 1,800

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 739 17,603 48.36 %24.37 %2,293 18,7973,032 36,400

2200 - Professional Fees 12,544 37,904 37.83 %150.29 %-4,197 62,2968,347 100,200

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 564 28.21 %0.00 %167 1,436167 2,000

2235 - Equipment Lease 235 1,348 34.57 %72.30 %90 2,552325 3,900

2240 - Telephone 1,677 7,684 71.15 %186.38 %-777 3,116900 10,800

2260 - Facility Maintenance 1,312 4,202 37.52 %140.67 %-379 6,998933 11,200

2270 - Travel Expenses 1,508 6,153 58.60 %172.42 %-633 4,347875 10,500

EXHIBIT 9-D 70



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 6 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 631 966 14.21 %111.37 %-64 5,834566 6,800

2300 - Legal Services 3,931 13,781 22.97 %78.64 %1,067 46,2194,998 60,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 87 344 21.50 %65.05 %47 1,256133 1,600

2420 - Legal Notices 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %58 70058 700

2460 - Public Outreach 12 178 11.88 %9.88 %113 1,322125 1,500

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 106 13.26 %0.00 %67 69467 800

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %475 5,700475 5,700

2900 - Operating Supplies 1,087 5,232 31.33 %78.11 %304 11,4681,391 16,700

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 28,191 114,780 34.39 %101.39 %-386 219,02027,806 333,800

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 53,804 154,888 10.43 %43.49 %69,921 1,330,412123,725 1,485,300

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 75,037 182,365 61.46 %303.61 %-50,321 114,33524,715 296,700

5500 - Election Expenses 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %3,732 44,8003,732 44,800

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %1,749 21,0001,749 21,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %6,847 82,2006,847 82,200

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 128,841 337,253 17.47 %80.14 %31,928 1,592,747160,769 1,930,000

Total Expense: 213,730 834,839 25.81 %79.33 %55,687 2,399,461269,417 3,234,300

Total Revenues 499,714158,692 -58.90 % -15.45 %-110,725 -2,734,586269,417 3,234,300

Total Fund: 26 - CONSERVATION FUND: -55,038 -335,125-55,038 -335,1250 0

EXHIBIT 9-D 71



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 7 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Fund: 35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND

Revenue

R100 - Water Supply Charge 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-283,333 -3,400,000283,333 3,400,000

R120 - Property Taxes Revenues 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-10,833 -130,00010,833 130,000

R130 - User Fees 84,683 302,831 50.47 %169.37 %34,683 -297,16950,000 600,000

R140 - Connection Charges 33,674 290,299 116.12 %161.63 %12,840 40,29920,833 250,000

R220 - Copy Fee 2 38 0.00 %0.00 %2 380 0

R230 - Miscellaneous - Other 54 114 2.27 %12.97 %-363 -4,886417 5,000

R250 - Interest Income 4,069 28,527 190.18 %325.50 %2,819 13,5271,250 15,000

R260 - CAW - ASR 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-40,950 -491,60040,950 491,600

R300 - Watermaster 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-4,548 -54,6004,548 54,600

R308 - Reclamation Project 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-1,666 -20,0001,666 20,000

R310 - Other Reimbursements 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-4,415 -53,0004,415 53,000

R320 - Grants 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-7,914 -95,0007,914 95,000

R510 - Operating Reserve 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %-130,181 -1,562,800130,181 1,562,800

Total Revenue: 122,481 621,809 9.31 %-22.02 %-433,860 -6,055,191556,341 6,677,000

EXHIBIT 9-D 72



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 8 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

Expense

Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs

1100 - Salaries & Wages 74,038 379,853 40.54 %94.86 %4,014 557,14778,052 937,000

1110 - Manager's Auto Allowance 277 1,385 38.47 %92.34 %23 2,215300 3,600

1120 - Manager's Deferred Comp 429 2,107 39.02 %95.26 %21 3,293450 5,400

1130 - Unemployment Compensation 0 659 65.92 %0.00 %83 34183 1,000

1150 - Temporary Personnel 1,967 7,079 63.21 %210.86 %-1,034 4,121933 11,200

1160 - PERS Retirement 6,426 141,507 74.05 %40.36 %9,493 49,59315,919 191,100

1170 - Medical Insurance 8,817 45,185 43.53 %101.98 %-171 58,6158,647 103,800

1180 - Medical Insurance - Retirees 2,569 12,824 48.58 %116.81 %-370 13,5762,199 26,400

1190 - Workers Compensation 1,428 7,844 40.02 %87.47 %205 11,7561,633 19,600

1200 - Life Insurance 126 642 33.79 %79.72 %32 1,258158 1,900

1210 - Long Term Disability Insurance 391 2,008 41.82 %97.87 %9 2,792400 4,800

1220 - Short Term Disability Insurance 78 398 36.17 %84.67 %14 70292 1,100

1230 - Other Benefits 22 118 23.68 %53.78 %19 38242 500

1260 - Employee Assistance Program 19 97 19.43 %45.33 %23 40342 500

1270 - FICA Tax Expense 121 206 9.82 %68.92 %54 1,894175 2,100

1280 - Medicare Tax Expense 986 5,533 39.81 %85.14 %172 8,3671,158 13,900

1290 - Staff Development & Training 0 745 9.81 %0.00 %633 6,855633 7,600

1300 - Conference Registration 0 911 75.92 %0.00 %100 289100 1,200

1310 - Professional Dues 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %50 60050 600

1320 - Personnel Recruitment 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %83 1,00083 1,000

Total Level1: 100 - Personnel Costs: 97,693 609,102 45.65 %87.90 %13,454 725,198111,147 1,334,300

Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services

2000 - Board Member Compensation 1,944 3,326 30.52 %214.10 %-1,036 7,574908 10,900

2020 - Board Expenses 141 258 8.05 %52.87 %126 2,942267 3,200

2040 - Rent 789 3,606 36.79 %96.66 %27 6,194816 9,800

2060 - Utilities 828 4,289 40.08 %92.88 %63 6,411891 10,700

2120 - Insurance Expense 0 30 0.18 %0.00 %1,383 16,5701,383 16,600

2130 - Membership Dues 1,316 8,194 94.19 %181.65 %-592 506725 8,700

2140 - Bank Charges 99 684 52.63 %91.13 %10 616108 1,300

2150 - Office Supplies 366 1,697 31.43 %81.37 %84 3,703450 5,400

2160 - Courier Expense 115 464 17.85 %53.04 %102 2,136217 2,600

2170 - Printing/Photocopy 0 10 4.77 %0.00 %17 19017 200

2180 - Postage & Shipping 15 582 26.45 %8.16 %168 1,618183 2,200

2190 - IT Supplies/Services 845 20,171 48.49 %24.37 %2,621 21,4293,465 41,600

2200 - Professional Fees 14,336 44,841 39.13 %150.18 %-4,790 69,7599,546 114,600

2220 - Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 0 645 29.31 %0.00 %183 1,555183 2,200

2235 - Equipment Lease 321 1,798 39.96 %85.63 %54 2,702375 4,500

2240 - Telephone 1,857 8,702 63.99 %163.92 %-724 4,8981,133 13,600

2260 - Facility Maintenance 1,500 4,802 35.84 %134.37 %-384 8,5981,116 13,400

2270 - Travel Expenses 303 2,191 34.23 %56.79 %230 4,209533 6,400

EXHIBIT 9-D 73



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 9 of 10

Level…
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget Total Budget

2280 - Transportation 145 1,645 12.19 %12.90 %979 11,8551,125 13,500

2300 - Legal Services 26,040 73,681 36.84 %156.30 %-9,380 126,31916,660 200,000

2380 - Meeting Expenses 89 361 18.99 %56.04 %70 1,539158 1,900

2420 - Legal Notices 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %92 1,10092 1,100

2460 - Public Outreach 14 210 11.66 %9.40 %136 1,590150 1,800

2480 - Miscellaneous 0 121 12.12 %0.00 %83 87983 1,000

2500 - Tax Administration Fee 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %708 8,500708 8,500

2900 - Operating Supplies 0 14 1.24 %0.00 %92 1,08692 1,100

Total Level1: 200 - Supplies and Services: 51,062 182,323 36.70 %123.39 %-9,678 314,47741,383 496,800

Level1: 300 - Other Expenses

3000 - Project Expenses 89,411 627,460 14.52 %24.83 %270,661 3,695,140360,073 4,322,600

4000 - Fixed Asset Purchases 19,897 42,996 39.05 %216.95 %-10,726 67,1049,171 110,100

5000 - Debt Service 65,400 65,400 28.43 %341.36 %-46,241 164,60019,159 230,000

5500 - Election Expenses 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %4,265 51,2004,265 51,200

6000 - Contingencies 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %1,999 24,0001,999 24,000

6500 - Reserves 0 0 0.00 %0.00 %8,996 108,0008,996 108,000

Total Level1: 300 - Other Expenses: 174,708 735,856 15.19 %43.28 %228,955 4,110,044403,663 4,845,900

Total Expense: 323,463 1,527,281 22.87 %58.16 %232,731 5,149,719556,194 6,677,000

Total Revenues 621,809122,481 -22.02 % -9.31 %-433,860 -6,055,191556,341 6,677,000

Total Fund: 35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND: -200,982 -905,472-201,129 -905,472147 0

Report Total: -365,730 -2,150,039-366,014 -2,150,039284 0

EXHIBIT 9-D 74



Statement of Revenue Over Expense - No Decimals For Fiscal: 2018-2019 Period Ending: 11/30/2018

1/14/2019 2:42:02 PM Page 10 of 10

Fund Summary

Fund
YTD

Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Budget

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
November

Activity Total Budget

24 - MITIGATION FUND -909,442137 -109,848 -909,442-109,710 0

26 - CONSERVATION FUND -335,1250 -55,038 -335,125-55,038 0

35 - WATER SUPPLY FUND -905,472147 -201,129 -905,472-200,982 0

Report Total: -2,150,039284.08 -366,014 -2,150,039-365,730 0

EXHIBIT 9-D 75



 
SUMMARY:  The Board has requested regular updates on major project status.  Recently 
authorized projects include: 
 

• Rancho San Carlos Road Stream Bank Restoration 
• Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility Intake 
• ASR Backflush Basin Expansion 
• Los Padres Dam Alternatives Study 
• Accela Database Implementation 
• New Phone System/Server Room Relocation 

 
Information provided includes: 
 

1. Date Authorized 
2. Amount Authorized 
3. Change Orders Authorized to date 
4. Amount Expended to date 
5. Expected Date of Completion.   

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The General Manager recommends the Board receive the report. 
 
EXHIBIT 
12-A Status Report on Major District Projects 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\GMreport\12\Item-12.docx 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
12. UPDATE ON MAJOR DISTRICT PROJECTS 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt Program/   
 General Manager Line Item No.:      N/A 
 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 

76



77



EXHIBIT 12-A 
 

Status Report on Major District Projects 
1/7/19 

 
Project Date 

Authorized 
Amount 

Authorized 
Change Orders 

To Date 
Total Expended 

To Date 
Expected 

Completion 
Rancho San Carlos Road 
Streambank Stabilization Project 

 
7/16/18 

 
$632,000 

 
$50,242 

 
$567,607 

 
Complete 

Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing 
Facility Intake Upgrade 

 
7/16/18 

 
$2,000,0001 

 
0 

 
$693,064 

 
5/31/19 

 
ASR Backflush Basin Expansion 

 
9/17/18 

 
$468,361 

 
$1,1022 

 
$149,636 

 
2/28/19 

 
Los Padres Dam 
  HDR Fish Passage Study 
  AECOM Los Padres Dam Alternatives 
  CSUMB Bathymetric Survey 
  Carmel River Basin Model 
  IFIM Study 
Total 

 
 

4/18/16 
1/25/17 
5/15/17 
Various 
Various 

 
 

$310,000 
$500,000 
$19,000 
$166,280 
$318,500 

$1,313,7804 

 
 

n/a 
$201,0003 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

$201,000 

 
 

$274,972 
$462,670 
$19,000 
$143,099 
$297,018 

$1,196,759 

 
 

2/28/19 
6/30/20 
3/31/18 
6/30/19 
6/30/19 

 
Accela Database Implementation 

 
11/13/17 

 
$725,000 

 
$17,945 

 
$576,078 

 
2/28/19 

New Phone System/Server Room 
Relocation 

 
6/18/2018 

 
$60,000 

 
n/a 

 
$0 

 
3/31/19 

Notes: 
 
1:  Primarily paid via $1.8 million State Coastal Conservancy grant 
2:  Stormwater pollution prevention plan fees in grading permit 
3:  $60,000 for additional core samples authorized by Board 3/20/17 and $141,000 for additional work required by regulators approved 4/16/18 
4:  Approximately $988,626 expected to be reimbursed by Cal-Am; $549,645 has been reimbursed to date. 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\GMreport\12\Item-12-Exh-A.docx 

78



79



 
SUMMARY:  On November 6, 2018 voters within the District passed Measure J 56% to 44%.  
Measure J directed that a new Rule 19.8 shall be added to the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District Rules and Regulations, Regulation I, General Provisions.  The first section 
of the rule states that “It shall be the policy of the District, if and when feasible, to secure and 
maintain public ownership of all water production, storage and delivery system assets and 
infrastructure providing services within its territory.” 
 
The District Board has determined the best means to meet the “if and when feasible” criterion, 
requires engagement of a team of consulting professionals to work with District General Counsel 
and Special Counsel to perform a feasibility analysis.   
 
In order to direct the consultants as to which objective measure(s) of “feasible” to apply in their 
work it is important for the Board to establish its own standards or measures.  In doing so, the 
Board felt it was important to hold “Listening Sessions” for the public in order to both explain the 
process going forward, and to hear the public’s input on such questions such as:  
 

• What does “feasible” mean to you? 
• Which measure of “feasibility” is most important to you? 
• What do you see are the benefits of a publicly owned water system? 

 
It was expected that the public comments would help inform the Board’s decision making.  More 
detail on the Listening Sessions is provided under “DISCUSSION” below. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The General Manager recommends the Board receive this report, direct 
staff to have consultants recommended for hiring at the February Board meeting, and agree to 
discuss and establish objective criteria for the feasibility study in open session at the February 
Board meeting.  
 

ITEM: ACTION ITEM 
 
15. RECEIVE REPORT ON RULE 19.8 LISTENING SESSIONS OF JANUARY 7, 8, 

9, 10 AND 15, 2019 AND DETERMINE SUBSEQUENT ACTION REGARDING 
PREPARATION OF A FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt Program/   
 General Manager Line Item No.:      N/A 
 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Approval:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 

80



DISCUSSION:  Five listening sessions were held over the course of 8 days in January as follows: 
 

Division 1 – Monday, January 7 - Seaside City Council Chambers 
Division 2 – Tuesday, January 8 – MPWMD conference room 
Division 3 – Wednesday, January 9 – Monterey City Council Chambers 
Division 4 – Thursday, January 10 – Pacific Grove Council Chambers 
Division 5 – Tuesday, January 15 – Carpenter Hall, Sunset Center Carmel 

 
Each session was moderated by the elected Director from the Division in which the session was 
held.  The agenda was the same for each session and an example is attached as Exhibit 15-A. 
 
Each session was very well attended by the public and by District Directors, as summarized in the 
table below.  The general format was introductions by the Directors, an overview of the evening 
by the moderator, a presentation about the process by the General Manager, and then 45-90 
minutes of public comment.  There were 91 public speakers across the five sessions as summarized 
below.  The public were also asked to fill out and leave behind ranking sheets on which they rank 
most important through least important “Measures of Feasibility” and “Measures of Desirability 
(Public Benefit)”, an example of which are attached as Exhibit 15-B.  The ranking sheets also had 
space for the public to provide additional thoughts.   
 

 Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Division 5 Total 
Attendees1. 65 55 80 75 105 380 
Speakers 18 15 18 17 33 101 
Ranking2. 

Sheets 
Returned 

34 
32 

22 
20 

35 
34 

33 
32 

66 
71 

190 
189 

Additional 
Ranking 

Sheet 
Comments2. 

 
13 
14 
 

 
7 
6 

 
14 
19 

 
23 
16 

 
27 
27 

 
84 
82 

Directors 5 5 6 6 6 n/a 
  

Note 1: Approximate, based on seat and head counts 
Note 2: First number is related to “Feasibility”, second number “Desirability” 

 
The presentation highlighted seven key areas related to process:  (i) specific requirements the 
initiative added to District Rules and Regulations; (ii) overview of the eminent domain process 
and where the determination of feasibility fits in; (iii) differentiating feasibility, “do-ability, and 
desirability (iv) example standards or measures of feasibility and desirability; (v) the process by 
which feasibility will be determined; (vi) the types of consultants the District will hire to execute 
the study; and (vii) schedule.  A copy of the presentation is attached as Exhibit 15-C. 
 
Leading up to the sessions and through their conclusion January 15th, the District opened up an 
email link through its website to accept public comment.  Additional comments we emailed to 
specific District staff or hand delivered at the listening sessions.  Copies of those 32 written 
comments are included here as Exhibit 15-D. 
 

81



The spoken comments, written comments, and comments turned in with the ranking sheets are 
summarized below. 
 
Feasibility Measures 
 
Ratepayer Savings: 105 comments were given about savings, 30 commenters desired savings 
immediately or within a short period, yet almost an equal number (29) said ownership is the most 
important even if savings do not occur for 30 years. Several commenters (28) said savings were 
important in general, but did not specify when savings must occur, including expectations of a 
lower rate of escalation under public ownership.  Similarly, 18 commenters said over the long-
term rates would be better under public ownership.  Seven people indicated public ownership 
would result in a lower future cost of capital for projects. 
 
Water Supply:  24 comments were received that reinforced that any change in ownership must also 
ensure sufficient water supply to meet future needs and the requirements of the Cease and Desist 
Order. 
 
Taxes v Rates:  Many commenters (12) suggested that the cost of a buy-out must be reflected in 
the rates and a separate tax-backed financing should be avoided at all costs. 
 
Quality of Service:  17 comments were received that suggested a buy-out must either improve 
service, provide the same quality service, and certainly no disruption in service. 
 
Four comments suggest that an acquisition of the water system is already feasible and just needs 
to be implemented. 
 
Desirability (Public Benefit) 
 
Local Control:  Overwhelmingly, 40 commenters felt local control, jobs, services, participation, 
leadership, etc was in the public interest. 
 
Profit:  Although somewhat ambiguous, 26 comments were received that getting rid of the profit 
motive in water delivery would be better. 
 
CPUC:  20 comments specifically said one of the primary benefits of a buy-out would removal of 
the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) from regulatory oversight. 
 
Transparency/Accountability: 12 comments indicated that there would be greater accountability 
and transparency (to consumers and regulators) under public ownership  
  
Environment:  14 comments suggested that public ownership would result in greater 
environmental stewardship. 
 
Rates:  13 comments indicate that public ownership will create greater “fairness” between 
residential and commercial rates. 
 

82



Analytical Methodology 
 
A number of commenters weighed in on how the analysis of feasibility should be conducted.  For 
example, an equal number of people (20 each) said the desalination plant should be included or 
excluded from the analysis, and 5 more suggested that it would be less expensive to build under 
public ownership.  There were 24 general comments on how to do the analysis. Other aspects 
receiving comments were identifying and informing the public about potential legal costs up-front 
(13), transparency and objectivity in the feasibility study process (10), accounting for PERS 
retirement benefits (8), including facility renewal and replacement costs (6), ensure low-income 
rates (4), and accounting for lost property tax revenue by the jurisdictions (3). 
 
A number of commenters requested that once the cost is known, another election should be held 
to move forward (8), or eminent domain should not be used (3). 
 
Six commenters said the District should establish its objectives for determining “feasible” up-
front. 
 
Ranking Sheets 
 
190 responsive ranking sheets of Measures of Feasibility and 189 for Measures of Desirability (see 
Exhibit 15-B) were returned.   In an interesting twist of the power of statistics, the average ranking 
of all 6 Measures of Feasibility was between 3.0 and 4.3.  The average ranking of all 7 Measures 
of Desirability was between 3.4 and 4.5.  In other words, almost as many people ranked a measure 
as their most important as ranked it as least important, and then ranked their intermediate criteria 
approximately the same. 
 
Some information from the ranking sheets can be gleaned by looking at the number of “most 
important” or “second most important” and “least important” rankings were received.  This is 
shown in the tables below:  

83



Rankings of Measures of Feasibility 
 

 Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Division 5 
Most 

Important 
Immediate 

Savings 
Can handle a 

slight 
increase in 

cost if 
cheaper over 

time 

Can handle a 
slight 

increase in 
cost if 

cheaper over 
time 

I may not 
save in first 

year, but 
future 

increases will 
be lower 

Can handle a 
slight 

increase in 
cost if 

cheaper over 
time 

Second 
Most 

Important 

Even if 
operating 

costs are the 
same, future 

capital 
projects will 
be cheaper 

Don’t care if 
there is 

savings until 
after debt 
paid off 

Don’t care if 
there is 

savings until 
after debt 
paid off 

Immediate 
Savings 

Immediate 
Savings 

Least 
Important 

Immediate 
Savings 

(tie) 
Immediate 

Savings  
 

Don’t care if 
there is 

savings until 
after debt 
paid off 

Immediate 
Savings 

Immediate 
Savings 

Don’t care if 
there is 

savings until 
after debt 
paid off 

 
 

Rankings of Measures of Desirability 
 

 Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Division 5 
Most 

Important 
Lower Costs Lower Costs Lower Costs Lower Costs Lower Costs 

Second 
Most 

Important 

Economy (tie) 
Economy 

 
Participation 

Economy Community 
Values 

Leadership 

Least 
Important 

Community 
Values 

Community 
Values 

Community 
Values 

(tie) 
Community 

Values 
 

Lower Costs 

Lower Costs 

 
Hence, even based on the most and least important criteria, the community is split. 
 
EXHIBITS 
15-A Example Agenda for Listening Sessions 
15-B Sample Ranking Sheets 
15-C Listening Session Presentation on Process 
15-D Written Comments Received 
                  U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ActionItems\15\Item-15.docx  

84



85



 
5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net  
 

EXHIBIT 15-A 

 
 

Board of Directors 
Molly Evans, Chair – 

Division 3 
Alvin Edwards, Vice Chair – 

Division 1 
George Riley – Division 2 
Jeanne Byrne – Division 4 

Gary Hoffmann – Division 5 
Mary Adams, Monterey 

County Board of 
Supervisors Representative 

Vacant  – Mayoral 
Representative 

 
General Manager 

David J. Stoldt 
 
 

 AGENDA 
 

LISTENING SESSION 
Division 5 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
****** 

January 15, 2019, 6 pm 
Seaside City Council Chambers   

 
 1. Welcome and Introductions – Gary D. Hoffmann, P.E., Director Division 5 
   
 2. Overview of process for development of feasibility study on public ownership of  

the Monterey Peninsula water system – David Stoldt, General Manager 
   
 3. Receive public comment – Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes 
   
 4. Review results from compilation of ranking sheets  
   
 5. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 

Listening Session Schedule – All Sessions Begin at 6 PM 
 

Division 1 - Monday, January 7, 2019 Seaside City Council Chambers, 440 Harcourt Ave, Seaside 

Division 2 - Tuesday, January 8, 2019 MPWMD Office, 5 Harris Court, Bldg. G, Monterey 

Division 3 - Wednesday, January 9, 2019 Monterey City Council Chambers, 580 Pacific, Monterey 

Division 4 - Thursday, January 10, 2019 Pacific Grove Council Chambers, 300 Forest Ave., Pacific Grove 

Division 5 - Tuesday, January 15, 2019 Carpenter Hall, Sunset Center, 9th Ave & San Carlos St., Carmel 
 
 
 

Upon request, MPWMD will make a reasonable effort to provide written agenda materials in 
appropriate alternative formats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, including 
auxiliary aids or services, to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public meetings.  
MPWMD will also make a reasonable effort to provide translation services upon request. Please 
send a description of the requested materials and preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or 
service by 5 pm on Thursday, January 3, 2019.  Requests should be sent to the Board Secretary, 
MPWMD, P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA, 93942.  You may also fax your request to the 
Administrative Services Division at 831-644-9560, or call 831-658-5600. 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ActionItems\15\Item-15-Exh-A.docx 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

86

http://www.mpwmd.net/


87



EXHIBIT 15-B 

 
Measures of Feasibility 

 
Please rank the following standards or measures of “feasible” from 1 to 7 
 1 = This is most important to me 
 7 = This is least important to me 
 

___   Savings immediately and every year thereafter 
 
___   Could freeze rates for 3 to 5 years before they start rising again 
 
___   I may not save in the first year, but the rate of future increases will 
be lower 
 
___   I can handle a slight increase in cost for a few years if it will be 
cheaper over the life 
 
___   I don’t care if there are savings until after the debt is paid off 
 
___   Even if all operating costs are the same, I know future capital 
projects will be cheaper 
 
___   Other - Please describe your other standard or measure of 
“feasible” below:  

88



Measures of Desirability (Public Benefit) 
 

Please rank the following standards or measures of “desirable” or public 
benefit from 1 to 8 
 1 = This is most important to me 
 8 = This is least important to me 
 
___   Cost – It will lead to lower costs 
 
___   Rates – Simpler, local, public process; easier to understand 
 
___   Participation – public hearings, accessibility, transparency 
 
___   Leadership – locally elected, greater accountability 
 
___   Service – Staffing and location of services will be local 
 
___   Economy – All rates and revenues stay locally 
 
___   Community Values – Will be reflected in policy and practices 
 
___   Other - Please describe your other standard or measure of 
“desirable” below: 
 
 

 

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ActionItems\15\Item-15-Exh-B.docx 

89



Rule 19.8
Ordinance 180
Implementation

Listening Sessions

January 2019

EXHIBIT 15-C 90



Rule 19.8 Deconstructed

A.  It shall be the policy of the District, 
if and when feasible, to secure and 
maintain public ownership of all water 
production, storage and delivery system 
assets and infrastructure providing 
services within its territory.

2

EXHIBIT 15-C 91



Rule 19.8 Deconstructed

B.  The District shall acquire through 
negotiation, or through eminent domain 
if necessary, all assets of California 
American Water, or any successor in 
interest to California American Water, 
for the benefit of the District as a whole.

3

EXHIBIT 15-C 92



Rule 19.8 Deconstructed

C.  The General Manager shall, within nine (9) months 
of the effective date of this Rule 19.8, complete and 
submit to the Board of Directors a written plan as to 
the means to adopt and implement the policy set forth 
in paragraph A, above. The plan shall address 
acquisition, ownership, and management of all water 
facilities and services within and outside the District, 
including water purchase agreements as appropriate. 
The plan may differentiate treatment of non-potable 
water services.

4

EXHIBIT 15-C 93



3‐Phase Process

Feasibility

Analysis

Right‐to‐
Take

Bench Trial

Valuation

Jury Trial

5

EXHIBIT 15-C 94



Feasibility vs. Other Concepts

Feasibility

Should this be 
a financial 

test?

▪ Objective

▪ Measurable

▪ Cost v Benefit

▪ Lifecycle

“Do‐ability”

Barriers or 
impediments 
to success?

▪ Legal challenge

▪ Managerial 
expertise

▪ Financing

Desirability

Why do it?  
Qualitative 

and 
intangibles

▪ Rate‐setting

▪ Public process

▪ Service

▪ Local revenue

6

EXHIBIT 15-C 95



Standards of Financial Feasibility

• Savings immediately and every year thereafter

• Could freeze rates for 3 to 5 years before they start rising again

• I may not save in the first year, but the rate of future increases will be 
lower

• I can handle a slight increase in cost for a few years if it will be cheaper 
over the life

• I don’t care if there are savings until after the debt is paid off

• Even if all operating costs are the same, I know future capital projects 
will be cheaper

• Others? 7

EXHIBIT 15-C 96



Standards of Desirability – In the Public Benefit

• Cost – It will lead to lower costs

• Rates – Simpler, local, public process; easier to understand

• Participation – public hearings, accessibility, transparency

• Leadership – locally elected, greater accountability

• Service – Staffing and location of services will be local

• Economy – All rates and revenues stay locally

• Community Values – Will be reflected in policy and practices

• Others?
8

EXHIBIT 15-C 97



Determining Financial Feasibility

Valuation • RCNLD, Income Approach, Market Approach

Convert

To Debt

• Tax‐exempt financing secured 
by rates

Cost of 
Service 
Model

• Substitute for Cal‐Am 
Return & Taxes

9

EXHIBIT 15-C 98



Financial Feasibility – Additional Costs?

• Transaction Costs add to Valuation
Examples: Legal, investment banking

• Severance Damages add to Valuation
Examples: Stays in Monterey to serve 
others, regulatory assets, sunk costs, 
“going concern” loss

• Transition Expenses affect both Valuation and 
Cost of Service

Examples: Billing system, call center, 
building space, salary and benefits

• Such costs are difficult to estimate 10

EXHIBIT 15-C 99



Cost of Service Comparison

 ‐

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

 70,000,000

O&M

Purchased Water Cost

Depreciation

General Taxes

Property Taxes

Income Taxes

Debt and Equity Return

Cal‐Am 
Ownership

Public 
Ownership

Public 
Ownership 

with 
Savings

Assumes 
$400 million, 
30‐years, 
4.50%

11

EXHIBIT 15-C 100



Financial Feasibility – Rates v. Revenue Requirement

• If total cost of service (Revenue Requirement) is reduced 
it is “feasible”

• Rate structure may change, hence Tier 1 rates could go up 
even if revenue requirement goes down

• May want to leave then‐existing rate structure in place for 
ease of comparison

• Rates will be subject to Prop 218 (no low‐income 
subsidies, tiers must be justified, commercial divisions 
questionable)

12

EXHIBIT 15-C 101



Determining Financial Feasibility – Experts Needed

Valuation
• Valuation Specialist

• Investor‐Owned Utility Expert

• Eminent Domain Attorney

Convert

To Debt

• Investment Banker

• Bond Counsel

Cost of 
Service 
Model

• Cost of Service Modeler

• Investor‐Owned Utility 
Expert

• Prop 218 Attorney

13

EXHIBIT 15-C 102



Schedule

Item

January 7‐10, 15 Public “listening sessions”

Week of January 7 Distribute RFQs to Consultants

February 13 Consultant proposals due

February 21 Approve consultant contracts

July 26 Draft consultant work product due

August 27 District “Plan” target

14

EXHIBIT 15-C 103



“Listening Sessions”

• Dates
Division 1 – Monday, January 7 ‐ Seaside City Council Chambers
Division 2 – Tuesday, January 8 – MPWMD conference room
Division 3 – Wednesday, January 9 – Monterey City Council Chambers
Division 4 – Thursday, January 10 – Pacific Grove Council Chambers
Division 5 – Tuesday, January 15 – Carpenter Hall, Sunset Center Carmel

• Ranking Sheets

• Public Comment

• Questions?

15

U:\dstoldt\Board Items and Exhibits\2019\1-23\Exhibit 15-C.pdf

EXHIBIT 15-C 104



105



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942‐0085 

831‐658‐5600        Fax  831‐644‐9560        http://www.mpwmd.net 

 

 
Correspondence Dated January 4, 2019 through January 16, 2019 

 
Process for Development of Feasibility Study on Public Ownership 

of the Monterey Peninsula Water System 
 

Page Name Date 
1 Alison Jones-Pomatto 1/9/2019 
2 Alexanne Mills 1/4/2019 
3 Chuck Cech 1/9/2019 
8 Dennis Allion 1/9/2019 

10 David Beach 1/4/2019 
15 Jon Hill 1/9/2019 
20 John Magill 1/10/2019 
21 Mary Ann Carbone 1/9/2019 
23 Mac J Del Piero 1/9/2019 
68 Mike Lino 1/11/2019 
71 Marli Melton 1/9/2019 
72 Pat Venza 1/9/2019 
73 Thomas Reeves 1/9/2019 
75 Tim Sanders 1/8/2019 
79 Alan Estrada 1/16/2019 
80 Anna Thompson 1/15/2019 
81 Barbara Evans 1/15/2019 
82 Brian LeNeve 1/15/2019 
84 Bob McGinley 1/15/2019 
86 Bob McKenzie 1/14/2019 
88 Graham and Carter Filion 1/14/2019 
89 Greg Thompson 1/16/2019 
90 Helga Fellay 1/14/2019 
94 John Sherry 1/15/2019 
95 Jacquelyn Woodward 1/14/2019 
96 Lorin Letendre 1/15/2019 
97 Melodie Chrislock 1/15/2019 

103 Mark Eckles 1/15/2019 
107 Peter Hiller 1/12/2019 
108 Robert Ellis 1/16/2019 
110 Russell Eisberry 1/12/2019 
112 Tim Smith 1/15/2019 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 15-D
106



1

Arlene Tavani

From: alison jones-pomatto <ajonespomatto@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 9, 2019 8:55 AM
To: Comments
Subject: Feasibility study 

What the feasibility of public water means to me is that there will be a significant financial savings within five years.  The 
costs to buy out Cal‐Am must not add to what we’re paying for our current water bills, whether directly or indirectly 
through a parcel fee.  
It also means that there is an identifiable water source that will be sufficient for the residential and agricultural interests 
of Monterey county, allowing for minimal growth.  I remember water rationing and do not want to go back to that place. 
I am a firm believer in water conservation and use as little as I possibly can.  I want to be certain that basic conservation, 
not sacrifice, will be enough to fulfill the area’s water needs for years to come. 

Alison Jones‐Pomatto 
895 Balboa Avenue 
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

EXHIBIT 15-D
107



From: Alexanne Mills
To: Comments
Subject: Measure J Feasibility Study Comments
Date: Friday, January 4, 2019 6:20:08 PM

Regarding Measure J, and public ownership of our water system, “feasible” means honestly
looking at the state of American Water in general and CalAm specifically, regarding their
huge profits as private owners and comparing that to owning our own system. The fact that we
are paying the highest, if not one of the highest, water rates in the nation does more than prove
the point! 

The many studies done to date show, without a doubt, that we can do much better for our
people as a public company than a private one. I believe that about 87% of the US has public
water and that most of the systems are well managed. We have the expertise to do a good job,
and need to have the will to make it happen. 

To me, the “feasibility” of changing to public water has already been proven and needs to be
implemented. The costs of making this happen will more than pay for themselves. CalAm has
been taking us to the cleaners.

Alexanne Mills 831-917-5390
60 Del Mesa Carmel
Carmel, CA 93923

Thank you for sharing your thoughts regarding the Water Management District’s Feasibility
Study. Your participation in this exercise is critical for a thorough and comprehensive process.

We are asking you to please try to answer the following questions: 
• What does “feasible” mean to you?
• Which measure of “feasibility” is most important to you?
• What do you see are the benefits of a publicly owned water system?
You may expand your thoughts of course, but we ask that you address these questions.

Thank you!

Water Management District Staff

EXHIBIT 15-D
108

mailto:alexannemills@me.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


THERE MAY BE 386 MILLION REASONS WHY 
MONTEREY RATEPAYER SHOULD REPLACE CAL AM! 

THE PUBLIC SHOULD BUILD AND OWN THE $320 MILLION 
MONTEREY PENINSULA DESALINATION SYSTEM 

Submitted by Chuck Cech at 1/9/19 Listening Session on 
Rule 19.8 - Feasibility Study

EXHIBIT 15-D
109



CAL PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 
CAPITAL STRUCTURE SETS THE  
CAL AM RATE OF RETURN ON 

EQUITY AND DEBT 

DURING THE YEARS 2018 - 2020
CAL  AM’S  OVERALL  RATE OF  RETURN

IS  SET  BY  THE CPUC AT  7 .61%

EXHIBIT 15-D
110



HOW MUCH WILL THE $320,000,000 
DESAL SYSTEM REALLY COST

IF CAL AM BUILDS AND OWNS IT, 
THE 30 YEARS COST TO CUSTOMERS 

AT 7.61% WOULD BE 

$814,190,040
(NOT INCLUDING OPERATION AND MAINTAINANCE)

EXHIBIT 15-D
111



IF A PUBLIC ENTITY BUILDS AND OWNS, 
THE DESALINATION SYSTEM 

THE 30 YEAR COST USING 2% CWSRF 

WE WILL PAY

$427,601,632 
,

REASON TO PREPLACE CAL AM 
$386,558,408 SAVINGS

EXHIBIT 15-D
112



PSSSST!
THERE IS ALSO A REAL POSSIBILITY OF 
STATE AND FEDERAL GRANTS HELPING   

PAY FOR OUR 
PUBLIC OWNED WATER SYSTEMS

EXHIBIT 15-D
113



From: Dave Stoldt
To: Arlene Tavani
Subject: Fwd: Written input for definition of FEASIBLE
Date: Thursday, January 10, 2019 1:10:57 AM

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Dennis Allion <dennisallion@sbcglobal.net>
Date: January 9, 2019 at 6:59:19 PM PST
To: "dstoldt@mpwmd.net" <dstoldt@mpwmd.net>, George Riley
<georgetriley@gmail.com>, "water@mollyevans.org" <water@mollyevans.org>,
"jcbarchfaia@att.net" <jcbarchfaia@att.net>
Cc: Alison Kerr <alison4dro@gmail.com>, Dino Pick
<citymanager@delreyoaks.org>, John Gaglioti <jsgaglioti@yahoo.com>
Subject: Written input for definition of FEASIBLE
Reply-To: Dennis Allion <dennisallion@sbcglobal.net>

Dear Board members and David, 

I wanted to add a few thoughts to those I shared with you last night.

First is to clarify a few facts I threw out about my water bill. I looked back
to 2003 through 2018 at the bills and found that anywhere from 23 to 43
percent of our bills were for surcharges, taxes, water project, conservation
projects, something called a General Expenses Balancing Account
surcharge, WRAM and other stuff. The actual cost to me of the water over
that 16 year span was 69% of my bill, the other 31% was for all these
other things. The cost per gallon, with all charges included was .8 cents in
2003 to currently 2.1 cents per gallon; this turns out to be approximately
6% annual increases and includes things like the dam removal and the
biggest element is the Water Revenue Adjustment Mechanism (WRAM)
(which is a CPUC approved way of letting CALAM recover revenues lost
due to conservation efforts; intended to recognize that there are fixed cost
and the rates were based on a higher volume of water deliveries). I hope
that part of the study will be directed toward determining if we can
eliminate the WRAM by public ownership.

The measure justly calls for an objective feasibility study by independent
experts. The word objective is very important for the Water Management
District Board as it will have the final say, not the voting rate payers – we
have effectively put our trust and water future in your hands. Last night I
implored that you objectively look at the numbers that will be generated by
the studies; understand the risks associated with the assumptions made
by the company or companies conducting the various studies required and

EXHIBIT 15-D
114

mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net
mailto:Arlene@mpwmd.net
mailto:dennisallion@sbcglobal.net
mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net
mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net
mailto:georgetriley@gmail.com
mailto:water@mollyevans.org
mailto:water@mollyevans.org
mailto:jcbarchfaia@att.net
mailto:jcbarchfaia@att.net
mailto:alison4dro@gmail.com
mailto:citymanager@delreyoaks.org
mailto:jsgaglioti@yahoo.com
mailto:dennisallion@sbcglobal.net


objectively decide what is the proper course of action. 

While you may be considering this, I want to emphasize that not only must
any water company (public or private) recover all it’s operating cost it must
also plan for and collect funds to perform ongoing capital improvements,
equipment and pipeline replacement. This must be an essential part of the
feasibility studies. 

The buyout becomes more confusing when the issue of the possible (or
probable?) desalinization plant is thrown in.  I believe we truly do need the
additional water primarily due to the growing possibility of extended
drought periods.  The decision to include the potential plant capital
expense in the feasibility study needs to be made - perhaps as a second
scenario. 

Last comment - as a 70 year old I am not going to be too excited about a
buyout if it means that our water bills will be lower than what we would be
paying a private sector company but only 30 years from now - I will never
see the lower prices. 

As has been eloquently stated by Paul Bruno, Measure J was passed by
people who expect future water provided under public ownership will be
more "affordable" than water provided by California American Water.  That
is a great and desirable expectation. The measure requires a feasibility
study prior to any action taken to proceed with actions to purchase the
water system by the public. All good except for the word feasible – which
you are seeking definitions for.  Thank you for asking.

Sincerely
Dennis Allion

EXHIBIT 15-D
115



EXHIBIT 15-D
116



EXHIBIT 15-D
117



EXHIBIT 15-D
118



EXHIBIT 15-D
119



EXHIBIT 15-D
120



Submitted by Jon Hill at 1/9/2019 Listening Session on
Rule 19.8 - Feasibility Study

EXHIBIT 15-D
121



From: Dave Stoldt
To: Arlene Tavani
Subject: FW: Monterey Listening Session Follow-up
Date: Thursday, January 10, 2019 12:06:33 PM
Attachments: Social Security Windfall Elimination Provision.pdf

More correspondence.
 
 
 
From: Jon Hill <dr.jon.hill@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 10, 2019 10:57 AM
To: alvinedwards420@gmail.com; rileyforwaterdistrict@gmail.com; water@mollyevans.org;
jcbarchfaia@att.net; gqhwd1000@gmail.com; district5@co.monterey.ca.us; Dave Stoldt
<dstoldt@mpwmd.net>
Subject: Monterey Listening Session Follow-up
 
January 10, 2019
 
To:       Dave Stoldt, General Manager
            Molly Evans, Chair
            Members of the MPWMD Board
From:   Jon Hill, resident, New Monterey

Re:       Measure J Feasibility Listening Session Follow-up

This follows my comments last evening at the Monterey Listening Session.
 
First, thank you for making the investment in time to listen to the input from the community. I
appreciate your carefully planned strategy. I hope it serves us all well later.
 
This email is to further clarify the impact of bringing workers who are paying Social Security into a
government organization where employees become members of CalPERS. It is the agency’s decision
whether to have employees pay into both Social Security and CalPERS, or to pay only into CalPERS. I
understand from Mr. Stoldt’s comments last night that MPWMD has the latter arrangement.
 
Social Security retirees who have “substantial earnings” (greater than $24,675) from work where
they did not pay social security are significantly penalized under the “Windfall Elimination Provision”.
The two-page Social Security documentation is attached as a PDF to this email.
 
Let me describe how this works.
I initially worked in Washington and Oregon where I paid into Social Security. Then I worked under
California State Teacher’s Retirement System (CalSTRS) which is similar to CalPERS. I worked for 19+
years. Then, I moved to Oregon where I paid into Social Security. I worked there 17 years. Then I
moved back to California and worked for County of Monterey where I paid into both Social Security
and Cal PERS.
 

EXHIBIT 15-D
122

mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net
mailto:Arlene@mpwmd.net



(over)SocialSecurity.gov
Windfall Elimination Provision


Your Social Security retirement or 
disability benefits can be reduced
The Windfall Elimination Provision can affect how we 
calculate your retirement or disability benefit. If you 
work for an employer who doesn’t withhold Social 
Security taxes from your salary, such as a government 
agency or an employer in another country, any 
retirement or disability pension you get from that work 
can reduce your Social Security benefits.


When your benefits can be affected
This provision can affect you when you earn a 
retirement or disability pension from an employer who 
didn’t withhold Social Security taxes and you qualify 
for Social Security retirement or disability benefits from 
work in other jobs for which you did pay taxes.


The Windfall Elimination Provision can apply if:
• You reached 62 after 1985; or


• You became disabled after 1985; and


• You first became eligible for a monthly pension based 
on work where you didn’t pay Social Security taxes after 
1985. This rule applies even if you’re still working.


This provision also affects Social Security benefits for 
people who performed federal service under the Civil 
Service Retirement System (CSRS) after 1956. We 
won’t reduce your Social Security benefit amounts if 
you only performed federal service under a system 
such as the Federal Employees’ Retirement System 
(FERS). Social Security taxes are withheld for workers 
under FERS.


How it works
Social Security benefits are intended to replace only 
some of a worker’s pre-retirement earnings.


We base your Social Security benefit on your average 
monthly earnings adjusted for average wage growth. 
We separate your average earnings into three 
amounts and multiply the amounts using three factors 
to compute your full Primary Insurance Amount (PIA). 
For example, for a worker who turns 62 in 2019, the 
first $926 of average monthly earnings is multiplied 
by 90 percent; earnings between $926 and $5,583 by 
32 percent; and the balance by 15 percent. The sum 
of the three amounts equals the PIA which is then 
decreased or increased depending on whether the 


worker starts benefits before or after full retirement 
age (FRA). This formula produces the monthly 
payment amount.


When we apply this formula, the percentage of career 
average earnings paid to lower-paid workers is greater 
than higher-paid workers. For example, workers 
age 62 in 2019, with average earnings of $3,000 
per month could receive a benefit at FRA of $1,497 
(approximately 49 percent) of their pre-retirement 
earnings increased by applicable cost of living 
adjustments (COLAs). For a worker with average 
earnings of $8,000 per month, the benefit starting 
at FRA could be $2,686 (approximately 33 percent) 
plus COLAs. However, if either of these workers start 
benefits earlier, we’ll reduce their monthly benefit.


Why we use a different formula
Before 1983, people whose primary job wasn’t 
covered by Social Security had their Social Security 
benefits calculated as if they were long-term, low-wage 
workers. They had the advantage of receiving a Social 
Security benefit representing a higher percentage of 
their earnings, plus a pension from a job for which 
they didn’t pay Social Security taxes. Congress 
passed the Windfall Elimination Provision to remove 
that advantage.


Under the provision, we reduce the 90 percent factor 
in our formula and phase it in for workers who reached 
age 62 or became disabled between 1986 and 1989. 
For people who reach 62 or became disabled in 1990 
or later, we reduce the 90 percent factor to as little as 
40 percent.


Some exceptions
The Windfall Elimination Provision doesn’t apply if:
• You’re a federal worker first hired after 


December 31, 1983;


• You’re an employee of a non-profit organization who 
was first hired after December 31, 1983;


• Your only pension is for railroad employment;


• The only work you performed for which you didn’t 
pay Social Security taxes was before 1957; or


• You have 30 or more years of substantial earnings 
under Social Security.


Windfall Elimination Provision


2019



https://www.youtube.com/user/SocialSecurityOnline

https://twitter.com/socialsecurity

https://www.facebook.com/socialsecurity/

http://www.socialsecurity.gov





Printed on recycled paper


The Windfall Elimination Provision doesn’t apply to 
survivors benefits. We may reduce spouses, widows, 
or widowers benefits because of another law. For 
more information, read Government Pension Offset 
(Publication No. 05-10007).


Social Security years of substantial earnings
If you have 30 or more years of substantial earnings, 
we don’t reduce the standard 90 percent factor in 
our formula. See the first table that lists substantial 
earnings for each year.


The second table shows the percentage used to 
reduce the 90 percent factor depending on the number 
of years of substantial earnings. If you have 21 to 29 
years of substantial earnings, we reduce the 90 percent 
factor to between 45 and 85 percent. To see the 
maximum amount we could reduce your benefit, visit 
www.socialsecurity.gov/planners/retire/wep-chart.html.


A guarantee
The law protects you if you get a low pension. We 
won’t reduce your Social Security benefit by more than 
half of your pension for earnings after 1956 on which 
you didn’t pay Social Security taxes.


Contacting Social Security 
The most convenient way to contact us anytime, 
anywhere is to visit www.socialsecurity.gov. 
There, you can: apply for benefits; open a my 
Social Security account, which you can use to review 
your Social Security Statement, verify your earnings, 
print a benefit verification letter, change your direct 
deposit information, request a replacement Medicare 
card, and get a replacement SSA-1099/1042S; obtain 
valuable information; find publications; get answers to 
frequently asked questions; and much more. 


If you don’t have access to the internet, we offer many 
automated services by telephone, 24 hours a day, 7 
days a week. Call us toll-free at 1-800-772-1213 or 
at our TTY number, 1-800-325-0778, if you’re deaf or 
hard of hearing. 


If you need to speak to a person, we can answer your 
calls from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
We ask for your patience during busy periods since 
you may experience a higher than usual rate of busy 
signals and longer hold times to speak to us. We look 
forward to serving you.


Social Security Administration
Publication No. 05-10045 | ICN 460275 | Unit of Issue — HD (one hundred)


January 2019 (Recycle prior editions)
Windfall Elimination Provision


Produced and published at U.S. taxpayer expense


Years of substantial 
earnings Percentage


30 or more 90 percent
29 85 percent
28 80 percent
27 75 percent
26 70 percent
25 65 percent
24 60 percent
23 55 percent
22 50 percent
21 45 percent
20 or less 40 percent


Year Substantial earnings
1937–1954 $900
1955–1958 $1,050
1959–1965 $1,200
1966–1967 $1,650
1968–1971 $1,950
1972 $2,250
1973 $2,700
1974 $3,300
1975 $3,525
1976 $3,825
1977 $4,125
1978 $4,425
1979 $4,725
1980 $5,100
1981 $5,550
1982 $6,075
1983 $6,675
1984 $7,050
1985 $7,425
1986 $7,875
1987 $8,175
1988 $8,400
1989 $8,925
1990 $9,525
1991 $9,900


Year Substantial earnings
1992 $10,350
1993 $10,725
1994 $11,250
1995 $11,325
1996 $11,625
1997 $12,150
1998 $12,675
1999 $13,425
2000 $14,175
2001 $14,925
2002 $15,750
2003 $16,125
2004 $16,275
2005 $16,725
2006 $17,475
2007 $18,150
2008 $18,975
2009–2011 $19,800
2012 $20,475
2013 $21,075
2014 $21,750
2015-2016 $22,050
2017 $23,625
2018 $23,850
2019 $24,675



https://www.socialsecurity.gov/pubs/EN-05-10007.pdf

https://www.socialsecurity.gov/pubs/EN-05-10007.pdf

http://www.socialsecurity.gov/planners/retire/wep-chart.html

http://www.socialsecurity.gov

https://www.socialsecurity.gov/myaccount/

https://www.socialsecurity.gov/myaccount/

https://www.socialsecurity.gov/pubs/

https://faq.ssa.gov/

https://faq.ssa.gov/



		Your Social Security retirement or disability benefits can be reduced

		When your benefits can be affected

		How it works

		Why we use a different formula

		Some exceptions

		Social Security years of substantial earnings

		A guarantee

		Contacting Social Security 





Please look at the second page of the PDF, the chart on the bottom right side. According to Social
Security, I now have a total of 29 years of substantial earnings paid into Social Security. Therefore,
my monthly pension from Social Security is 85% of what it would otherwise be. I could work one
more year an receive 90%, but there is no way that I can get the full 100% of my pension based on
the payments I made into the system.
 
My wife’s history is similar. She worked approximately 35 years under CalSTRS with 10 years in
Oregon where she paid into Social Security. Her pension is 40% of what it would be otherwise would
be for someone paying similarly into Social Security.
 
I believe this poses a significant problem for the employees of CalAM. My understanding is that they
pay into Social Security but if they come to work for MPWMD, they will pay only into CalPERS. After
earning $24,675 or more from MPWMD and upon retirement, those employees will lose not less
than 10% of their Social Security pension, and perhaps as much as 40%. Even with the benefits of a
CalPERS pension, they will experience significant loss of retirement income.
 
As I understand the system, if MPWMD modified its agreement with CalPERS, and deducted both
Social Security and CalPERS, then those same employees would continue paying into Social Security
and not experience the loss.
 
I am not a lawyer nor a CPA. There may be gaps in my understanding that are worth exploring.
However, this is the kind of detrimental effects that I believe MPWMD must carefully include within
the scope of their feasibility study to ensure that employees are not harmed.
 
With more than 50 years of experience in government, and as a current MPUSD school board
member, I encourage you to consider carefully the cost of CalPERS to the system. Mr. Stoldt stated
that the 2012 CalPERS adjustment reduces MPWMD’s liability. That is not MPUSD’s experience. The
school district board has already made significant changes in programs and offerings with very
strong evidence that the growing cost of retirement programs will outstrip any increases in
revenues. Again, this kind of known financial issue must be carefully included within the scope of the
district’s feasibility study.
 
Thank you for your service to the community.
--
Jon Hill
831 737 2374

EXHIBIT 15-D
123



(over)SocialSecurity.gov
Windfall Elimination Provision

Your Social Security retirement or 

The Windfall Elimination Provision can affect how we 

work for an employer who doesn’t withhold Social 
Security taxes from your salary, such as a government 
agency or an employer in another country, any 
retirement or disability pension you get from that work 

This provision can affect you when you earn a 
retirement or disability pension from an employer who 
didn’t withhold Social Security taxes and you qualify 

The Windfall Elimination Provision can apply if:

• You reached 62 after 1985; or

• You became disabled after 1985; and

• 
on work where you didn’t pay Social Security taxes after 

people who performed federal service under the Civil 

you only performed federal service under a system 
such as the Federal Employees’ Retirement System 

How it works

We separate your average earnings into three 
amounts and multiply the amounts using three factors 

For example, for a worker who turns 62 in 2019, the 

decreased or increased depending on whether the 

When we apply this formula, the percentage of career 
average earnings paid to lower-paid workers is greater 

earnings increased by applicable cost of living 

covered by Social Security had their Social Security 

their earnings, plus a pension from a job for which 

passed the Windfall Elimination Provision to remove 

Under the provision, we reduce the 90 percent factor 
in our formula and phase it in for workers who reached 

For people who reach 62 or became disabled in 1990 
or later, we reduce the 90 percent factor to as little as 

Some exceptions
The Windfall Elimination Provision doesn’t apply if:

• 

• 

• Your only pension is for railroad employment;

• The only work you performed for which you didn’t 

• 

2019
EXHIBIT 15-D

124



Printed on recycled paper

The Windfall Elimination Provision doesn’t apply to 

more information, read Government Pension Offset 

we don’t reduce the standard 90 percent factor in 

The second table shows the percentage used to 
reduce the 90 percent factor depending on the number 

years of substantial earnings, we reduce the 90 percent 

www.socialsecurity.gov/planners/retire/wep-chart.html.

half of your pension for earnings after 1956 on which 

The most convenient way to contact us anytime, 
anywhere is to visit www.socialsecurity.gov

my 
Social Security account, which you can use to review 
your Social Security Statement, verify your earnings, 

deposit information, request a replacement Medicare 

valuable information; ; get answers to 
frequently asked questions

1-800-772-1213 or 
at our TTY number, 1-800-325-0778, if you’re deaf or 

We ask for your patience during busy periods since 
you may experience a higher than usual rate of busy 

Social Security Administration

January 2019 (Recycle prior editions)
Windfall Elimination Provision

Years of substantial 
earnings Percentage

90 percent
29 85 percent
28 80 percent

26
25 65 percent

60 percent
55 percent

22 50 percent
21
20 or less

Year Substantial earnings

1980
1981
1982

1985
1986

1988
1989
1990
1991

Year Substantial earnings
1992

1995
1996

1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

2005
2006

2008

2012

2015-2016

2018
2019

EXHIBIT 15-D
125



From: john magill
To: Comments
Subject: Measure J what is feasible
Date: Thursday, January 10, 2019 11:56:31 AM

submitted by John Magill, P.O. Box 538, Pacific Grove, CA

I have three concerns pertinent to the question of the feasibility of a public takeover of
California American Water.
 
1)  Certainly any takeover needs to realize lower water costs for all users.  This was a central
tenant of the advocate’s campaign.  These lower costs must be implemented immediately and
not at some future imagined date.  And they must be consequential because the public
takeover involves some risk and the benefits of lower rates must be substantial enough to
engage in this risk.  I would propose that anything less than 15% is not worth the effort or risk
of a takeover.
 
2)  A feasibility study must look at the existing CalAm infrastructure and the forward costs of
maintaining and improving that infrastructure.  Recent road repair work has exposed water
pipes that are substandard.  Perhaps no one knows the extent of substandard water delivery
infrastructure but a capital improvement fund must be a part of a pro forma budget that would
deliver the rate savings noted in #1.
 
3)  I have no expertise in municipal finances but I’m aware that debt encumbrances affect
bond ratings and further borrowing capacities.  Nothing in this takeover should result in
limitations or costs for other non-related borrowing.  

EXHIBIT 15-D
126

mailto:magill1028@gmail.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


Submitted by Mary Ann Carbone at 1/9/2019
Listening Session re Rule 19.8 - Feasibility Study

EXHIBIT 15-D
127



EXHIBIT 15-D
128



Submitted by Marc J Del Piero at
1/9/19 Listening Session re Rule 
19.8 - Feasibility Study

EXHIBIT 15-D
129



EXHIBIT 15-D
130



EXHIBIT 15-D
131



EXHIBIT 15-D
132



EXHIBIT 15-D
133



EXHIBIT 15-D
134



EXHIBIT 15-D
135



EXHIBIT 15-D
136



EXHIBIT 15-D
137



EXHIBIT 15-D
138



EXHIBIT 15-D
139



EXHIBIT 15-D
140



EXHIBIT 15-D
141



EXHIBIT 15-D
142



EXHIBIT 15-D
143



EXHIBIT 15-D
144



EXHIBIT 15-D
145



EXHIBIT 15-D
146



EXHIBIT 15-D
147



EXHIBIT 15-D
148



EXHIBIT 15-D
149



EXHIBIT 15-D
150



EXHIBIT 15-D
151



EXHIBIT 15-D
152



EXHIBIT 15-D
153



EXHIBIT 15-D
154



EXHIBIT 15-D
155



EXHIBIT 15-D
156



EXHIBIT 15-D
157



EXHIBIT 15-D
158



EXHIBIT 15-D
159



EXHIBIT 15-D
160



EXHIBIT 15-D
161



EXHIBIT 15-D
162



EXHIBIT 15-D
163



EXHIBIT 15-D
164



EXHIBIT 15-D
165



EXHIBIT 15-D
166



EXHIBIT 15-D
167



EXHIBIT 15-D
168



EXHIBIT 15-D
169



EXHIBIT 15-D
170



EXHIBIT 15-D
171



EXHIBIT 15-D
172



EXHIBIT 15-D
173



From: Stephanie Locke
To: Arlene Tavani
Subject: Fwd: Input Re public takeover of Cal-Am
Date: Friday, January 11, 2019 7:33:03 AM

Hi,

He replied just me. This is an amendment to his previous comment.

Steph

Begin forwarded message:

From: "mikelino2u@juno.com" <mikelino2u@juno.com>
Date: January 11, 2019 at 6:52:02 AM PST
To: <locke@mpwmd.net>
Subject: Re: Input Re public takeover of Cal-Am

Hello Stephanie,
Hope you can add a missing word (dedicate) in the top line of the last
paragraph.
Also please call me "Michael". I don't use my academic title, except
when I feel I need to "impress" the readers in favor of my argument.
Thanks for your help.  Michael 
 
 
---------- Original Message ----------
From: Stephanie Locke <locke@mpwmd.net>
To: "mikelino2u@juno.com" <mikelino2u@juno.com>
Subject: Re: Input Re public takeover of Cal-Am
Date: Thu, 10 Jan 2019 22:56:50 +0000

 
Dr. Lubic,
 
Thank you for your comments.
 
Kind regards,
 
Stephanie Locke

On Jan 9, 2019, at 10:49 PM, "mikelino2u@juno.com" <mikelino2u@juno.com>
wrote:

EXHIBIT 15-D
174

mailto:locke@mpwmd.net
mailto:Arlene@mpwmd.net
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:locke@mpwmd.net
mailto:locke@mpwmd.net
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com


---------- Forwarded Message ----------
From: "mikelino2u@juno.com" <mikelino2u@juno.com>
To: comments@mpwmd.net
Subject: Input Re public takeover of Cal-Am
Date: Thu, 10 Jan 2019 06:37:53 GMT

 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT]
Input: Feasibility study listening session
 
 
1. Meaning of "Feasibility"
 
In the context of the designated study, the "F word" signifies a fact-
based overview and analysis of the multifaceted water management
functions and itemized comparison with the Cal-Am performance
record in order to assess the proposed public agency's ability to more
successfully manage the same and do so at the lower water rates to
the local consumers.
 
A number of caveats should be integral to the methodology if the
study is to be performed in a fair and objective manner. It is of
paramount importance that the study be an honest, fact-based effort
and include relevant projections of the future water rates following
the trajectory of rate increases under Cal-Am in the past so that valid
figures are used when compared with those anticipated under public
management. Special attention should be paid to the water
conservation function, stewardship being an essential element for
responsible management of this precious resource. Equally
significant is the financial impact of the transition of water
management on the local economy, the possibility of public financing
for the benefit of the local economy and the like. Accordingly, the
methodology ought to combine fact-finding and impartial
examination of the historical record in order to furnish valid baselines
for the conclusion to be made. Put simply, the study ought to provide
the grounds for the choice between the public management of water
resources at cost or continuation of the status quo, namely water
management by a for-profit monopoly corporation.
 
2. Most Important Measure of "Feasibility"
 
Selection of a single measure of feasibility (considering the
complexities around water, as a resource, and the fundamental
difference in purpose and emphasis that guide private business as
opposed to the public agencies) is pretty much an academic exercise.
To comply with the question, however, I would choose the financial
and conservation aspects as the most inclusive. They would generally
answer the questions of whether we can afford to pay for it and for

EXHIBIT 15-D
175

mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:mikelino2u@juno.com
mailto:comments@mpwmd.net


how long there'll be water... to drink.
 
3. Benefits of a Publicly Owned Water System
 
Without the overarching burden to realize the highest levels of profit,
a public agency would be mandated to dedicate all its resources to the
pursuit of objectives emanating from the customer-centered system
and, in consequence, be evaluated by standards of efficient
management, solid engineering, effective public education, good
stewardship, and distribution of water. 
Recognizing water as a precondition for life on our planet, it is fair to
conclude that water ought to be treated with spacial care,and not  just
like  another commodity. The best illustration was furnished by Cal-
Am dealing with successful water conservation results 2 years ago.
Cal-Am added $20. of monthly surcharge per customer because
"people did not consume enough."
 
Michael Lubic, Ph.D.
208 chestnut St.
Pacific Grove
(831)373-6968

____________________________________________________________
Judge Judy Steps Down After 23 Years Over This
Controversy
glancence-hality.com
http://thirdpartyoffers.juno.com/TGL3132/5c36e86dc3603686d441fst02vuc

EXHIBIT 15-D
176

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fthirdpartyoffers.juno.com%2fTGL3132%2f5c36e86dc3603686d441fst02vuc&c=E,1,rDKq01hFs8zwBKO1rrcm1YiBLr_8kiYvygKZvZxU5I9Gb9zPL8H-Lg3GKb10oc32ga9tyhSozCDUKrIl14jYBSC8UqkEL6_stbg01BK90eK3KKKcFbMmpFJPMQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fthirdpartyoffers.juno.com%2fTGL3132%2f5c36e86dc3603686d441fst02vuc&c=E,1,rDKq01hFs8zwBKO1rrcm1YiBLr_8kiYvygKZvZxU5I9Gb9zPL8H-Lg3GKb10oc32ga9tyhSozCDUKrIl14jYBSC8UqkEL6_stbg01BK90eK3KKKcFbMmpFJPMQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fthirdpartyoffers.juno.com%2fTGL3132%2f5c36e86dc3603686d441fst02vuc&c=E,1,rDKq01hFs8zwBKO1rrcm1YiBLr_8kiYvygKZvZxU5I9Gb9zPL8H-Lg3GKb10oc32ga9tyhSozCDUKrIl14jYBSC8UqkEL6_stbg01BK90eK3KKKcFbMmpFJPMQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fthirdpartyoffers.juno.com%2fTGL3132%2f5c36e86dc3603686d441fst02vuc&c=E,1,uOBXrsGaVDZxs_yQaujQb2uOa4Bnx_4zoZd1rWmQkwvrOsGTWfPrkqeVswavXfbWwiH64B5Lcr_mT2wi-PH3HzTXr06X0IYehKuD233uRDQ,&typo=1


January 9, 2019 
 

Dear Board Members and Staff of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District,  
 

Thank you for requesting public input about feasibility.  An acquisition of Cal Am needs to be financially 
feasible and beneficial for local residents.  I think it will be financially feasible if:  
• We can buy out Cal Am  in 30 years or less by issuing bonds and paying them off with income 

generated by a nonprofit, publicly owned water company.   
• The portion of income used for bond payments consists primarily of the portion of revenues 

historically used for Cal-Am's  expenses such as payments to shareholders, taxes, expenses of non-
local operations, and other items and payments not needed to maintain and operate the facilities 
of a local, publicly owned nonprofit water provider.   

• Note that, as a nonprofit, the district could potentially finance bonds at lower rates than a for-
profit company, and may at times be eligible for grants, incentives, and other cost savings. 

 

I do not expect my water bills to decline much if at all.  We will soon need to replace much of the water 
being taken from the Carmel River and other natural sources. The new water, recycled water and  
possibly also some de-sal, may  cost more to produce,  so costs for consumers may increase --  but 
probably by  less than they would under Cal Am. There will also be other many public benefits:  
• Unlike Cal-Am's choices on several occasions, the  Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

will adopt well-researched, realistic budgets and pursue well-researched options that are the least 
expensive available options that are also legally sound and environmentally responsible.  

• There will be greater  transparency in operations , more of the jobs will be local, there will be more 
input from local residents and ratepayers, and  decisions  will not be driven by a profit motive.  

• Under a nonprofit water provider,  rates should no longer rank as some of  the very most expensive 
in the country in comparison to communities using similar sources of water.   

•  A public water district is also more likely to encourage all customers to conserve water in times of 
drought, rather than favoring special interests.  

• Local oversight can also result in greater health and safety as the district maintains its facilities 
diligently to assure adequate supplies of water that meet water quality standards.   

• The entire community can also  benefit  when revenues are retained in the local economy  (as 
recently noted in Our Towns, a book about small to mid-size communities all across the US).    

I hope that a fair evaluation of feasibility and public benefits will allow the establishment of a locally 
controlled, nonprofit public water company  that will help  today's residents and future generations 
achieve the benefits listed above and  have greater control over their water, a vital resource.    
Thank you. 
 

Sincerely, 

Marli Melton                      Marli Melton,    7 White Oak Way,  Carmel Valley, CA 93924 

EXHIBIT 15-D
177



Submitted by Pat Venza at 1/9/2019 Listening Session on
Rule 19.8 - Feasibility Study

EXHIBIT 15-D
178



From: Thomas Reeves
To: Comments
Subject: Measure J Listening Session Comments
Date: Wednesday, January 9, 2019 5:04:36 PM
Attachments: Measure J Feasibility Discussion.docx

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments relating to the potential takeover of the
California American Water system. Attached are my comments and concerns. I have
attempted to address all the questions that are posed on your web site.
I attended the first listening session which was held at the Seaside City Council chambers. At
that meeting, MPWMD staff handed out two questionnaires. I chose not to fill out either
questionnaire. The reason I chose not to fill out the questionnaires is important to note. The
problem with answering questions such as those posed in the questionnaires is that the answers
are dependent upon the results of the "feasibility" study. For example, if the study shows that
the cost of taking over the Cal Am system is going to result in costs that are well over what
we're already paying, then game over in my opinion. It doesn't matter to me if the expenses are
spread out over decades so that the pain of paying for isn't perceived as being all that much.
What you have before you is a daunting task to say the least. To do this correctly, you need an
apples-to-apples comparison. So as a retired City Engineer, I think the best way to go about
this is to try to get all of the costs rolled back to present worth for both Cal Am's continued
ownership as well as for a publicly owned and operated system. Please present to the rate
payers an easy comparison of costs (not easy to do, I know). 
After the rate payers know the costs, then there needs to be another vote so that the rate payers
can express what is feasible at the ballot box. The rate payers, way more than will ever attend
the listening sessions, will let you know if it's feasible. The initial marketing of measure J
prior to a judge prohibiting such claims was that we will have cheaper water if the system is
publicly owned. Let's see if that's true. Let the proponents handle the payment options
marketing spiel (it reminds of stepping into the "closing office" at a car dealership). 
I want transparency. That means that I don't want obfuscation of costs thinking that the
inevitable upgrades will be a future cost and not accounted for in the feasibility cost analysis.
Playing with rate structures trying to get the pill down the throat of one group of rate payers at
the expense of another group is just going to cause confusion.
Please, we need another vote prior to proceeding with any condemnation efforts.
Thank you,

Tom Reeves
844 Pine Street
Monterey, CA 

EXHIBIT 15-D
179

mailto:gtreeves@sbcglobal.net
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net

What is my definition of “feasible”?

1. It must not cost more than the alternative of staying with Cal Am. And all costs need to be taken into account (staff time, study costs, legal costs such as for bond counsel and fighting law suits, capital costs, debt costs, operations, maintenance and management costs, capital replacement cost to name but a few)

2. There must be adequate water supply to fill the existing and future needs of the communities.

3. All water sources must be stable, in other words, not subject to the political winds of the District and there must be a reliable and sustainable source of water within the jurisdictional boundaries of the District. What’s the District’s plan for where the water will come from?

4. It must be the rate payers and voters that get to answer the question of what they feel is feasible by holding a vote prior to any condemnation proceedings after all of the cost data is available. Let the voters determine what is feasible.

What’s most important?

Allowing the voting rate payers to cast their votes and express their opinion prior to any condemnation proceedings.

What do I see as the benefits of a publically owned water system?

Other than perhaps more transparency, I don’t see too many benefits but I do see some possible pit falls such as:

1. Public employees and the costs associated therewith.

2. Inheriting an old and crippled water system while losing much of the institutional knowledge that goes with it.

3. Injecting politicians directly into the water supply of our region.

4. A potential for a “cash cow” mentality to flourish amongst the member entities as the water supply system could now become a revenue enhancer. Even though Proposition 218 prohibits making a profit, there are inventive ways in which local governments can include costs such as including parts of their existing overhead.

5. There’s considerable risk associated with proceeding with eminent domain in that the District may lose the case and then be liable for paying the legal costs to California American Water.

6. With respect to future costs and rate increases, what if the rate payers don’t agree and fail to pass the required Proposition 218 approval?

7. [bookmark: _GoBack]If there aren’t sufficient sources of water within the District’s boundries, can the District condemn sources outside of its’ boundaries such as Cal Am’s proposed desalination facility? If not, will we be held hostage to negotiate with the same Cal Am for our water?



What is my definition of “feasible”? 

1. It must not cost more than the alternative of staying with Cal Am. And all costs need to be taken 
into account (staff time, study costs, legal costs such as for bond counsel and fighting law suits, 
capital costs, debt costs, operations, maintenance and management costs, capital replacement 
cost to name but a few) 

2. There must be adequate water supply to fill the existing and future needs of the communities. 
3. All water sources must be stable, in other words, not subject to the political winds of the District 

and there must be a reliable and sustainable source of water within the jurisdictional 
boundaries of the District. What’s the District’s plan for where the water will come from? 

4. It must be the rate payers and voters that get to answer the question of what they feel is 
feasible by holding a vote prior to any condemnation proceedings after all of the cost data is 
available. Let the voters determine what is feasible. 

What’s most important? 

Allowing the voting rate payers to cast their votes and express their opinion prior to any condemnation 
proceedings. 

What do I see as the benefits of a publically owned water system? 

Other than perhaps more transparency, I don’t see too many benefits but I do see some possible pit falls 
such as: 

1. Public employees and the costs associated therewith. 
2. Inheriting an old and crippled water system while losing much of the institutional knowledge 

that goes with it. 
3. Injecting politicians directly into the water supply of our region. 
4. A potential for a “cash cow” mentality to flourish amongst the member entities as the water 

supply system could now become a revenue enhancer. Even though Proposition 218 prohibits 
making a profit, there are inventive ways in which local governments can include costs such as 
including parts of their existing overhead. 

5. There’s considerable risk associated with proceeding with eminent domain in that the District 
may lose the case and then be liable for paying the legal costs to California American Water. 

6. With respect to future costs and rate increases, what if the rate payers don’t agree and fail to 
pass the required Proposition 218 approval? 

7. If there aren’t sufficient sources of water within the District’s boundries, can the District 
condemn sources outside of its’ boundaries such as Cal Am’s proposed desalination facility? If 
not, will we be held hostage to negotiate with the same Cal Am for our water? 

EXHIBIT 15-D
180



To:  MPWMD Board of Directors 
 5 Harris Ct., Bldg. G   P.O. Box 85 

Monterey, CA  93940   Monterey, CA  93942-0085 
http://www.mpwmd.net 

 
From: Tim Sanders 

25075 Pine Hills Dr. 
Carmel, CA  93923 
 

January 8, 2019 
 
RE:  FEASIBILITY OF PUBLIC/PRIVATE OWNERSHIP OF THE 

PENINSULA WATER SYSTEM  
 

I have two comments: one concerning existing facilities and the overall 
issue of ownership, and the second concerning the special circumstance of a 

proposed major project being pursued under threat of a regulatory 
deadline. 
 

1. Private ownership by Cal Am is infeasible according to any 

reasonable standard of feasibility 

 

First, the feasibility study must be viewed as a comparative feasibility study: 

Is it feasible to remain with CAW (Cal Am, California American Water) as 

owner of the water system? And, in comparison, is public ownership feasible? 

Any rigorous study, using consistent standards and knowledge of CPUC 

behavior and decisions, would have found CAW ownership less feasible 
than public ownership at, say, any time since the year 2000. An obvious 

pattern of costly delays, cost-overruns, failure to meet regulatory deadlines, 

excessive ratepayer charges, etc., would not have been tolerated by a 

management working under direct local oversight rather than one tied to the 

persistent corporate incentives of agency-protected and ever-growing 

EXHIBIT 15-D
181



investment demands by owners – CAW investors – whose locations and 

preferences are remote from the issues affecting a local water acquisition and 

delivery system. 

 

Only if, for example, the highest water rates in the nation were considered 
appropriate here, in this unlikely small coastal water district, could private 
CAW ownership be deemed feasible. It has the highest rates, and they 

certainly are not appropriate. CAW ownership has not in fact been feasible, 

and local ratepayers have had to pay the excess costs of this infeasibility. 

That is why 55% of district voters said, “We no longer are willing to support 
the pretense that CAW ownership of our water system is feasible.” 

 

In recent judicial decisions on private/public water system ownership, public 
ownership has been deemed decisively “more necessary” (the precise term 

used in the decisions) than private, in both the district and the state supreme 

courts (Montana). For the Monterey Peninsula public ownership, by those 

reasonable standards, similarly would be deemed the “more necessary” or 

more feasible option. 

 

A principal standard for “feasibility” must be the comparative acceptability 
of the existing or available alternative. 

 

2. For desalination plants, public ownership is the California Standard  

Second, the unusual circumstance in this case that a major and expensive 

water project is in process at the time when the ownership decision was 

brought forward by the public’s vote, adds complexity to the assessment of 
options. However, several critical factors weigh heavily in favor of public 
ownership of any and all of the pending desal system proposals. One of these 

EXHIBIT 15-D
182



is that state law requires public ownership, but CAW was unwisely 

awarded a waiver allowing private ownership of its proposed facility (still 

somewhat undefined). The reasons for the law against private ownership 

are sound and the waiver should be rescinded. A significant effect of 

the waiver would be to raise substantially the consumer rates for the 

desalinated water by perhaps as much as 30% (because of provisions for profit 

and corporate taxes) relative to the price under public ownership. This is a 

high percentage on extremely expensive water, and would constitute very 

large dollar increases. It is entirely unacceptable and argues decisively 
against private ownership of the desal facility. 

 

The desal project, whatever form it may take, is infeasible under reasonable 
California state rules, that are applied to the rest of Californians; it is 

artificially made to appear feasible only through corporate lobbying for 

special and unwarranted treatment by a waiver of  enforcement of the law 

for the CAW desal project. 

 

Experience and evidence show clearly that private CAW operation of 

the water acquisition and delivery system, and its planning and execution 

for a desal project on the Monterey Peninsula, is distinctly infeasible, 

by existing and reasonable standards. The costs of operating that 
infeasible system have been and are borne by ratepayers who have 

not been properly and effectively protected by the Public Utilities 
Commission. 

 
Public ownership of all aspects of the water system is distinctly “more 
necessary” (i.e., more feasible) than private ownership 

EXHIBIT 15-D
183



EXHIBIT 15-D
184



From: Alan Estrada
To: Comments
Subject: Public Water [J]
Date: Wednesday, January 16, 2019 8:48:49 AM

Dear Verily Important MPWMD Reader~

Consider locally-owned water here making public sense over time . . . over East Coast private
interest, that is. Dollars would stay here, not sent to New Jersey.

Thank you for accepting this general and specific thought.

Alan Estrada
Carmel
831-585-8195

EXHIBIT 15-D
185

mailto:feelosofree1@yahoo.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net
tel:831-585-8195


Submitted by Anna Thompson at 1/15/2019 Listening Session
EXHIBIT 15-D

186



Submitted by Barbara Evans at 1/15/19 Listening SessionEXHIBIT 15-D
187



Submitted by Brian LeNeve at 1/15/2019 Listening Session
EXHIBIT 15-D

188



EXHIBIT 15-D
189



MEASURE J FEASIBILITY STUDY COMMENTS 
 
WHAT DOES FEASIBLE MEAN TO YOU? 

Feasibility is not measured directly by the current water rates charged by CalAm.  Feasibility means that 
in the long run ratepayers will pay reasonable rates for their water as opposed to the current rates 
which are amongst the highest in the nation.  This will be achieved through economic goals which are 
defined by the public good rather than how to achieve the greatest return to the shareholders.  The 
profit now removed from the system will allow for its purchase and for the investment needed to 
produce a SUSTAINABLE water supply.  Feasibility does not mean that water rates will be immediately 
reduced or that they will not rise but that the rates projected by a poorly run company will not be 
sustained in the future and that a patently unfair tier system will be replaced by reasonable measures to 
encourage conservation.  In addition the costs of loans through a publicly owned system will be 
substantially lower. Costs associated by failed projects such as the Carmel river dam, the pilot desal 
plant, or the extremely risky regional desal project will be avoided.  Another important factor is freedom 
from CPUC decisions that invariably fail to regulate a monopoly.  Time and again the CPUC has failed to 
address the needs of the ratepayers; If we own the system, our needs will be heard through the ballot 
box.  

WHAT MEASURE OF FEASIBLE IS MOST IMPORTANT TO YOU? 
The key to feasibility is a FAIR assessment of the value of the water system.  Clearly CalAm will overstate 
its value as a bargaining tactic.  So the economic value must be fairly established unfortunately this will 
most likely be argued in the judicial system. The value of local ownership, however, goes beyond 
monetary concerns just as the value of home ownership is not just in the assessed value or mortgage 
payment.  Ownership entails local freedom of action and responsibility.  Access to clean potable water is 
a human right absolutely necessary to life.  The best assurance that future generations will have this 
right is local ownership and control. 
 

WHAT DO YOU SEE ARE THE BENEFITS OF A PUBLICLY OWNED SYSTEM? 
The benefits of a publicly owned system are many for example: 
 Lower water cost no profit, no taxes, reduced overhead 
 Lower cost of financing through a publicly owned system 

Avoidance of a costly lawsuit and delay by cooperating with the Marina Coast Water District 
rather than violating their water rights. 

No CPUC fees 
Local control and transparency and accountability 
Benefit to ratepayers not shareholders of an international corporation 
No corporate monopoly over an essential human right WATER 

Possibility for easier regional planning and cooperation 
More local jobs including retention of operational employees 
More sensitivity and concern of local environmental issues to include the Seaside basin and the 
Carmel River Watershed 
More of the water revenues stay in the local economy 
ETC 

EXHIBIT 15-D
190



 
On a more philosophical note the Principle of Subsidiarity holds that social and political problems should 
be dealt with at the most immediate level capable of a solution. This principle is clearly consistent with 
the democratic foundations of our republic. It’s our problem. We have the responsibility to solve it in an 
equitable and environmentally sustainable manner. If we do not exercise our rights we are in danger of 
losing them.  Local control is exercising our right to clean, potable, sustainable water for future 
generations as well as ourselves. 
Thank you for soliciting and considering my views on the implementation of Measure J. 
Sincerely, 
 

Robert McGinley 
1505 Ord Grove Avenue 
Seaside, CA 
 

 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT 15-D
191



EXHIBIT 15-D
192



EXHIBIT 15-D
193



From: Carter Filion
To: Comments
Subject: Input on Measure J Feasibility Study
Date: Monday, January 14, 2019 10:55:39 AM

We have been residents of Pebble Beach for 27 years. 

-  We want the Cal Am desalination plant to be built.

-  We do not want any costs for a Cal Am buyout to be added to our property taxes. 

-  We do not consider a public buyout of Cal Am “feasible” unless there would be bill savings
within a year.

Thank you,

Graham and Carter Filion
1010 Wranglers Trail
Pebble Beach, CA 93953

EXHIBIT 15-D
194

mailto:filions@comcast.net
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


From: Greg Thompson
To: Comments
Subject: Comments on Cal Am takeover feasibility
Date: Wednesday, January 16, 2019 10:29:27 AM

I live in Carmel Valley with my wife.  We are very conservative with water, we harvest rain
water, and we route gray water to the landscaping.  Our monthly Cal Am bill is usually less
than $50, and we are very satisfied with the water quality and taste.  We have neighbors with
palm trees and extensive landscaping that no one sees - their monthly water bills are over $700
and they complain about it.

"Feasible" to me is that my water bill and water quality will remain unchanged.  "Feasible" is
NOT cost sharing, such that my bill increases so that others may save while continuing to
abuse their water rights.  It would NOT be feasible if I have to pay for others' overuse.  If you
overuse, you should overpay, no matter who is supplying your water.  

People of the Monterey Peninsula need to stop blaming Cal Am for their water bills and start
conserving and embracing the new reality, which is an ongoing shortage of clean water.
 MPWMD will not magically produce new sources of water that have not already been
considered.

How about a community effort to conserve and recycle, rather than misguided rabble rousing.

Resident of Carmel Valley

EXHIBIT 15-D
195

mailto:coderdoc.gt@gmail.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


From: Molly Evans
To: Dave Stoldt; gqhwd1000@gmail.com; Arlene Tavani
Subject: Fwd: Financial Feasibility Factors
Date: Monday, January 14, 2019 11:09:04 AM

Dave,

This comment was sent to Gary and me. Please include this in the next submission of public
comments that you send to the Board. Thank you.  

- Molly
Molly Evans 
MPWMD Chair 

Begin forwarded message:

From: HELGA FELLAY <puma2012@comcast.net>
Date: January 14, 2019 at 10:31:55 AM PST
To: gqhwd1000@gmail.com
Cc: water@mollyevans.org
Subject: Financial Feasibility Factors
Reply-To: HELGA FELLAY <puma2012@comcast.net>

Dear Mr. Hoffman:

As I am not certain that I will be able to attend tomorrow evening's meeting
at Carpenter Hall, I wanted to make a few comments.  Immediately below,
(in italics) is a list that Public Water Now (PWN) has sent to its members
as talking points (emphasis added). Below that list (not in italics) I
questioned a few of their points.

Financial Feasibility Factors
• Lower Water Cost – No profit, no taxes, reduced overhead
    Publicly owned water in California costs an average of $385 a year for 60,000
gallons. 
    Our cost is $1202 a year. 
• Lower cost over time compared to Cal Am
• Lower cost public financing of new projects with lower interest rate
• Lower cost refinancing of Cal Am’s debt at lower interest rate
• Stop costly environmental damage
• Eliminate CPUC fees
• More cost effective solutions without profit motive
• Avoid financial risks like building a desal plant with no water rights or harming
Marina’s water supply
• Avoid cost of failed projects:

EXHIBIT 15-D
196

mailto:water@mollyevans.org
mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net
mailto:gqhwd1000@gmail.com
mailto:Arlene@mpwmd.net
mailto:puma2012@comcast.net
mailto:gqhwd1000@gmail.com
mailto:water@mollyevans.org
mailto:puma2012@comcast.net


    Carmel River Dam, $3.5 million
    Pilot desal at Moss Landing, $12 million 
    Failed regional desal project, $20 million

Why is a Buyout in the Public Interest? 
• Lower cost and a sustainable water supply
• Local control & transparency – Public has no say with private ownership
• Local Leadership, accountability and integrity – All decisions are made locally 
• Eliminates corporate monopoly control of a fundamental human resource 
• Eliminates corporate profit incentive on future projects
• Focuses on benefit to ratepayers, not shareholders
• Eliminates the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)
• Eliminates Regulatory Capture
• Local public process and input on rate setting
• New water supply projects can be regional with shared costs
• New water projects and repairs don’t have a profit markup
• Incentive to protect our natural resources in the interest of our community  
• Responsible environmental management of the Carmel River and the Seaside
Basin
• Retains operational employees who run the system now
• Creates new local jobs by relocating outsourced services
• Water revenue stays in local economy

My own questions and responses to a few of the claims made by PWN
(highlighted above)

No Taxes Taxes we pay support public services, which will still have to be
collected from the public. Those millions collected by Cal Am as sales taxes will
have to be collected some other way, in other words, we will still be paying them,
only not on our water bill, probably added to the taxes we are already paying on
our property taxes, added onto the taxes now billed under MPWMD. If not that,
another sales tax or local income tax will be imposed. So I consider that a moot
point.

Reduced Overhead. How and why. While the individual heading the
organization will probably be paid less than CalAm’s CEO, that’s only one
position. The thousands of workers currently employed by CalAm - what about
them? Are we planning to reduce their wages? The countless CalAm trucks will
cost just as much to run and maintain as they do under CalAm. There seem to be
no concrete data to support the claim of reduction in overhead.

Our cost is $1,202 a year. I presume this is an average. Which means that the
water wasters, who claim to be paying hundreds a month or more, are offset by a
majority of folks like myself who are making serious efforts at water
conservation. My bill is consistently under $40 a month, less than half of my

EXHIBIT 15-D
197



electric bill.

I have been with PWN since at least 4 years ago, and the biggest complaint I have
heard over time is the steep tier system. While nobody talks about this publicly, I
fear that the first thing PWN wants to accomplish is do away with the tier system
altogether. The tier system seems to have been challenged in court in another
jurisdiction in California and they won. It is silently planned to challenge Cal
Am’s tier system in Monterey County’s court, using this as a precedent. If PWN
wins this case as well, it would have two consequences: First, the majority of
financially challenged consumers like myself would see a steep increase in our
own water bills, while the minority, the water wasters,would see a steep reduction
in theirs. And secondly, it would encourage the water wasters to waste more
water, which in turn would be detrimental for the Carmel River.

Avoid cost of failed projects: Carmel River Dam, $3.5 million

Members of PWN have consistently accused CalAm of removing the San
Clemente dam in order to make more profits. However, it was the Army Corps of
Engineers which examined the condition of this dam (which was completely filled
with silt and no longer served its purpose) and found that the dam was structurally
unsound and posed a danger to the public. It found that an earthquake of four
point something on the Richter Scale could break the dam, releasing a wall of
silty water threatening the lives and properties of residents living near the river
only 3 to 4 miles downstream. I don’t know if they ordered CalAm to remove the
dam, or merely advised to do so, but it was a sound decision, especially
considering that small earthquakes like this are quite common in this area.

A sustainable water supply While Pure Water and water recycling may have
provided some relief for the present, it does not for the future. The need for
housing, especially affordable housing, will persist and become more urgent with
time. There is also the challenge of developing the former Ft. Ord, which requires
a drought independent solution, especially considering rapid climate change that
cannot depend on annual rainfall. While PWN calls the water recycling system a
“sustainable water supply,” it is not as it still depends on annual rain fall, which
is not guaranteed. PWN is dead set against the building of any kind of desal plant
because it would drive up costs and thus not help the feasibility study results in
their favor. This may be unrealistic.

Sincerely,

Helga and James Fellay

15 Paso Hondo

EXHIBIT 15-D
198



Carmel Valley, CA 93924

(831) 659-5116

EXHIBIT 15-D
199



From: John Sherry
To: Comments
Subject: Monterey needs a cistern
Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2019 2:17:53 PM

Hi All,

I had this out of the box idea and wanted to present it for your consideration.

Monterey should consider engaging Elon Musk's Boring Company to create a cistern or
possibly a network of cisterns, or man-made aquifers, of several hundred acre feet to collect
rainwater runoff.  This could completely fix our water shortage on the  Monterey Peninsula
and serve as a model for coastal cities throughout California.  The hundreds of thousands of
gallons of water that escape to the ocean could instead be captured and used.  A one time,
albeit substantial, expense to create an underground water supply would be far superior to the
construction of a desalinization plant that would require vast amounts of costly energy to
operate.  

I’m interested to hear your thoughts.

Best,
John
It’s never too late to be what you might have been

John Sherry
http://johnsherry.com
(831) 905-1708

EXHIBIT 15-D
200

mailto:johnjsherry@me.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fjohnsherry.com%2f&c=E,1,IOE-F-WEiS3cHjBeQTAjNiGwRCZRpPvwxFWO8kyCBPioEWQQHHLXKxze7l90r81DBJaRG9fc_GSn_tAWEPjT-VSe5_harTeXe_-YO7wFtA,,&typo=1


From: Jacquelyn Woodward
To: Comments
Subject: comments on measure j
Date: Monday, January 14, 2019 12:04:07 PM

My name is Jacquelyn Woodward. PO Box 3911 Carmel CA 93921 624-3982
I have lived in Carmel since 1957.

As a full-time, year-round resident for 62 years, I’ve seen my water bills climb to become a higher percentage of my overall
expenses. However, the amount of my water bill is not how I judge the feasibility of publicly owned water. Even if the
feasibility study determined that public ownership would end up costlier than CalAm ownership, I’m willing to pay an even
higher amount for water if it means having our water supply under local control.

The most important measure of feasibility to me—and the greatest benefit of publicly owned water—is protecting this
resource that is vital to all people, and not allow water to be treated largely as a means of producing corporate profits. 

Water ownership is a serious global issue. We still have a voice here in Carmel, and the opportunity for our local citizens and
government officials to help protect our water for future generations.

EXHIBIT 15-D
201

mailto:randr7@sbcglobal.net
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


Submitted by Lorin Letendre at 1/15/2019 Listening SessionEXHIBIT 15-D
202



Submitted by Melodie Chrislock at the 1/15/2019 Listening Session
EXHIBIT 15-D

203



EXHIBIT 15-D
204



EXHIBIT 15-D
205



EXHIBIT 15-D
206



EXHIBIT 15-D
207



EXHIBIT 15-D
208



Submitted by Mark Eckles at 1/15/2019 Listening Session
EXHIBIT 15-D

209



EXHIBIT 15-D
210



EXHIBIT 15-D
211



EXHIBIT 15-D
212



From: Peter H Hiller
To: Comments
Subject: re CalAm buyout
Date: Saturday, January 12, 2019 9:49:16 AM

Dear members of the Monterey Peninsula Water District Board,

Please find this as my comments about the potential CalAm buyout - an acknowledgement of
receipt is appreciated.

I live in the unincorporated part of Carmel and am currently a CalAm customer. I voted for
and am in support of a CalAm buyout to take place as quickly as possible. 
I would like to see a publicly owned system in place that is designed to cover all costs without
a profit motive. 
I am in support of working with all water agencies in Monterey County to coordinate water
use with the intent of serving the greater good for all.
I am in favor of exploring all water alternatives such as desalt, again without compromising
any community.

Please find these comments in lieu of attending any of the community meetings - January 8 -
January 15.

Thank you,

Peter Hiller
26541 Willow Place
Carmel, CA. 93923

EXHIBIT 15-D
213

mailto:19philler52@gmail.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


From: Dave Stoldt
To: Arlene Tavani
Subject: FW: Measure J Feasibility Study Comments
Date: Wednesday, January 16, 2019 12:53:11 PM

More
 
 
 
 
From: Robert Ellis <burlybob4@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 16, 2019 12:51 PM
To: Comments <Comments@mpwmd.net>; gqhwd1000@gmail.com; district5@co.monterey.ca.us;
Dave Stoldt <dstoldt@mpwmd.net>
Subject: Measure J Feasibility Study Comments
 
My name is Robert Ellis and I am a Carmel Valley resident (District 5).  
 
I am a professional engineer specializing in the planning, design and construction of water facilities.  I
have been responsible for over $ 3 billion in projects for major water utilities throughout the
western US.
 
I attended the listening session on January 8 at the District headquarters.  I agree with your general
approach to the feasibility study outlined at the meeting.  I have the following additional comments.
 
Items that need to be addressed in the financial feasibility step include :
 
1. Establish and document the baseline for CALAM projected rates over the next 20 years whatever
reasonable timeframe is established by MPWMD and the consultants.
 
2. Determine whether or not the Desalination Project will be included in the baseline.  This project
has significant technical, environmental, and financial risk and may never be constructed.  It may be
appropriate to do analyses with and without this project.
 
3. A comprehensive condition assessment of all existing facilities must be completed as part of the
valuation study.  Many facilities are in need of repair and this will impact their valuation as well as
capital budgeting going forward.  
 
4. Based on my experience, it is not likely that rates will drop initially.  However, the financial
feasibility test should be realization of significant savings over the next 20 years or so compared to
continued ownership and operation by CALAM.
 
If financial feasibility is established and well documented, the next steps should include :
 
1. How will operations staff be transferred and integrated into the MPWMD ?  What gaps will need
to be filled with external recruiting ?

EXHIBIT 15-D
214

mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net
mailto:Arlene@mpwmd.net


 
2. How will administrative, financial and management functions be integrated into MPWMD to
remain cost-effective ?
 
3. How will MPWMD organize to respond to the new state and federal regulatory requirements
unique to delivery of municipal and industrial water supply ?
 
I appreciate the opportunity to provide input to your feasibility study and look forward to reviewing
the results.

EXHIBIT 15-D
215



From: Elsberry, Russell (Russ) (CIV)
To: Comments
Subject: Comments related to the feasibility of public water company versus Cal Am Water
Date: Saturday, January 12, 2019 5:54:53 PM

My comments presume that a public water company would not be subject to the California
Public Utility Commission (PUC) regulations, which have allowed Cal Am to earn about 8.5%
annually on its capital base. According to a letter in the Carmel Pine Cone, Cal Am was thus
permitted in 2017 to have a 10.8% return to its stockholders. All of us Cal Am customers know
that Cal Am did go to the California PUC at the end of the recent drought and was allowed to
greatly increase their water rates to cover their costs and pay their stockholders. In this PUC
regulation arrangement, there had been no reason for Cal Am to have a flexible or efficient
infrastructure in those drought years when water usage was further restricted by the State of
California. Cal Am could pay workers, management, and executives anything they wanted (and
according to Cal Am’s advertisements prior to the November vote, be a “good citizen by
donating hundreds of thousands of dollars to schools and charities).
                My first point is that the feasibility decision should be based on what a totally re-
designed work and management staff would cost for a public water company that efficiently
serves our area that alternates between long droughts and then one or two wet years. Such a
new design should avoid the crisis in retirement system costs that California local
governments are presently facing by having a minimal permanent staff and by using
contractors for flexible needs. Another suggestion is to explore a pay system widely used in
East Asia in which a base salary is paid with a twice a year bonuses given depending on the
(water) service actually provided.
                My second point is the cost of acquiring Cal Am, and the future Cal Am water rates,
will critically depend on that PUC-allowed 8.5% return on the Cal Am capital base if or when
the desalination plant is built. I strongly suspect that the Cal Am’s own cost estimate of more
than a billion dollars is based on their investments thus far and the anticipated cost of building
that desalination plant. Thus it is important that the feasibility decision regarding a public
water company must be made before Cal Am begins the desalination plant, because the public
water company will not require an 8.5% return on its capital base since it will get bonds at a
lower rate and does not have stockholders to pay.
                My final point is that the feasibility of the slant-pipe desalination plant to produce the
specified peak water amounts on a long-term basis without violating the water rights of
adjacent land owners needs to be re-examined. My thought is that the digging of the slant
pipe will create a “channel in the underground river” that will draw water farther and farther
inland during each successive summer when the peak water is to be drawn. Essentially, it will
be analogous to a broadening of the Salinas River during peak winter rains. Whereas the draw
of ocean water into the slant pipe is constrained by the depth of the sand above the pipe,
each summer it will become easier to pull water from the land side via the broadening channel
in the underground river. Since the water rights of the land owners have precedence, less and
less water will be produced by the desalination plant, and the water rates will go up and up. I

EXHIBIT 15-D
216

mailto:elsberry@nps.edu
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


submit that the short tests of the slant-pipe design have not addressed the potential effect of
sustained heavy draws by the desalination plant during the dry months of April to November.
Such an eight month test should be required with measurements of the extent and magnitude
of the draw from the landward side. In my view, the slant-pipe design is basically flawed, and
the only alternative is a pipe on the ocean floor with screens to prevent the entrapment of the
little ocean creatures that the California Coastal Commission is dedicated to protecting at the
expense of humans. However, if a slant-pipe desalination plant is the only option, it will be far
better for it to be built by a public water company than by Cal Am with its guaranteed annual
8.5% return on its capital base.
                Bottom line: I am more concerned with stopping the PUC-guaranteed water rate
increases than requiring any specific amount of cost savings, which I strongly believe will be
possible with a public water company.
 
Russell L Elsberry, Emeritus Distinguished Professor of Meteorology, Naval Postgraduate
School        

EXHIBIT 15-D
217



From: Tim Smith
To: Comments
Subject: Feaseability
Date: Tuesday, January 15, 2019 2:09:06 PM

Board Members,

I write to share my particular view on feasibility as I’ve not been able to attended any of the 
listening sessions.

The passage of measure J indicated the communities willingness to explore the feasibility of 
replacing Cal-Am
with local ownership of the water resource.  For me this is the highest good against which any 
feasibility discussion
should be measured.  Without local control of our resource, we’re destined to be controlled, 
one way or the other,
by parties having no interest in preserving the character, environment and habitat of the 
Carmel River, principal source
of our area’s water.

Additionally, the coming environmental crisis precipitated by global warming will present us 
with many issues that must
be locally addressed and decided.  Leaving the resource in the hands of a for-profit, non local 
firm puts us at risk.  We have
already born the costs associated with poor management by Cal-Am, and these costs are likely 
to increase more rapidly given
the uncertainty of the environmental impact of global warming.  We will be better served, 
even if prices do not significantly decline,
by an organization that is responsible to us, not outside shareholders nor market whims.

These factors should be considered in determining feasibility, and whether or not reasonable 
cost increases are justified.  Assuming
that we can save money, its all the more critical that we look at the entire picture, not just the 
dollars.  

Thank you,

T.L. Smith
101 Calle de Quien Sabe
Carmel Valley, CA  93924

EXHIBIT 15-D
218

mailto:tswheelwright@gmail.com
mailto:Comments@mpwmd.net


219



ITEM: ACTION ITEM 
 
16. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REVISED MOU FOR INTEGRATED REGIONAL 

WATER MANAGEMENT IN THE MONTEREY PENINSULA, CARMEL BAY 
AND SOUTH MONTEREY BAY ITEMS RELATED TO INTEGRATED 
REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  

   
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt, Program/ 2-6-1-A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:      Prop. 1 Coordination 
 
Prepared By: Larry Hampson Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  The Administrative Committee has not reviewed this item 
due to cancellation of the January 2019 meeting. 
CEQA Compliance:  Exempt under CEQA Section 15262 
 
SUMMARY:  In 2018, the Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) formed to implement 
the Monterey Peninsula Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Plan met with local 
stakeholders, several of whom expressed an interest in joining the RWMG.  A copy of the draft 
amended MOU to add new members to the RWMG is attached as Exhibit 16-A.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  With this recommendation, the General Manager would be authorized 
to make minor or non-substantive modifications to the RWMG Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) presented to the Board (Exhibit 16-A, attached), in order to accommodate changes 
requested by other signatories, and to execute the MOU on behalf of the District. District staff 
recommends approval of the above action. 
 
DISCUSSION:  In 2014, voters approved the $7 billion Proposition 1, a portion of which 
authorized $43 million in competitive grants for Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
projects in the six Central Coast IRWM regions1. Funding is administered by the Department of 
Water Resources (DWR).  The amount allocated to the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and 
Southern Monterey Bay (Monterey Peninsula) region is proposed to be $4.3 million.  The District 
has represented the Monterey Peninsula region in negotiating a funding area agreement. 
 
The Central Coast IRWM regions have agreed to a funding area allocation that requires a local 
entity from each planning region to execute a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) on behalf of 
each region (see attached Exhibit 14-A).   
 
The intent of the IRWM Grant Program is to encourage integrated regional strategies for 

                                                 
1. The Central Coast funding area is comprised of the watershed areas draining to the Monterey Bay, and includes 
portions of Santa Clara County and San Benito County, and all of Monterey, San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara 
Counties.  The Monterey Peninsula region includes the Carmel River watershed, the six Monterey Peninsula cities, 
and portions of unincorporated Monterey County in the Carmel Highlands and along Highway 68. 

220



management of water resources and to provide funding, through competitive grants, for projects 
that protect communities from drought, protect and improve water quality, and improve local water 
security by reducing dependence on imported water.  The IRWM Grant Program is administered 
by DWR and is intended to promote a comprehensive model for water management.  One of the 
goals of the IRWM Grant Program is to encourage communities to work on synergistic approaches 
to solving regional water supply and environmental quality problems. 
 
In 2007, MPWMD helped form a Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) to implement the 
IRWM Plan with other local agencies that have regional responsibilities for water resources 
management.  The RWMG initially executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in June 
2008 and has subsequently amended the MOU several times to expand the RWMG in response to 
state legislation and local interest.  The MOU formalizes the collaborative planning effort that 
several local agencies have been involved in for several years, describes the process for completing 
and amending, and describes the role of stakeholders in carrying out the Plan. 
 
In 2016, MPWMD worked with the Monterey Peninsula RWMG and other Central Coast RWMGs 
to negotiate a funding area allocation for Prop. 1 IRWM funds.  The Monterey Peninsula region is 
eligible for approximately $4.3 million of the $43 million to be awarded to the Central Coast 
funding area.  

 
STAFF/RESOURCE IMPACTS:  Section 6.16 of the MOU, Personnel resources, states “It is 
expected that the General Managers and/or other officials of each entity signatory to this MOU 
will periodically meet to insure that adequate staff resources are available to implement the IRWM 
Plan.”  Staff anticipates additional effort over the next few years to coordinate the completion and 
adoption of an updated IRWM Plan, an application to the State in 2019 for IRWM grant funds, 
and continuing efforts in administering Disadvantage Community grant funds previously awarded 
to the planning region.   
 
EXHIBIT 
16-A Draft Amended Memorandum of Understanding for in the Monterey Peninsula, Carmel 

Bay, and South Monterey Bay Area 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ActionItems\16\Item-16.docx 

221



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 1 of 12 January 2019 

 

AMENDED 
Memorandum of Understanding for 

Integrated Regional Water Management in the 
Monterey Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Region 

 
1. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to recognize a mutual 
understanding among entities in the southern Monterey Bay area regarding their joint efforts 
toward Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) planning.  That understanding will 
continue to increase coordination, collaboration and communication for comprehensive 
management of water resources in the cities and unincorporated portions of the Monterey 
Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Region (Region).  
 

A. Background and Description of Amendments.  The initial MOU to form a Regional 
Water Management Group (RWMG) was fully executed on July 22, 2008 by the Big Sur 
Land Trust (BSLT), a 501 (c) 3 organization, the City of Monterey, the Monterey 
Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (MRPWCA, now known as Monterey One 
Water or M1W), the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA), and the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD).  The MOU formed a 
Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) for the purposes of developing and 
implementing projects consistent with the guidelines set by the State of California for 
IRWM. 

 
Subsequently, the Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) requested approval to become 
part of the RWMG and signed an amended MOU in June 2011 that includes MCWD as a 
member of the RWMG.  In 2012, the MOU was amended to include the Resource 
Conservation District of Monterey County (RCD) as a member of the RWMG. In 2018, a 
number of additional organizations requested approval to become part of the MOU, 
including California State University Monterey Bay, Carmel Area Wastewater District, 
Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, Carmel Valley Association, City of Carmel-by-
the-Sea, City of Del Rey Oaks, City of Sand City, City of Seaside, and Monterey County 
Resource Management Agency. 
 
In 2014, voters passed Proposition 1, the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure 
Improvement Act of 2014 the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood 
Control, River and Coastal Protection Act (Public Resources Code, sections 79700 - 
79798), which authorizes the Legislature to appropriate funding for competitive grants 
for Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) projects. Funding is administered 
by the Department of Water Resources (DWR). 
 
In 2015, representatives from the RWMGs representing the Central Coast region, which 
is coincident with the geographic extent of the funding area, entered into discussions 
about a funding area agreement for Proposition 1 funds allocated to the Central Coast 
funding area.   In 2016, the Central Coast RWMGs entered into a Memorandum of 
Agreement for Integrated Regional Water Management Planning and Funding in the 

222



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 2 of 12 January 2019 

 

Central Coast Funding Area to share Proposition 1 funding for the IRWM grant program 
among the six Parties in a fair and equitable manner, and to reduce the need for the 
Parties to compete against each other for grant funds, which creates unnecessary 
economic inefficiencies in implementing each Planning Region’s IRWM Plan. 
 
 (Pending approval by a majority of current RWMG members) This amended MOU 
reflects the addition of California State University Monterey Bay, Carmel Area 
Wastewater District, Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, Carmel Valley Association, 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, city of Del Rey Oaks, City of Sand City, City of Seaside, and 
Monterey County Resource Management Agency as members of the RWMG. 

 
 
2. RECITALS 

A.  The State of California desires to foster Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
planning and encourages local public, non-profit, and private (for profit) entities to define 
planning regions appropriate for managing water resources and to integrate strategies 
within these planning regions.  

 
B.  Water resources management authority in the Region is currently distributed among 

various public agencies with a range of legal powers and regulatory responsibilities.  
These public agencies have definite jurisdictional boundaries, whereas sensible water 
resources planning and management frequently requires actions in multiple jurisdictions. 
Non-public entities within the Region have considerable interests in cooperating with 
public entities to protect, manage, and enhance water resources within the Region. 

 
C.  (Pending approval by current RWMG members) Thirteen public entities and three non-

profit entities in the Region with responsibility and interests in the management of water 
resources have agreed to form a Regional Water Management Group for the purposes of 
developing and implementing projects consistent with the guidelines set by the State of 
California for IRWM.   These entities are:  

 
• Big Sur Land Trust (BSLT), a 501 (c) 3 organization; 
• California State University Monterey Bay 
• Carmel Area Wastewater District; 
• Carmel River Watershed Conservancy, a 501 (c) 3 organization; 
• Carmel Valley Association; 
• City of Carmel-by-the-Sea; 
• City of Del Rey Oaks 
• City of Monterey; 
• City of Seaside;  
• City of Sand City; 
• Monterey One Water (M1W));  
• Monterey County Resource Management Agency; 
• Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA);  
• Marina Coast Water District (MCWD);  

223



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 3 of 12 January 2019 

 

• Resource Conservation District of Monterey County; and  
• Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD).  

  
D.  The RWMG has defined an appropriate planning Region that takes into consideration 

jurisdictional limits, powers and responsibilities, and watershed and groundwater basin 
boundaries.  The RWMG is taking the lead in overseeing and implementing a detailed 
IRWM Plan within the planning Region.  The Region is generally described as 
encompassing approximately 347 square miles and consists of groundwater basins and 
coastal watershed areas contributing to the Carmel Bay and south Monterey Bay.  The 
Region includes coastal watersheds from the southernmost portion of the San Jose Creek 
watershed north to the northern limit of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.  The inland area 
is bounded by the Seaside Groundwater Basin to the north and by the Carmel River 
watershed to the south and east.  The western limit of the planning Region generally 
coincides with the land and Pacific Ocean interface, but includes the Pt. Lobos, Carmel 
Bay, and Pacific Grove Areas of Special Biological Significance (ASBS) adjacent to the 
coastal portion of the Region. 

 
The principal groundwater basins in the planning Region are the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin and the Carmel Valley Aquifer.  The Region includes about 38 miles of the coast 
within the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary, three ASBS, the Cities of Carmel-
by-the Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Sand City, Seaside, and 
unincorporated portions of Monterey County including the Carmel Valley watershed (255 
square miles), Pebble Beach, the Carmel Highlands and portions of the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin adjacent to Highway 68 (also known as Canyon Del Rey).  This 
description of the planning Region is not intended to be a limitation on projects and 
resource planning that may be shared between adjacent IRWM planning Regions (e.g., 
the Greater Monterey County IRWM planning Region to the north and east).   

 
E.  The entities signatory to this MOU desire to link and integrate efforts to jointly oversee 

the development and implementation of a comprehensive Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan for the Region and to allocate IRWM funding within the planning 
Region. 

 
3. GOALS 
The goals of the collaborative effort undertaken pursuant to this MOU are: 

3.1 To implement a comprehensive IRWMP for the Region that will consider the 
strategies that are required by the State under CWC 79562.5 and 79564 and 
subsequent modifications required under Proposition 1.  Eligible projects must yield 
multiple benefits and include one or more of the following elements  

(Water Code §79743 (a - j)): 

 Water reuse and recycling for non-potable reuse and direct and indirect 
potable reuse 

 Water-use efficiency and water conservation 

224



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 4 of 12 January 2019 

 

 Local and regional surface and underground water storage, including 
groundwater aquifer cleanup or recharge projects 

 Regional water conveyance facilities that improve integration of separate 
water systems 

 Watershed protection, restoration, and management projects, including 
projects that reduce the risk of wildfire or improve water supply reliability 

 Stormwater resource management, including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

 Projects to reduce, manage, treat, or capture rainwater or stormwater 

 Projects that provide multiple benefits such as water quality, water 
supply, flood control, or open space 

 Decision support tools that evaluate the benefits and costs of multi-
benefit stormwater projects 

 Projects to implement a stormwater resource plan developed in 
accordance with Part 2.3 (commencing with Section 10560) of Division 6 
including Water Code § 10562 (b)(7) 

 Conjunctive use of surface and groundwater storage facilities 

 Water desalination projects 

 Decision support tools to model regional water management strategies to 
account for climate change and other changes in regional demand and 
supply projections 

 Improvement of water quality, including drinking water treatment and 
distribution, groundwater and aquifer remediation, matching water quality 
to water use, wastewater treatment, water pollution prevention, and 
management of urban and agricultural runoff 

 Regional projects or programs as defined by the IRWM Planning Act 
(Water Code §10537)  

3.2 To implement a comprehensive IRWMP for the Region that incorporates water 
supply, water quality, flood and erosion protection, and environmental protection 
and enhancement objectives. 

3.3 To improve and maximize coordination of individual public, private, and non-profit 
agency plans, programs and projects for mutual benefit and optimal gain within the 
Region. 

3.4 To help identify, develop, and implement collaborative plans, programs, and 
projects that may be beyond the scope or capability of individual entities, but which 
would be of mutual benefit if implemented in a cooperative manner.    

225



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 5 of 12 January 2019 

 

3.5 To facilitate regional water management efforts that include multiple water supply, 
water quality, flood control, and environmental protection and enhancement 
objectives. 

3.6 To foster coordination, collaboration and communication between stakeholders and 
other interested parties, to achieve greater efficiencies, enhance public services, and 
build public support for vital projects. 

3.7. To realize regional water management objectives at the least cost possible through 
mutual cooperation, elimination of redundancy, and enhanced regional 
competitiveness for State and Federal grant funding.  

3.8 To satisfy State requirements for incorporation of a Storm Water Resource plan 
developed for the Region in accordance with Part 2.3 (commencing with Section 
10560) of Division 6 including Water Code § 10562 (b)(7). 

 
4. DEFINITIONS  

4.1 Funding Area Agreement.  The agreement entered into between the six regions 
within the Central Coast funding area to allocate a portion of Proposition 1 IRWM 
funds to each planning region. 

4.2 Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP or IRWM Plan).  The 
plan envisioned by state legislators and state resource agencies that integrates the 
strategies, objectives, and priorities for projects to manage water resources 
proposed by public entities, non-profit entities, and stakeholders within a defined 
Planning Region.  The minimum plan standards are as shown in Appendix A of 
“Integrated Regional Water Management Grant Program Guidelines, November 
2004, Department of Water Resources and State Water Resources Control Board, 
Proposition 50, Chapter 8,” as revised.  Minimum IRWM Plan standards may be 
revised from time to time by the State of California. 

4.3  Integration. The combining of water management strategies and projects to be 
included in an IRWMP. 

4.4.a Lead Agency for IRWM Plan Development.  The Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District is designated by the Regional Water Management Group to 
lead the development or implementation of an Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan for the Region.   

4.4.b Lead Agency for IRWM Grant Applications.  The Regional Water Management 
Group may designate any entity in the Regional Water Management Group to be 
the Lead Agency in making application to the State for grant funds. 

4.4.c Lead Agency for Executing a Central Coast funding area agreement.  The 
entity the Regional Water Management Group designates to represent the Monterey 
Peninsula Region to execute a Funding Area Agreement. 

4.5 Non-profit Agency.  A 501 (c) (3) corporation, conservancy, group or other 
organization involved in water resources management in the Region. 

4.6 Private Agency.  A private or publicly held for-profit corporation or property 
owner involved in water resources management in the Region 

4.7 Project.  A specific project that addresses a service function. 
4.8 Public Agency. A state-authorized water district, water agency, water management 

agency or other public entity, be it a special district, city or other governmental 
entity, responsible for providing one or more services in the areas of water supply, 

226



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 6 of 12 January 2019 

 

water quality, wastewater, recycled water, water conservation, stormwater/flood 
control, watershed planning and aquatic habitat protection and restoration.  

4.9 Region.  The area defined by the Regional Water Management Group (RWMG) 
consisting of watersheds, sub-watersheds and groundwater basins under the 
jurisdiction of one or more entities within the RWMG.  

4.10 Service Function.  A water-related individual service function provided by a 
private, public, or non-profit entity, i.e. water supply, water quality, wastewater, 
recycled water, water conservation, stormwater/flood protection, watershed 
planning, recreational facilities, and habitat protection and restoration. 

4.11 Signatory Entity. A public, private, or non-profit entity within the Region that is 
signatory to this MOU. 

4.12 Stakeholder.  A non-signatory public, private, or non-profit agency identified in 
the IRWM Plan with an interest in water resources management within the Region. 

4.13  Stormwater Resource Plan.  The plan developed for the Region that identifies 
stormwater capture project opportunities. 

4.14 Technical Advisory Committee.  The committee organized to advise the Regional 
Water Management Group and Stakeholders concerning the IRWM Plan.  
Normally, the group will be comprised of individuals with technical backgrounds in 
the fields of marine and freshwater biology, ecology, geology, engineering, 
hydrogeology, planning, resource conservation, riparian systems, water 
conservation, and water quality.  However, stakeholders with interests in a 
particular aspect of resource or project management, but not necessarily a technical 
background, may also be considered for inclusion in the TAC. 

4.15 Regional Water Management Group.  The group of entities that takes the lead in 
overseeing the development and implementation of the Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan within the Planning Region.   (a list of members of the Regional 
Water Management Group is provided in Recital C) 

4.16 Water Management Strategies.  Plans for and activities to be considered in an 
IRWMP include, but are not limited to, ecosystem restoration, environmental and 
habitat protection and improvement, water-supply reliability, flood management, 
groundwater management, recreation and public access, storm water capture and 
management, water conservation, water quality improvement, water recycling, and 
wetlands enhancement and creation. 

 
5. IRWMP PARTICIPANTS 

5.1 Adopting Entities.  The entities in the Region that participate in the development, 
adoption, and implementation of the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 
for the Region.  Each entity intending to carry out a project proposed in the IRWMP 
must formally adopt the IRWMP or provide written substantiation of acceptance by 
the governing authority of the entity.  For a public agency, adoption of the IRWMP 
is by formal resolution of the governing body.  For a non-profit or for-profit entity, 
proof of acceptance of the IRWMP by the equivalent of a public agency governing 
body is required (e.g., by a board of directors or other management entity). 

5.2. Stakeholders.  Entities, such as other public, private, and non-profit entities, 
business and environmental groups, that are considered valuable contributors to the 
understanding and management of the Region’s water resources.  

227



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 7 of 12 January 2019 

 

5.3. Regulatory Agencies.  These agencies, including, but not limited to, the State 
Water Resources Control Board, Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, California Coastal Commission, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, California 
Public Utilities Commission, National Marine Fisheries Service (NOAA Fisheries), 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, 
will be invited to participate in the development and implementation of the 
IRWMP. 

5.4 Regional Water Management Group.  The group of entities that takes the lead in 
developing and implementing an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 
within the Planning Region. 

   
6. MUTUAL UNDERSTANDING 

6.1. Subject matter scope of the IRWMP.  The IRWMP for the Region will include, 
but is not limited to, water supply, water quality, wastewater, recycled water, water 
conservation, stormwater/flood control, watershed planning, erosion prevention, 
and habitat protection and restoration.  It is acknowledged that the proposals 
contained in the IRWMP may be based, in part, on the land-use plans of the 
member entities local governments such as Cities, Monterey County, and special 
districts located within the Region.  Therefore, the resultant IRWMP will by design 
have incorporated the land-use plans and assumptions intrinsic to the respective 
water-related service function.  

6.2. Geographical scope of the IRWMP.  The area for this Memorandum is generally 
defined as the watersheds and associated groundwater basins contributing to the 
south Monterey Bay and Carmel Bay as shown in Figure 3-1: Map of Monterey 
Peninsula Integrated Regional Water Management Planning Region in the IRWM 
Plan.  

 
The Region includes coastal watersheds from the southernmost portion of the San 
Jose Creek watershed north to the northern limit of the Seaside Groundwater Basin. 
The inland area is bounded by the Seaside Groundwater Basin to the north and by 
the Carmel River watershed to the south and east.  The western limit of the planning 
Region generally coincides with the land and Pacific Ocean interface, but includes 
the Pt. Lobos, Carmel Bay, and Pacific Grove Areas of Special Biological 
Significance (ASBS) adjacent to the coastal portion of the Region. 
 
However, it is recognized that the geographic scope represented in the IRWM Plan 
may be amended to include projects that are implemented cooperatively between 
IRWM planning regions (e.g., with the Greater Monterey County IRWM planning 
region) and is not intended to be a rigid boundary.  

6.3. Approach to developing the IRWMP.  It will be the responsibility of each entity 
signatory to this Memorandum to provide the Lead Agency with information for the 
IRWMP concerning project proposals or to identify the need for a water 
management strategy for each service function provided by a signatory entity.   

 

228



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 8 of 12 January 2019 

 

In order to be included in the IRWMP, all proposals for development of water 
management plans and water development project proposals related to the IRWMP 
must meet the standards identified in the IRWM Plan for the Region. 
 
A technical advisory committee consisting of staff representatives from the 
Regional Water Management Group, other Stakeholders and such other 
organizations as may become contributing entities, will review proposed 
management plans and project proposals for consistency with the IRWMP and 
recommend a prioritized list of projects to be carried out within the Region.  The 
Regional Water Management Group and Stakeholders will meet to review the 
recommendation made by the TAC.   

6.4. Approval of prioritized project list.  Approval of the prioritized project list should 
occur by consensus of the Regional Water Management Group and Stakeholders 
and should be based on the prioritization process described in the IRWMP and the 
recommendations of the Technical Advisory Committee.  However, if a consensus 
cannot be reached among the Stakeholders and Regional Water Management 
Group, the Regional Water Management Group may make a final determination of 
the prioritized project list.  

6.5. Adoption of the IRWMP.  Plan adoption will occur by approval of the governing 
board of each entity.  Each member of the RWMG shall adopt the IRWM Plan or an 
amended IRWM Plan, when the Plan becomes available.  Project proponents named 
in an IRWM grant application shall adopt the IRWM Plan or amended IRWM Plan 
prior to submittal of the grant application.  It should be noted that the adopted Plan 
and project list may be amended from time to time as described below.   

6.6 Amendment of IRWMP or Prioritized Project list.   The IRWM Plan and 
prioritized project list may be amended from time to time.  Any member of the 
Regional Water Management Group or Stakeholders may request that the Lead 
Agency convene a meeting of the Regional Water Management Group and 
Stakeholders for the purposes of amending the IRWM Plan or the prioritized project 
list.  However, it is anticipated that the IRWMP or prioritized project list will be 
amended no more frequently than annually, unless more frequent amendments are 
required to meet State IRWM standards or grant application cycles.  An amended 
IRWM Plan must be consistent with State IRWM standards as described in 
Definition 4.1 “Integrated Regional Water Management Plan” and any subsequent 
revisions by the State to IRWM guidelines. 

6.7. Project Implementation.  Project proponents will be responsible for completing 
proposed projects and providing project reports to the Lead Agency. 

6.8 Project Monitoring.  The Regional Water Management Group will be responsible 
for monitoring the implementation of the IRWMP.  The technical advisory 
committee will regularly report to the General Managers and Governing Boards of 
the Regional Water Management Group regarding progress on the development and 
implementation of the IRWMP.  The Lead Agency will be responsible for 
coordinating data collection and dissemination. 

6.9 Grant Applications.  The Regional Water Management Group will designate a 
Lead Agency to apply for grant funds.  The Lead Agency for each grant application 

229



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 9 of 12 January 2019 

 

should have a mission and expertise that is consistent with the purpose of the grant 
being applied for. 

6.10  Central Coast funding area agreement.  The RWMG designates MPWMD to 
execute a funding area agreement on behalf of the Monterey Peninsula Planning 
Region. 

6.11 Grant Awards and Agreement.  The Lead Agency will be the grantee and 
administer the grant on behalf of the Regional Water Management Group and 
Stakeholders. 

6.12 Participation in Regional Water Management Group (RWMG).  Any qualified 
stakeholder may petition to become a member of the RWMG.  A qualified 
stakeholder must demonstrate an interest, responsibility or authority over one or 
more resources within the region; The RWMG shall consider such a request for a 
change to the RWMG and shall vote by majority to accept or reject the request. 

6.13  Length of Term in Regional Water Management Group.  Members of the 
RWMG may change from time to time, depending on the level of resources 
available to each entity.  However, there is no required minimum or maximum 
length of time required as a member of the RWMG.  If an entity withdraws from the 
RWMG, the remaining entities should attempt to replace the interest, responsibility 
or authority lost by the withdrawal. 

6.14 Rights of the Parties and Constituencies: This MOU does not provide any added 
legal rights or regulatory powers to any of the signatory parties, or to the RWMG as 
a whole. This MOU does not of itself give any party the power to adjudicate water 
rights, or to regulate or otherwise control the private property of other parties. This 
MOU does not contemplate the parties taking any action that would adversely affect 
the rights of any of the parties, or that would adversely affect the customers or 
constituencies of any of the parties. 

6.15  Termination.  An entity signatory to this MOU may withdraw from participation 
upon 30 days advance notice to the other signatory entities, provided it agrees to be 
financially responsible for any previously committed, but unmet resource 
commitment.  

6.16. Personnel resources.  It is expected that the General Managers and/or other 
officials of each entity signatory to this MOU will periodically meet to insure that 
adequate staff resources are available to implement the IRWM Plan. 

6.17. Other on-going regional efforts  Development of the IRWMP is separate from 
efforts of other organizations to develop water-related plans on a regional basis 
around Monterey Bay and the Central Coast.  As the IRWMP is developed and 
implemented, work products may be shared to provide other entities and groups 
with current information.  

 
7.  RECORD OF AMENDMENTS 

7.1 June 2010 – add Marina Coast Water District to RWMG.  Revise Goals, Definitions 
and MOU terms to reflect Proposition 84 requirements. 

7.2 March 2012 – add process to change RWMG, define when plan is to be adopted, 
revise to Proposition 84 standards 

7.3 August 2012 – add Resource Conservation District of Monterey County to RWMG 

230



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 10 of 12 January 2019 

 

7.4 DATE (anticipated as by February 2019) – add California State University 
Monterey Bay, Carmel Area Wastewater District, Carmel River Watershed 
Conservancy, Carmel Valley Association, City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, City of Del 
Rey Oaks, City of Sand City, City of Seaside, and Monterey County Resource 
Management Agency to RWMG 

 

231



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 11 of 12 January 2019 

 

8.  SIGNATORIES TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
We, the duly authorized undersigned representatives of our respective entities, acknowledge the 
above as our understanding of the intent and expected outcome in overseeing the development 
and implementation of an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan for the Monterey 
Peninsula, Carmel Bay, and South Monterey Bay Region. 
 
Big Sur Land Trust 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 Monterey County Water Resources Agency 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

Monterey Regional Water Pollution 
Control Agency 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 City of Monterey 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 Marina Coast Water District 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

Resource Conservation District of 
Monterey County 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

 California State University Monterey Bay 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 
 

232



EXHIBIT 16-A 

Amended Regional Water Management Group MOU 
Page 12 of 12 January 2019 

 

Carmel Area Wastewater District 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

 Carmel River Watershed Conservancy 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

Carmel Valley Association 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

 City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

City of Del Rey Oaks 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

 City of Sand City 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

City of Seaside 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

 Monterey County Resource Management Agency 
 
 
By:    
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  , 20____ 

 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\ActionItems\16\Item-16-Exh-A.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

233



ITEM:  DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
18. DISCUSS MEMORANDUM FROM DAVID C. LAREDO, GENERAL COUNSEL 

ON SMART METERS 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 

Prepared By: David J. Stoldt Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  The Board will discuss a memorandum on Smart Meters prepared by David C. 
Laredo, General Counsel.  No action will be taken by the Board. 
 
EXHIBIT 
18-A January 7, 2019 Memorandum on Smart Meters  
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\DiscussionItem\18\Item-18.docx 

234



235



Memorandum on Smart Meters 
January 7, 2019 

Page 1 of 4 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

David C. Laredo 

Heidi A. Quinn 

Frances M. Farina 

Michael D. Laredo 

Paul R. De Lay 
 (1919 – 2018) 

Pacific Grove Office: 
606 Forest Avenue 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
Telephone: (831) 646-1502 
Facsimile: (831) 646-0377 

Email: fran@laredolaw.net 

January 7, 2019 

TO: MPWMD Board of Directors 

FROM: David C. Laredo, General Counsel 

RE: Memorandum on Smart Meters 

This memo provides an overview of California’s policy efforts toward energy efficiency and the 
expansion of Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) including the installation of Smart Meters. The 
early activity was focused on the energy utilities; water utilities followed later. 

I. Background

In 2002, the California Public Utilities Commission (Commission or CPUC) opened Rulemaking (R.) 
02-06-001 “as a policymaking forum to develop demand response as a resource to enhance electric
system reliability, reduce power purchase and individual consumer costs, and protect the
environment.”1

By 2005, Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) filed Application (A.) 05-06-028 to deploy 
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI).2  Since PG&E provides electric and gas service to California-
American Water Company’s (Cal-Am) Monterey Water District, this memo focuses initially on 
Commission AMI proceedings with PG&E. 

II. PG&E’s AMI Implementation

PG&E’s proposed system-wide deployment of AMI was estimated to take five years.  It filed A.05-06-
028 on June 16, 2005 and subsequently revised it on October 13, 2005.  AMI includes metering and 
communications infrastructure together with computerized systems and software.  A wireless smart 

1 R.02-06-001, Order Instituting Rulemaking on policies and practices for advanced metering, demand response, and 
dynamic pricing, filed June 6, 2002.  The Rulemaking was closed by Decision (D.) 05-11-009 dated November 18, 2005. 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) was one of the investor owned utilities named as a respondent in the proceeding. 
2 A.05-06-028, Application of Pacific Gas and Electric Company for Authority to Increase Revenue Requirements to 
Recover the Costs to Deploy an Advanced Metering Infrastructure. 

EXHIBIT 18-A 236

mailto:Email:%20fran@laredolaw.nett
mailto:Email:%20fran@laredolaw.nett


Memorandum on Smart Meters 
January 7, 2019 

Page 2 of 4 

meter transmits customer usage data through radio transmission.  For evaluation purposes, PG&E had 
to show the likelihood of long-term benefits from utility operating cost savings as well as demand 
response and consumer energy consumption management potential. 
 
PG&E’s technology provides two-way communications to each customer’s meter.  It also allows other 
functions including direct polling to the meter by PG&E which can assist in completing customer 
service related requests.  It also has the potential for direct communication with in-home devices like 
thermostats and load control switches. 
 
AMI module-equipped meters provide significant operating data and consumption data with 
applications in demand forecasts, service-related issues, and rate design.  The useful life of the system 
was determined to be 20 years.  PG&E was authorized to proceed with AMI implementation in D.06-
07-027 on July 20, 2006. 
 

A. Addition of an Opt-Out Option 
 
In 2011, PG&E applied to the Commission for a modification to its “SmartMeter™” Program to include 
an opt-out option.3 In Phase 1 of the proceeding, the Commission determined the option was available 
only to residential customers who, for whatever reason, preferred an analog meter.  To cover the costs 
of this service, interim fees and charges were authorized.   
 

B. FCC Exposure Limits 
 
As part of the record in Phase 1, PG&E produced a response from the FCC which sets exposure limits 
for radio frequency (RF) fields.  FCC standards are derived from recommendations by the Institute of 
Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Inc. and the National Council on Radiation Protection and 
Measurements, as well as by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the Food and Drug 
Administration, and other federal health and safety agencies.  These scientists and engineers have 
extensive experience and knowledge in the area of RF biological effects and related issues. 
 
In the case of PG&E’s SmartMeters, the FCC had no data or report to suggest that exposure was 
occurring at levels of RF energy that exceed their RF exposure guidelines.4  The Commission further 
noted that the issue of whether RF emissions from SmartMeters “have an effect on individuals is 
outside the scope of this proceeding.”5 
 

C. Analog Meter Opt-Out Option 
 
The Commission balanced the customer concerns about exposure to RF transmissions with California’s 
energy policy that required investor owned utilities (IOU) to replace analog meters with smart meters 
“to give consumers greater control over their energy use.”6   
 
Only analog meters were authorized for customers exercising the opt-out option.  An initial fee plus 
monthly charges for a period of three years were authorized to cover the anticipated costs. 

                                                 
3 A.11-03-014, Application of Pacific Gas and Electric Company for Approval of Modifications to its SmartMeter™ 
Program and Increased Revenue Requirements to Recover the Costs of the Modifications. (U39M). 
 
4In D.10-12-001, the Commission determined that PG&E’s SmartMeter technology complied with FCC requirements. 
5 D.12-02-014, pp. 15-16. 
6 D.12-02-014, p. 16. 

EXHIBIT 18-A 237



Memorandum on Smart Meters 
January 7, 2019 

Page 3 of 4 

D. Phase 2 Issues 
 
Phase 2 of A.11-03-014 was limited in scope to consideration of cost and cost allocation issues 
associated with providing an opt-out option and whether to expand the opt-out option to allow for a 
community opt-out option. 
 

1. Cost and Cost Allocation (Opt-Out Fees) 
 
Because costs are based primarily on the number of customers who choose the analog option, results 
vary greatly.  The Commission examined what were the utility costs associated with offering an analog 
meter opt-out option and whether more than one option should be offered.   
 
The decision was to continue with the original “Initial Fee” ($75.00)7 and “Monthly Charge” ($10.00) 
for customers who were Non-California Alternative Rates for Energy (CARE) Customers.  Reduced 
fees for CARE customers were $10.00 and $5.00 respectively.  These are the same amounts that were 
established in D.12-02-014.  Collection of the monthly charge was limited to three years from the date 
the opt-out was chosen.  Analog meters would be read every other month. If these fees did not cover all 
program costs, the balance would be allocated to the residential customer class as a whole. 
 
There was unanimous agreement among the parties that the only opt-out option would be an all-analog 
meter.  Offering multiple meter types would have increased already high program costs.  The 
Commission agreed with this determination. 
 
Consideration was given to imposition of an “exit cost” or “exit fee” reflecting the costs associated with 
returning an opt-out customer’s meter to standard service with a smart meter. The Commission agreed 
with intervenors that no exit fee would be assessed on opt-out customers. 
 
Consideration was also given to whether the opt-out fees should be assessed on a per meter or per 
location basis.  The Commission directed that fees should be assessed on a per location basis.  
 

2. Community Opt-Out 
 
D.14-12-078 determined that local governments may not collectively opt out of smart meter programs 
on behalf of residents in their jurisdiction.  Similarly, multi-unit dwellings with homeowner and 
condominium associations may not collectively opt-out of smart meter programs on behalf of individual 
residents who are members of the association.8  
 
In making this determination, the Commission first examined whether it could delegate its authority to 
allow local governments or communities to determine what type of electric or gas meter can be installed 
within the government or community’s defined boundaries. 
 
 “Article XII, Section 3 of the California Constitution grants the California Legislature 

‘exclusive control over the PUC’s regulation of public utilities.’ Section 8 of Article XII 
of the California Constitution states, ‘a city, county or other public body may not 
regulate matters over which the Legislature grants regulatory power to the Commission.’  
Thus, the Commission holds the power to regulate public utilities, and this authority 

                                                 
7 The opt-out option was not offered prior to the installation of SmartMeters.  For water utilities where no conversion to 
smart meters has taken place, this could reduce or eliminate the Initial Fee expense. 
8 D.14-12-078, p. 4. 

EXHIBIT 18-A 238



Memorandum on Smart Meters 
January 7, 2019 

Page 4 of 4 

may not be delegated to another entity or public agency without statutory 
authorization.”9 

 
In addition, the Legislature granted the Commission authority over a public utility’s infrastructure, 
including the installation of metering equipment.10  Thus, in the absence of statutory authority modifying 
this intention, only the CPUC has authority to regulate public utilities. 
 

III. AMI for Water Utilities 
 
As part of a rulemaking proceeding begun in 2011, the Commission provided guidance for the use of 
AMI for regulated investor-owned water utilities.11  The Commission determined that AMI “can harness 
and communicate data to manage water production and purchases, identify and stop leaks, protect 
drinking water quality by promptly identifying backwash incidents, produce data that yield more 
accurate forecasts, and provide customers and water system operators timely information.  Current 
meters do not accomplish these objectives.”12 
 
The Commission’s 2016 Decision provided guidance for water IOUs’ implementation of AMI.  
Specifically, the Decision ordered “the commencement of a transition to the use of AMI for Class A and 
B water services to increase data for customer and operational use, produce conservation signals through 
real-time data delivery, improve water management, reduce leaks, and promote equity and 
sustainability.”13   The Monterey region was identified as an area where AMI installation was warranted. 
 
While the Decision ordered the “commencement of a transition to the use of AMI for Class A and B 
water services,”14 the approach would be gradual over one or two General Rate Case (GRC) cycles.  The 
initial targets were converting flat rate customers to metered service, replacing aging or obsolete meters, 
and installing AMI meters in new construction.  Class A and B water IOUs were to coordinate with 
electric and gas IOUs that have smart meters.  Customers who didn’t want analog meters replaced with 
AMI could request an opt-out via a process established by the water IOU. 
 
Cal-Am’s 2016 GRC effort to implement AMI was denied in D.18-12-021, but the Commission 
encouraged it to make a new proposal in a future application or GRC. 
 

IV. Conclusion 
 
Smart meters have been installed by PG&E in the Monterey area beginning in 2006.  The CPUC has 
exclusive jurisdiction over all utility infrastructure and delegation of this authority to other jurisdictions 
is prohibited without further legislative enactment.  Customers who do not want smart meters can opt 
out for any reason or no reason, but they bear the costs for this service.  Cal-Am does not yet have an 
approved program for district-wide AMI but could link up with PG&E’s infrastructure in the future. 

                                                 
9 Id. pp. 56-57. 
10 See Public Utilities Code Section 761. 
11 R.11-11-008, Order Instituting Rulemaking on the Commission’s Own Motion into Addressing the Commission’s Water 
Action Plan Objective of Setting Rates that Balance Investment, Conservation, and Affordability for Class A and Class B 
Water Utilities. 
12 D.16-12-026, pp. 61-62. 
13 D.16-12-026, p. 63.  The AMI features respond to the Governor’s May 9, 2016 Executive Order B-37-16 that directed the 
CPUC to take steps to stem water leaks. 
14 Id. 

EXHIBIT 18-A 239



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
19. LETTERS RECEIVED 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 
Prepared By: Arlene Tavani Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
A list of letters submitted to the Board of Directors or General Manager and received between 
December 11, 2018 and January 14, 2019 is shown below.  The purpose of including a list of 
these letters in the Board packet is to inform the Board and interested citizens. Copies of the 
letters are available for public review at the District office. If a member of the public would like 
to receive a copy of any letter listed, please contact the District office. Reproduction costs will 
be charged. The letters can also be downloaded from the District’s web site at www.mpwmd.net. 
 
 
Author Addressee Date Topic 

Hideko Inouye 
Graves 

David Stoldt 11/24/18 Request for Discretionary Exemption 

John Narigi and 
Bob McKenzie 

MPWMD Board 1/1/2019 MPWMD’s Motion to Correct Captions 

Loris Langdon MPWMD 1/8/2019 Unusually high water bill 

John Narigi and 
Bob McKenzie 

MPWMD Board 1/14/2019 Response of David Laredo to Coalition of 
Peninsula Businesses letter of January 1, 2019 

 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\19\Item-19.docx 

240

http://www.mpwmd.net/


241



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS 
 
20. MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program:  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Gabriela Ayala Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
SUMMARY:  As of December 31, 2018, a total of 22.581 acre-feet (6.6%) of the Paralta Well 
Allocation remained available for use by the Jurisdictions.  Pre-Paralta water in the amount of 
35.923 acre-feet is available to the Jurisdictions, and 28.932 acre-feet is available as public water 
credits. 

  
Exhibit 20-A shows the amount of water allocated to each Jurisdiction from the Paralta Well 
Allocation, the quantities permitted in December 2018 (“changes”), and the quantities remaining.  
The Paralta Allocation had two debits in December 2018. 

 
Exhibit 20-A also shows additional water available to each of the Jurisdictions and the information 
regarding the Community Hospital of the Monterey Peninsula (Holman Highway Facility).  
Additional water from expired or canceled permits that were issued before January 1991 are shown 
under “PRE-Paralta.”  Water credits used from a Jurisdiction’s “public credit” account are also 
listed.  Transfers of Non-Residential Water Use Credits into a Jurisdiction’s Allocation are 
included as “public credits.”  Exhibit 20-B shows water available to Pebble Beach Company and 
Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties, including Macomber Estates, Griffin Trust. Another table 
in this exhibit shows the status of Sand City Water Entitlement and the Malpaso Water Entitlement. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District’s Water Allocation Program, associated resource system supply 
limits, and Jurisdictional Allocations have been modified by a number of key ordinances.  These 
key ordinances are listed in Exhibit 20-C. 
 
EXHIBITS 
20-A Monthly Allocation Report 
20-B Monthly Entitlement Report 
20-C District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\20\Item-20.docx 
 

242



243



  

 
EXHIBIT 20-A 

MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 
Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of December 2018 
 
 

 

  

 

 
 
* Does not include 15.280 Acre-Feet from the District Reserve prior to adoption of Ordinance No. 73. 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\20\Item-20-Exh-A.docx 

 
Jurisdiction 

 
Paralta 

Allocation* 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
PRE- 

Paralta 
Credits 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
Public 
Credits 

 
Changes 

 
Remaining 

 
Total  

Available 

 
Airport District 

 
8.100 

 
 0.000 

 
5.197 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
5.197 

 
Carmel-by-the-Sea 

 
19.410 

 
0.000 

 
1.398 

 
1.081 

 
0.000 

 
1.081 

 
0.910 

 
0.000 

 
0.182 

 
2.661 

 
Del Rey Oaks 

 
8.100 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.440 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
Monterey 

 
76.320 

 
0.000 

 
0.263 

 
50.659 

 
0.000 

 
0.030 

 
38.121 

 
0.000 

 
2.325 

 
2.618 

 
Monterey County 

 
87.710 

 
0.000 

 
10.717 

 
13.080 

 
0.000 

 
0.352 

 
7.827 

 
0.000 

 
1.775 

 
12.844 

 
Pacific Grove 

 
25.770 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
1.410 

 
0.000 

 
0.022 

 
15.874 

 
0.000 

 
0.133 

 
0.155 

 
Sand City 

 
51.860 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.838 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
24.717 

 
0.000 

 
23.373 

 
23.373 

 
Seaside 

 
65.450 

 
0.417 

 
5.006 

 
34.438 

 
0.000 

 
34.438 

 
2.693 

 
0.000 

 
1.144 

 
40.588 

 
TOTALS 

 
342.720 

 
0.417 

 
22.581 

 
101.946 

 
0.000 

 
35.923 

 
90.142 

 
0.000 

 
28.932 

 
87.436 

 
Allocation Holder 

 
Water Available 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Water 

Available 

 
Quail Meadows 

 
33.000 

 
0.000 

 
32.320 

 
0.680 

 
Water West 

 
12.760 

 
0.003 

 
9.375 

 
3.385 

244



245



EXHIBIT 20-B 
MONTHLY ALLOCATION REPORT 

ENTITLEMENTS 
Reported in Acre-Feet 

For the month of December 2018 
 

Recycled Water Project Entitlements  
 

Entitlement Holder 
 

Entitlement 
 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
Pebble Beach Co. 1 

 
224.980 

 
0.200 

 
31.431 

 
193.549 

 
Del Monte Forest Benefited 

Properties 2 
(Pursuant to Ord No. 109) 

 
140.020 

 
0.173 

 
  53.819 

 

 
86.201 

 
Macomber Estates 

 
10.000 

 
0.000 

 
9.595 

  
0.405 

 
Griffin Trust 

 
5.000 

 
0.000 

 
4.829 

 
0.171 

CAWD/PBCSD Project 
Totals 

380.000 0.373 99.674 280.326 

 
 

Entitlement Holder 
 

Entitlement 
 

 
Changes this Month 

 
Total Demand from Water 

Permits Issued 

 
Remaining Entitlement/and 

Water Use Permits Available 

 
City of Sand City 

 
206.000 

 
0.000 

 
4.548 

 
201.452 

 
Malpaso Water Company 

 
80.000 

 
0.500 

 
11.808 

 
68.192 

 
D.B.O. Development No. 30 

 
13.950 

 
0.000 

 
1.112 

 
12.838 

 
City of Pacific Grove 

 
66.000 

 
0.000 

 
0.000 

 
66.000 

 
Cypress Pacific 

 
3.170 

 
0.000 

 
3.170 

 
0.000 

 

                                                 
Increases in the Del Monte Forest Benefited Properties Entitlement will result in reductions in the Pebble Beach Co. Entitlement. 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\20\Item-20-Exh-B.docx 

246



247



EXHIBIT 20-C 
  

District’s Water Allocation Program Ordinances 
  

Ordinance No. 1 was adopted in September 1980 to establish interim municipal water allocations 
based on existing water use by the jurisdictions.  Resolution 81-7 was adopted in April 1981 to 
modify the interim allocations and incorporate projected water demands through the year 2000.  
Under the 1981 allocation, Cal-Am’s annual production limit was set at 20,000 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 52 was adopted in December 1990 to implement the District’s water allocation 
program, modify the resource system supply limit, and to temporarily limit new uses of water.  As a 
result of Ordinance No. 52, a moratorium on the issuance of most water permits within the District 
was established.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 52 reduced Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 
16,744 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 70 was adopted in June 1993 to modify the resource system supply limit, establish a 
water allocation for each of the jurisdictions within the District, and end the moratorium on the 
issuance of water permits.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 70 was based on development of the Paralta 
Well in the Seaside Groundwater Basin and increased Cal-Am’s annual production limit to 17,619 
acre-feet.  More specifically, Ordinance No. 70 allocated 308 acre-feet of water to the jurisdictions 
and 50 acre-feet to a District Reserve for regional projects with public benefit. 
  
Ordinance No. 73 was adopted in February 1995 to eliminate the District Reserve and allocate the 
remaining water equally among the eight jurisdictions.  Of the original 50 acre-feet that was 
allocated to the District Reserve, 34.72 acre-feet remained and was distributed equally (4.34 acre-
feet) among the jurisdictions. 
  
Ordinance No. 74 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of toilet retrofit water 
savings on single-family residential properties.  The reinvested retrofit credits must be repaid by the 
jurisdiction from the next available water allocation and are limited to a maximum of 10 acre-feet.  
This ordinance sunset in July 1998.   
  
Ordinance No. 75 was adopted in March 1995 to allow the reinvestment of water saved through 
toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned and operated facilities.  
Fifteen percent of the savings are set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal 
and the remainder of the savings are credited to the jurisdictions allocation.  This ordinance sunset 
in July 1998.  
  
Ordinance No. 83 was adopted in April 1996 and set Cal-Am’s annual production limit at 17,621 
acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production limit at 3,046 acre-feet.  The modifications to the 
production limit were made based on the agreement by non-Cal-Am water users to permanently 
reduce annual water production from the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer in exchange for water 
service from Cal-Am.  As part of the agreement, fifteen percent of the historical non-Cal-Am 
production was set aside to meet the District’s long-term water conservation goal. 
  

248



Ordinance No. 87 was adopted in February 1997 as an urgency ordinance establishing a 
community benefit allocation for the planned expansion of the Community Hospital of the 
Monterey Peninsula (CHOMP).  Specifically, a special reserve allocation of 19.60 acre-feet of 
production was created exclusively for the benefit of CHOMP.  With this new allocation, Cal-Am’s 
annual production limit was increased to 17,641 acre-feet and the non-Cal-Am annual production 
limit remained at 3,046 acre-feet. 
  
Ordinance No. 90 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 
toilet retrofit water savings on single-family residential properties for 90-days following the 
expiration of Ordinance No. 74.  This ordinance sunset in September 1998. 
  
Ordinance No. 91 was adopted in June 1998 to continue the program allowing the reinvestment of 
water saved through toilet retrofits and other permanent water savings methods at publicly owned 
and operated facilities.   
  
Ordinance No. 90 and No. 91 were challenged for compliance with CEQA and nullified by the 
Monterey Superior Court in December 1998. 
  
Ordinance No. 109 was adopted on May 27, 2004, revised Rule 23.5 and adopted additional 
provisions to facilitate the financing and expansion of the CAWD/PBCSD Recycled Water Project. 
 
Ordinance No. 132 was adopted on January 24, 2008, established a Water Entitlement for Sand 
City and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits.  
 
Ordinance No. 165 was adopted on August 17, 2015, established a Water Entitlement for Malpaso 
Water Company and amended the rules to reflect the process for issuing Water Use Permits. 
 
Ordinance No. 166 was adopted on December 15, 2015, established a Water Entitlement for 
D.B.O. Development No. 30. 
 
Ordinance No. 168 was adopted on January 27, 2016, established a Water Entitlement for the City 
of Pacific Grove. 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\20\Item-20-Exh-C.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

249



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEM/STAFF REPORTS  
 
21. WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM REPORT   
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
 

Prepared By: Kyle Smith Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

I. MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION RETROFIT PROGRAM 
District Regulation XIV requires the retrofit of water fixtures upon Change of Ownership or 
Use with High Efficiency Toilets (HET) (1.28 gallons-per-flush), 2.0 gallons-per-minute 
(gpm) Showerheads, 1.2 gpm Washbasin faucets, 1.8 gpm kitchen, utility and bar sink faucets, 
and Rain Sensors on all automatic Irrigation Systems.  Property owners must certify the Site 
meets the District’s water efficiency standards by submitting a Water Conservation 
Certification Form (WCC), and a Site inspection is often conducted to verify compliance.   

 
A. Changes of Ownership 

Information is obtained monthly from Realquest.com on properties transferring ownership 
within the District.  The information compared against the properties that have submitted 
WCCs.  Details on 86 property transfers that occurred between December 1, 2018 and 
December 31, 2018 were added to the database.      
 

B. Certification  
The District received 34 WCCs between December 1, 2018, and December 31, 2018.  Data 
on ownership, transfer date, and status of water efficiency standard compliance were 
entered into the database. 

 
C. Verification 

In December, 58 properties were verified compliant with Rule 144 (Retrofit Upon Change 
of Ownership or Use).  Of the 58 verifications, 35 properties verified compliance by 
submitting certification forms and/or receipts.  District staff completed 31 Site inspections.  
Of the 31 properties inspected, 23 (74%) passed inspection. None of the properties that 
passed inspection involved more than one visit to verify compliance with all water 
efficiency standards.  

 
Savings Estimate 
Water savings from HET retrofits triggered by Rule 144 verified in December 2018 are 
estimated at 0.470 Acre-Feet Annually (AFA). Water savings from retrofits that exceeded the 
requirement (i.e., HETs to Ultra High Efficiency Toilets) is estimated at 0.220 AFA (22 
toilets).  Year-to-date estimated savings from toilet retrofits is 11.540 AFA. 

250



D. CII Compliance with Water Efficiency Standards 
Effective January 1, 2014, all Non-Residential properties were required to meet Rule 143, 
Water Efficiency Standards for Existing Non-Residential Uses. To verify compliance with 
these requirements, property owners and businesses are being sent notification of the 
requirements and a date that inspectors will be on Site to check the property. This month, 
District inspectors performed seven inspections.  Of the seven inspections certified, six 
were in compliance.  None of the properties that passed inspection involved more than one 
visit to verify compliance with all water efficiency standards; the remainder complied 
without a reinspection.  
 
MPWMD is forwarding its CII inspection findings to California American Water (Cal-
Am) for their verification with the Rate Best Management Practices (Rate BMPs) that are 
used to determine the appropriate non-residential rate division.  Compliance with 
MPWMD’s Rule 143 achieves Rate BMPs for indoor water uses, however, properties with 
landscaping must also comply with Cal-Am’s outdoor Rate BMPs to avoid Division 4 
(Non-Rate BMP Compliant) rates.  In addition to sharing information about indoor Rate 
BMP compliance, MPWMD notifies Cal-Am of properties with landscaping.  Cal-Am then 
conducts an outdoor audit to verify compliance with the Rate BMPs.  During November 
2018, MPWMD referred no properties to Cal-Am for verification of outdoor Rate BMPs. 

 
E. Water Waste Enforcement 

In response to the State’s drought emergency conservation regulation effective June 1, 
2016, the District has increased its Water Waste enforcement. The District has a Water 
Waste Hotline 831-658-5653 or an online form to report Water Waster occurrences at 
www.mpwmd.net or www.montereywaterinfo.org. There were two Water Waste 
responses during the past month. There were no repeated incidents that resulted in a fine.  
 

II. WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT 
 

A. Permit Processing 
District Rule 23 requires a Water Permit application for all properties that propose to 
expand or modify water use on a Site, including New Construction and Remodels.  District 
staff processed and issued 67 Water Permits in December 2018.  Eight Water Permits were 
issued using Water Entitlements (Pebble Beach Company, Malpaso Water, etc.).  No Water 
Permits involved a debit to a Public Water Credit Account.   
 
All Water Permits have a disclaimer informing applicants of the Cease and Desist Order 
against California American Water and that MPWMD reports Water Permit details to 
California American Water.  All Water Permit recipients with property supplied by a 
California American Water Distribution System will continue to be provided with the 
disclaimer. 

 
District Rule 24-3-A allows the addition of a second bathroom in an existing Single-Family 
Dwelling on a Single-Family Residential Site. Of the 67 Water Permits issued in 
December, one was issued under this provision. 
 

251

http://www.mpwmd.net/
http://www.montereywaterinfo.org/


B. Permit Compliance 
District staff completed 51 Water Permit final inspections during December 2018.  Twelve 
of the final inspections failed due to unpermitted fixtures.  Of the 35 passing properties, 29 
passed inspection on the first visit. In addition, six pre-inspections were conducted in 
response to Water Permit applications received by the District. 

 
C. Deed Restrictions 

District staff prepares deed restrictions that are recorded on the property title to provide 
notice of District Rules and Regulations, enforce Water Permit conditions, and provide 
notice of public access to water records.  In April 2001, the District Board of Directors 
adopted a policy regarding the processing of deed restrictions.  In the month of December, 
the District prepared 55 deed restrictions.  Of the 67 Water Permits issued in December, 
38 (69%) required deed restrictions.  District staff provided Notary services for 46 Water 
Permits with deed restrictions. 
Participation in the rebate program is detailed in the following chart. The table below 
indicates the program summary for Rebates for California American Water Company 
customers. 

 
III. JOINT MPWMD/CAW REBATE PROGRAM 
 

REBATE PROGRAM SUMMARY December-2018 2018 YTD 1997 - Present 
I. Application Summary               

 A. Applications Received 191 1472 26,206 

 B. Applications Approved 160 1001 20,434 

 C. Single Family Applications 142 1207 23,701 

 D. Multi-Family Applications 52 120 1,351 

 E. Non-Residential Applications 2 29 354 

II. Type of Devices Rebated 

Number 
of 

devices 
Rebate 

Paid 
Estimated 

AF 
Gallons 
Saved 

2018 YTD 
Quantity 

2018 YTD 
Paid 

2018 YTD 
Estimated AF 

 A. High Efficiency Toilet (HET) 118 10194.00 1.265220 412,273 369 26,619.00 3.60036 

 B. Ultra Low Flush to HET 0 0.00 0.000000 39,102 11 1,399.00 0.11 

 C. Ultra HET 0 0.00 0.010000 3,259 3 1,475.00 0.01 

 D. Toilet Flapper 0 0.00 0.000000 0 5 75.00 0 

 E. High Efficiency Dishwasher 19 3930.00 0.057000 18,574 201 28,930.00 0.057 

 F. High Efficiency Clothes Washer 78 52940.99 1.255800 409,204 466 296,439.33 1.2558 

 G. Instant-Access Hot Water System 0 0.00 0.000000 0 3 600.00 0 

 H. On Demand Systems 2 200.00 0.000000 0 4 500.00 0 

 I. Zero Use Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 J. High Efficiency Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 K. Pint Urinals 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 L. Cisterns 3 9650.00 0.000000 0 28 33,024.75 0 

 M. Smart Controllers 1 199.99 0.000000 0 1 199.99 0 

 N. Rotating Sprinkler Nozzles 0 0.00 0.000000 0 50 252.00 0 

 O. Moisture Sensors 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 P. Lawn Removal & Replacement 1 540.00 0.000000 0 7 7,010.00 0 

 Q. Graywater 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 

 R. Ice Machines 0 0.00 0.000000 0 0 0.00 0 
III.  Totals: Month; AF; Gallons; YTD 222 77654.98 2.58802 882,411 1148 182,087.59 16.26102 

             2018 YTD 1997 - Present 
IV. Total Rebated: YTD; Program 482,087.59 31,807.27 
V. Estimated Water Savings in Acre-Feet Annually* 16.261020 2.58802 
*Retrofit savings are estimated at 0.041748 AF/HET;0.01 AF/UHET;0.01 AF/ULF to HET;0.003 AF/HE DW; 0.0161 AF/Residential HEW; 0.0082 AF/100 sf. of lawn removal  

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\21\Item-21.docx 

252



253



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITESM/STAFF REPORTS 
 
22. QUARTERLY WATER USE CREDIT TRANSFER STATUS REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 

From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Gabriela Ayala Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
Information about Water Use Credit transfer applications will be reported as applications are 
received. There are no pending Water Use Credit transfer applications. 
 
 
 
 
  
  
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\22\Item-22.docx 

254



255



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
23. CARMEL RIVER FISHERY REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2018 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
   
Prepared By: Beverly Chaney Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 
General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

 
AQUATIC HABITAT AND FLOW CONDITIONS:   After slowly filling over the last month, 
Los Padres Reservoir (LPR) spilled on December 18, peaking at 60 cfs following a moderate 
storm. The river front reached the lagoon on December 19, 2018.  Rearing conditions for juvenile 
steelhead are now good all the way to the lagoon. Most lower-valley tributaries remain dry at their 
confluence. 

Mean daily streamflow at the Sleepy Hollow Weir ranged from 17 to 53 cfs (monthly mean 28.5 
cfs) resulting in 1,750 acre-feet (AF) of runoff. Mean daily streamflow at the Highway 1 gage 
ranged from 0 to 27 cfs (monthly mean 8.2 cfs) resulting in 506 acre-feet (AF) of runoff. 

There were 2.45 inches of rainfall in December as recorded at Cal-Am’s San Clemente gauge (3.64 
inches at LPR). The rainfall total for WY 2019 (which started on October 1, 2018) is 4.66 inches, 
or 68% of the long-term year-to-date average of 6.81 inches.  

CARMEL RIVER LAGOON:  The lagoon mouth is closed and the water surface elevation rose 
from 9.5 to 12.75 feet (North American Vertical Datum of 1988; NAVD 88) due to waves 
overtopping the beach berm during a large mid-month storm event, and then river inflow starting 
on December 19, 2018 (see graph below). 
  
Water quality depth-profiles were conducted at five sites on December 18 while the lagoon was 
closed and no river inflow (the river reached the lagoon the next day). The water surface elevation 
was 9. 5 feet with foamy seawater and ocean debris on top. Steelhead rearing conditions near the 
surface were “fair to good” down to ~1 meter depth with moderate salinity and oxygen levels, but 
conditions generally worsened in deeper water with higher salinity and lower oxygen levels. 
Throughout the lagoon, salinity ranged from 10-25 ppt, dissolved oxygen (DO) levels were 0.1-9 
mg/l, while water temperatures were slightly lower again this month, ranging from 53-60 degrees 
F.   
  
SLEEPY HOLLOW STEELHEAD REARING FACILITY:  General contractor Mercer-
Fraser Company of Eureka, CA, was hired for the Intake Upgrade Project and started construction 
in September on the $2 million project. The main features of the project include installing a new 

256



intake structure that can withstand flood and drought conditions as well as the increased bedload 
from the San Clemente Dam removal project two years ago, and a new Recirculating Aquaculture 
System (RAS) that can be operated in times of low flow or high turbidity to keep the fish 
healthy. December work included re-contouring of the disturbed area, some revegetation, 
completion of the plumbing for the return water at the end of the rearing channel, foundation work 
for the settling basin, and pouring the new concrete foundation for the equipment building. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\23\Item-23.docx 

257



 
Exhibit 24-A shows the water supply status for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
(MPWRS) as of January 1, 2019.  This system includes the surface water resources in the Carmel 
River Basin, the groundwater resources in the Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer and the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin.  Exhibit 24-A is for Water Year (WY) 2019 and focuses on four factors: rainfall, 
runoff, and storage.  The rainfall and Streamflow values are based on measurements in the upper 
Carmel River Basin at Sleepy Hollow Weir.   

 
Water Supply Status:  Rainfall through December 2018 totaled 2.25 inches and brings the cumulative 
rainfall total for WY 2019 to 3.82 inches, which is 133% of the long-term average through December.  
Estimated unimpaired runoff during December totaled 945 acre-feet (AF) and brings the cumulative 
runoff total for WY 2019 to 1,212 AF, which is 67% of the long-term average through December.  
Usable storage for the MRWPRS was 27,370 acre-feet, which is 99% of average through December, 
and equates to 73% percent of system capacity   
 
Production Compliance:  Under State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Cease and Desist 
Order No. 2016-0016 (CDO), California American Water (Cal-Am) is allowed to produce no more 
than 8,310 AF of water from the Carmel River in WY 2019.  Through December, using the CDO 
accounting method, Cal-Am has produced 964 AF from the Carmel River (including ASR capped at 
600 AF, Table 13, and Mal Paso.)  In addition, under the Seaside Basin Decision, Cal-Am is allowed 
to produce 1,820 AF of water from the Coastal Subareas and 0 AF from the Laguna Seca Subarea of 
the Seaside Basin in WY 2019.  Through December, Cal-Am has produced 620 AF from the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin.  Through December, 0 AF of Carmel River Basin groundwater have been diverted 
for Seaside Basin injection; 0 AF have been recovered for customer use, and 0 AF have been diverted 
under Table 13 water rights.  Cal-Am has produced 1,674 AF for customer use from all sources through 
December.  Exhibit 24-C shows production by source.  Some of the values in this report may be 
revised in the future as Cal-Am finalizes their production values and monitoring data.  The 12 month 
moving average of production for customer service is 9,910 AF, which is below the rationing trigger 
of 10,130 AF for WY 2019. 
 
EXHIBITS 
24-A Water Supply Status: January 1, 2019 
24-B Monthly Cal-Am Diversions from Carmel River and Seaside Groundwater Basins:  WY 2019 
24-C Monthly Cal-Am production by source: WY 2019 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\24\Item-24.docx 
 
  

ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORT 
 
24. MONTHLY WATER SUPPLY AND CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER 

PRODUCTION REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   N/A 
 
From: David J. Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.: 
   
Prepared By: Jonathan Lear Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  Exempt from environmental review per SWRCB Order Nos. 95-10 and 
2016-0016, and the Seaside Basin Groundwater Basin adjudication decision, as amended and 
Section 15268 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, as a ministerial 
project; Exempt from Section 15307, Actions by Regulatory Agencies for Protection of Natural 
Resources. 

258



259



 
 

EXHIBIT 24-A 
 

 

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
Water Supply Status 

January 1, 2019 
 

           Factor Oct to Dec 2018  Average 
To Date 

Percent of 
Average 

Oct to Dec 2017  

 
Rainfall 
(Inches) 

6.07 
 

6.77 
 

90% 1.02 
 

 
 Runoff 
 (Acre-Feet) 

2,962 
 

6,957 43% 2,599 
 
 

 
 Storage 5 
 (Acre-Feet) 

28,680 28,990 99% 30,580 
 

      
 
Notes: 
 

1. Rainfall and runoff estimates are based on measurements at San Clemente Dam.  Annual rainfall and runoff at 
Sleepy Hollow Weir average 21.1 inches and 67,246 acre-feet, respectively.  Annual values are based on the water 
year that runs from October 1 to September 30 of the following calendar year.  The rainfall and runoff averages at 
the Sleepy Hollow Weir site are based on records for the 1922-2018 and 1902-2018 periods respectively. 

 
2. The rainfall and runoff totals are based on measurements through the dates referenced in the table.  
 
3. Storage estimates refer to usable storage in the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System (MPWRS) that 

includes surface water in Los Padres and San Clemente Reservoirs and ground water in the Carmel Valley Alluvial 
Aquifer and in the Coastal Subareas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.   The storage averages are end-of-month 
values and are based on records for the 1989-2018 period. The storage estimates are end-of-month values for the 
dates referenced in the table. 

 
4. The maximum storage capacity for the MPWRS is currently 37,639 acre-feet.   

 
 

 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\24\Item-24-Exh-A.docx 

260



261



California American Water Production by Source: Water Year 2019

Actual Anticipated
Acre-Feet 

Under Target Actual Anticipated Under Target

Upper Lower Upper Lower Upper Lower Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca Coastal LagunaSeca

acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet acre-feet
Oct-18 0 491 0 550 0 59 341 28 350 0 9 -28 860 900 40 16 25 9
Nov-18 0 456 0 383 0 -73 280 25 350 0 70 -25 761 733 -28 21 25 4
Dec-18 0 468 0 559 0 91 162 18 100 0 -62 -18 648 659 11 11 25 14
Jan-19
Feb-19
Mar-19
Apr-19
May-19
Jun-19
Jul-19
Aug-19
Sep-19

To Date 0 1,416 0 1,492 0 76 782 71 800 0 18 -71 2,269 2,292 23 48 75 27

Total Production: Water Year 2019

Oct-18 925
Nov-18 758
Dec-18 684
Jan-19
Feb-19
Mar-19
Apr-19
May-19
Jun-19
Jul-19
Aug-19
Sep-19

To Date 2,3672,317 50

659 25

Actual Anticipated Acre-Feet Under Target

876 49
782 -24

Carmel Valley Wells 1 Seaside Wells 2 Total Wells Sand City Desal

Actual Anticipated 3 Under Target Actual Anticipated Under Target

1. Carmel Valley Wells include upper and lower valley wells.  Anticipate production from this source includes monthly production volumes associated with SBO 2009‐60, 20808A, and 20808C water rights.  Under these water 
rights,  water produced from the Carmel Valley wells is delivered to customers or injected into the Seaside Groundwater Basin for storage.

2. Seaside wells anticipated production is associated with pumping native Seaside Groundwater (which is regulated by the Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication Decision) and recovery of stored ASR water (which is prescribed 
in a MOA between MPWMD , Cal‐Am, California Department of Fish and Game, National Marine Fisheries Service, and as regulated by 20808C water right.

3. Negative values for Acre‐Feet under target indicates production over targeted value.

EXHIBIT 24-B 262



(All values in Acre-Feet)

WY 2018 Actual 1,352 984 82 1,066 2,417 0 0 43 43

1. This table is current through the date of this report.
2. For CDO compliance, ASR, Mal Paso, and Table 13 diversions are included in River production per State Board.
3. Sand City Desal, Table 13, and ASR recovery are also tracked as water resources projects.
4. To date, 0 AF and 0 AF have been produced from the River for ASR and Table 13 respectively.
5. All values are rounded to the nearest Acre-Foot.
6. For CDO Tracking Purposes, ASR production for injection is capped at 600 AFY.
7. Table 13 diversions are reported under water rights but counted as production from the River for CDO tracking.

Oct-18 491 369 0 0 16 8 884
Nov-18 456 304 0 0 21 8 790
Dec-18 468 180 0 0 11 8 667
Jan-19
Feb-19
Mar-19
Apr-19
May-19
Jun-19
Jul-19
Aug-19

Sep-19

Total 1,416 853 0 0 48 24 2,341

WY 2018 1,352 1,066 0 0 43 7 2,467
1. This table is produced as a proxy for customer demand.
2. Numbers are provisional and are subject to correction.

12 Month Moving Average 1 9,839 10,130 Rule 160 Production Limit
1. Average includes production from Carmel River, Seaside Basin, Sand City Desal, and ASR recovery produced for Customer Service.

Total

Rationing Trigger: WY 2019

Monthly Production from all Sources for Customer Service: WY 2019
(All values in Acre-Feet)

Carmel River 
Basin

Seaside Basin ASR Recovery Table 13 Sand City Mal Paso

-53 168 0 24 27 51Difference 221 18 -71

0 24 75 99

0 0 48

Target 1,661 800 0 800

482,293

Seca Compliance Recovery City 3
Year-to-Date

Actual 4 1,440 782 71 853

Production vs. CDO and Adjudication to Date: WY 2019

MPWRS Water Projects and Rights

2,461

Sand

Values Basin 2, 6 Coastal

Carmel Seaside Groundwater Basin
MPWRS 

Total

Water Projects 
and Rights 

Total
River Laguna Ajudication ASR Table 13 7

EXHIBIT 24-C 263



264



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
25. QUARTERLY CARMEL RIVER RIPARIAN CORRIDOR MANAGEMENT 

PROGRAM REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted: N/A 
 

From: Dave Stoldt,  Program/  N/A 
 General Manager Line Item No.:  
 

Prepared By: Thomas Christensen and Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 Larry Hampson   
                              

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 
 
IRRIGATION OF RIPARIAN VEGETATION: The supplemental watering of riparian 
restoration plantings was carried out for the dry season in 2018 at six Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District (District) riparian habitat restoration sites.  The following irrigation systems 
were in use March through November: deDampierre, Trail and Saddle Club, Begonia, Valley Hills, 
Schulte, and Schulte Bridge. 
 
 Water Use in Acre-Feet (AF) 
 (preliminary values subject to revision) 
  
 January - March 2018    0.82 AF 
 April - June 2018    3.41  
 July – September 2018 4.79 
 October – December 2018 2.89 AF 
  
 Year-to-date      11.91 AF 
 
MONITORING OF RIPARIAN VEGETATION:   Starting in June 2018, staff recorded 
monthly observations of canopy vigor on target willow and cottonwood trees to provide an 
indication of plant water stress and corresponding soil moisture levels.  Four locations (Rancho 
Cañada, San Carlos, Valley Hills, and Schulte) are monitored monthly for canopy ratings based 
on a scale from one to ten. This scale evaluates characteristics such as yellowing leaves and 
percentages of defoliation (see scale on Exhibit 25-A).  A total of 12 willows and 12 cottonwoods 
at these locations provide a data set of established and planted sample trees that are representative 
of trees in the Carmel River riparian corridor. Combined with monthly readings from the District’s 
array of monitoring wells and pumping records for large-capacity Carmel Valley wells in the 
California American Water service area, the District’s monitoring provides insight into the status 
of soil moisture through the riparian corridor. 
 

265



Monitoring results for the 2018 season show that riparian vegetation was below threshold moisture 
stress levels because of adequate soil moisture. The graph in Exhibit 25-A shows average canopy 
ratings for willows and cottonwoods in selected restoration sites in lower Carmel Valley.  The 
graph in Exhibit 25-B shows impacts to water table elevations.  
 
The types of monitoring measurements made during June - October 2017 are as follows: 
 
 Monitoring Measurement     
 
 Canopy ratings    (See Exhibit 25-A for trends.)  
 Groundwater levels (monitoring wells) (See Exhibit 25-B for trends.)  
 Groundwater pumping (production wells) 
 
OTHER TASKS PERFORMED SINCE THE OCTOBER 2018 QUARTERLY REPORT: 
 
1. Rancho San Carlos Bank Stabilization Project: The Rancho San Carlos Bank 

Stabilization Project was completed on October 31, 2018.  In the winter of 2016-2017 this 
reach experienced significant erosion which created a potential threat to houses in the area 
and the loss of mature riparian forest. This project was designed to prevent additional bank 
erosion and incorporate new plantings to reestablish native streamside habitat. The project 
consisted of protecting the left bank with a 165 foot long log cribwall. The right bank was 
protected with riprap and anchored rootwads with additional gravel and cobble to support 
the bank. 

 

 
  

266



2. Concrete Bridge Pier and Deck Removal: During the March 10, 1995 flood, the furthest 
downstream bridge on the Rancho Cañada Golf Course collapsed. A concrete center pier 
and the bridge deck fell into the river and remained there for 23 years. The District 
recognized an opportunity to remove the concrete as a mitigation offset for work being 
carried out at the Sleepy Hollow Steelhead Rearing Facility (SHSRF).  
 

 
  Concrete Bridge Pier before removal (Spring 2018) 
 

 
  Concrete Bridge Pier removed from channel bottom (Fall 2018) 

 
 
 

267



3. Los Padres Dam Long-Term Plan:  The Technical Review Committee (TRC) for 
sediment management held several meetings to review the results of sediment transport 
model development and scenario analysis.  Preliminary results indicate potential changes 
in the bottom of the Carmel River channel of -5 to +5 feet in the lower several miles of the 
river, depending on the supply of sediment from the upper watershed.  Alternatives range 
from no change to a resumption of the natural load.  While the model shows results for a 
60-year analysis period, modeled river channel adjustments generally occur within the first 
10 to 20 years after a change in supply. 
 
Los Padres Dam Fish Passage Study:  The fish passage TRC met in November 2018 to 
consider several alternatives to improve upstream and downstream passage.  Several 
alternatives were eliminated due to complexity and uncertainty of benefits.   
 
It is expected that the two TRCs will need one or two additional meetings before a report 
of findings can be prepared. 
 

4. Integrated Regional Water Management: Staff participated in several meetings to 
review regional goals and objectives and to expand the Regional Water Management 
Group.  Please see related information in this Board packet under Action items. 
 
 

EXHIBITS 
25-A Average Willow and Cottonwood Canopy Rating 
25-B Depth to Groundwater 
 
 
   
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\25\Item-25.docx 

268



EXHIBIT 25-A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\25\Item-25-Exh-A.docx 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

Ca
no

py
 R

at
in

g

Date

Carmel River Riparian Vegetation:
Average Canopy Rating for Cottonwoods and Willows

Cottonwoods

Willows

Stress Level

1= Green, obviously vigorous none, no irrigation required
2= Some visible yellowing low, occasional irrigation required
3= Leaves mostly yellowing moderate, regular irrigation required
4= < 10% Defoliated moderate, regular irrigation required
5= Defoliated 10% to 30% moderate, regular irrigation required
6= Defoliated 30% to 50% moderate to high, additional measures required
7= Defoliated 50% to 70% high stress, risk of mortality or canopy dieback
8= Defoliated 70% to 90% high stress, risk of mortality or canopy dieback
9= > 90% Defoliated high stress, risk of mortality or canopy dieback

10=  Dead consider replanting

     Canopy Rating Scale

269



270



 
EXHIBIT 25-B 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\25\Item-25-Exh-B.docx 

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

De
pt

h 
to

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 (f
ee

t)

Date

Carmel Valley Alluvial Aquifer: Depth to Groundwater

Cañada East Area

Schulte Area

Valley Hills Area

271



272



ITEM: INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/STAFF REPORTS 
 
26. SEMI-ANNUAL GROUNDWATER-QUALITY MONITORING REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: January 23, 2019 Budgeted:   Yes 
 

From: David Stoldt,  Program/  Hydrologic Monitoring 2.6  
 General Manager Line Item No.: 2-6-1 G, and 2-6-2 D 
 

Prepared By: Jonathan Lear/ Cost Estimate:  N/A 
 Tom Lindberg 
 

General Counsel Review:  N/A 
Committee Recommendation:  N/A 
CEQA Compliance:  This action does not constitute a project as defined by the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15378. 

 
SUMMARY:  Water-quality results from the Fall 2018 sampling of the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District’s (District’s) monitor well networks in the Carmel Valley aquifer and the 
coastal areas of the Seaside Groundwater Basin are presented and briefly summarized below. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District has maintained a groundwater-quality monitoring program in the 
Carmel Valley Aquifer since 1981, and in the Seaside Groundwater Basin since 1990. Currently, 
collection of samples from the Carmel Valley monitor wells is conducted on an annual basis.  The 
sampling schedule for Carmel Valley is staggered, with upper valley wells (i.e., upgradient of the 
Narrows), sampled in Spring and lower Carmel Valley wells in Fall, to coincide with the 
historically higher nitrate concentrations in these respective areas.  Beginning in 2007, the District 
was retained by the Seaside Basin Watermaster to collect water-quality samples from the District’s 
Seaside Basin coastal monitor wells on a quarterly basis.  The results of that sampling are reported 
to the Seaside Basin Watermaster Board on an annual basis.  Results of the Fall 2017 and Fall 
2018 sampling of the Seaside Basin coastal monitor wells are included in this report. 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
Carmel Valley Aquifer Monitor Wells - Results from the Fall 2018 sampling are provided in 
Exhibit 26-A.  Six monitor wells in the lower Carmel Valley were sampled during Fall 2018, per 
the sampling schedule described above.  Review of these water-quality results indicates that, in 
general, there are minor changes in overall water quality compared to samples collected in 2017 
(provided here as a reference in Exhibit 26-B).  A seventh well that was formally sampled in the 
Fall (16S/1E-13Md), was not sampled in Fall 2018 or Fall 2017 because it was submerged under 
high water in the Carmel River Lagoon wetlands during the sampling period.  Another well that 
had been sampled during this period was destroyed by flooding in March of 2011 when the river 
scoured away the south end of the Carmel River State Beach parking lot. The locations of the 
sampling points are shown on the map in Exhibit 26-C.  Changes in water quality for specific 
wells are discussed below.  Staff is particularly interested in tracking indicators of potential 
seawater intrusion in the coastal portion of Carmel Valley.  Accordingly, three clustered sets of 
wells were established west of Highway 1, with each set being made up of three wells completed 

273



at different depths.  Review of historical data indicated that the shallower and intermediate depth 
wells in the coastal area are subject to the mixing of fresh water and saline water as high tides and 
surf overtop the sand berm between the lagoon and the ocean.  This contributes to episodic mixing 
within the shallower and intermediate zones of the aquifer, but is not indicative of larger-scale 
seawater intrusion into the aquifer.  All three wells in the cluster closest to the ocean were 
destroyed by river erosion in 2011, and all three of the wells in the next closest cluster to the ocean 
were inaccessible due to high water during the sampling period, so currently, only the deeper well 
at one of the three coastal locations is sampled. 

Well 16S/1W-13Lc is the deepest in the array of three wells located State Parks property near the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District treatment plant at River Mile (RM) 0.65, currently the most 
proximate well to the ocean in Carmel Valley that is available for sampling.  There is an overall 
increasing trend in Specific Electrical Conductance (SEC) and Chloride from 1989 to 2018 
(Exhibit 26-D) with some notable fluctuations.  Both SEC and Chloride declined from 2006 to 
2008, but have trended generally upward since then.  However, current Chloride and SEC levels 
are below peak levels observed at this location in Water Year 2013, and although both constituents 
are slightly elevated compared to the previous year, they are both lower than they have been in 
nine of the last 13 years.  Additional background on historical water-quality at the coastal monitor 
well sites can be found in District Technical Memorandum 90-04, Summary of Carmel Valley 
Groundwater-quality from Coastal Monitor Wells, which is available at the District office.   Staff 
will continue to track future results for trends that might indicate significant changes in 
concentrations of these or other constituents in the coastal area of the aquifer.  

Well 16S/1E-23E4, located 6.53 miles upstream from the mouth of the Carmel River, has had 
fluctuating water quality in the past - primarily as variably elevated iron and manganese, likely 
attributable to flooding along the roadside where this well is located.  Elevaated iron and 
manganese concentrations are not unusual in Carmel Valley; four of the six wells sampled in Fall 
2018 showed levels above the State Drinking Water Standards for these constituents.  Results 
indicate no significant changes to water quality here in 2018 relative to 2017.  Staff will continue 
to monitor the site to ensure the wellhead is secure from surface-water sources. 

Well 16S/1E-23La, located 6.72 miles upstream from the river mouth, does not show a significant 
change in 2018 relative to 2017, but a graph of SEC and Chloride is included to track long-term 
trends as was described in previous Board packet reports (Exhibit 26-E).  This graph indicates a 
downward trend in both SEC and Chloride at this site; most other constituents were not 
significantly different in 2018 relative to 2017. 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Coastal Monitor Wells - Since 1990, the District has been 
collecting water-quality samples from coastal monitor wells in the Seaside Groundwater Basin, 
for the purposes of water-quality characterization and sea-water intrusion monitoring.  In 2009 
District staff switched from air-lifting samples from wells in Seaside to “micro-purging”, which 
generally extends the well life. In Fall 2018, 11 dedicated monitor wells at six different sites were 
sampled.  Results of water-quality sampling from 2018 and 2017 for the Seaside wells are provided 
in Exhibit 26-A and Exhibit 26-B, respectively.  Because laboratory results for the Fall 2018 
samples needed to be received and processed earlier than in years prior to 2008 in order to complete 
an Annual Report to the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster, some of the Seaside wells were 

274



actually sampled in July and August of 2018.  The locations of the Seaside monitor wells are shown 
on the map in Exhibit 26-F.  Results for most constituents in most of the wells were not 
significantly different in 2018 relative to 2017, with few exceptions.  Five of the wells in the 
Seaside Groundwater Basin showed levels of Iron above the Drinking Water Standard in Fall 2018.  
Concentrations of Iron were notably higher in two wells (15S/1E-N2 and -15F2) in 2018 relative 
to 2017.  Concentrations of Iron in well 15S/1E-F1, while still elevated, were considerably lower 
in 2018 compared to 2017.  The concentration of Iron in well 15S/1E-11Pb was lower relative to 
the higher reading in 2017, and remains significantly lower than the level reported in 2015 (5.772 
mg/l). The level of Iron in well 15S/1E-11Pa was almost unchanged relative to 2017, but staff will 
continue to watch it as it was elevated well above the Drinking Water Standard in 2016.  The 
concentration of Iron in well 15S/1E-11Fc was lower than in 2017, and far lower than in 2016, and 
the concentration in well -11Fa was about the same as reported in 2017.  A more complete 
historical summary of the Seaside Basin coastal groundwater-quality data is contained in District 
Technical Memorandum 97-02 Seaside Basin Coastal Monitor Wells: Ground Water-quality 
Monitoring Results, 1990-1996, which is available at the District office.  
 
EXHIBITS 
26-A Groundwater-quality Monitoring Results - Fall 2018 
26-B Groundwater-quality Monitoring Results - Fall 2017 
26-C Location of MPWMD Lower Carmel Valley Water-quality Monitoring Wells 
26-D Water-quality Results in Well 16S/1W-13Lc in Carmel Valley 
26-E Water-quality Results in Well 16S/1E-23La in Carmel Valley 
26-F Location of MPWMD Seaside Basin Water-quality Monitoring Wells 
 
 
U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\26\Item-26.docx 

275



276



EXHIBIT 26-A

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

GROUNDWATER-QUALITY MONITORING RESULTS

Carmel Valley Aquifer Sample Collection Date:  October 15, 2018

Seaside Basin Sample Collection Dates: July 3, August 13, September 5,  2018

Units are milligrams per liter unless otherwise noted.

Water Quality Constituent
Specific 

Conductance 
(micromhos/cm)

Total 
Alkalinity   

(as CACO3)
pH Chloride Sulfate

Ammonia 
Nitrogen 
(as N)

Nitrate 
Nitrogen 
(as NO3)

Total 
Organic 
Carbon

Calcium Sodium Magnesium Potassium Iron Manga-  
nese

Orthophos-
phate

Total 
Dissolved 

Solids
Boron Bromide Fluoride

Drinking Water Standard (1) 900 1600 2200 (2) NA NA 250 500 600 (2) 250 500 600 (2) NA 45 NA NA NA NA NA 0.3 0.05 NA NA NA NA

Sampling Location River Mile

Carmel Valley Aquifer

16S/1W-14Jh (shal) 0.07 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-14Jf (inter) 0.07 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-14Jg (deep) 0.07 no longer in annual sampling network, destroyed by flooding

16S/1W-13Mc (shal) 0.31 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13Mb (inter) 0.31 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13Md (deep) 0.31 no access in November or December due to high water in Lagoon

16S/1W-13Lb (shal) 0.65 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13La (inter) 0.65 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13Lc (deep) 0.65 967 189 7.2 95 170 0.6 <0.1 2.6 83 101 21 3.7 2.000 0.740 0.3 600 0.21 0.2 1.8
16S/1E-17J4 3.85 466 87 6.4 33 98 <0.1 0.6 1.9 41 28 16 3.3 0.244 0.018 <0.1 300 <0.05 0.1 0.2
16S/1E-17R2 3.86 1223 169 6.5 122 334 0.2 <0.1 4.8 142 69 31 4.0 7.970 0.300 <0.1 880 <0.05 0.2 0.2
16S/1E-23E4 6.53 1082 269 7.0 101 170 <0.1 <0.1 2.4 109 84 27 1.7 1.010 0.781 <0.1 730 0.10 0.2 0.5
16S/1E-23La 6.72 432 113 7.0 28 64 <0.1 0.1 1.5 35 33 12 2.8 0.998 0.197 <0.1 264 <0.05 0.1 0.5
16S/1E-24N5 8.02 442 128 6.9 26 62 <0.1 <0.1 1.4 46 30 13 2.6 <0.01 <0.01 <0.1 268 <0.05 0.1 0.3

Seaside Basin

15S/1E-15N3 (shal) 214 66 7.1 46 15 <0.1 <0.1 0.3 18 34 5 2.9 0.036 <0.01 <0.1 214 <0.05 0.2 0.1
15S/1E-15N2 (deep) 889 230 7.4 153 15 <0.1 <0.1 0.9 57 106 15 4.8 5.320 0.106 <0.1 529 0.11 0.4 0.3
15S/1E-23Ca (shal) 760 206 7.4 105 38 0.1 1.1 0.9 72 83 16 4.6 0.064 0.012 <0.1 474 0.08 0.3 <0.1
15S/1E-23Cb (deep) not sampled in 2018 due to obstruction in well

15S/1E-15F1 (shal) 315 69 6.8 48 11 <0.1 0.7 0.5 20 35 5 2.6 0.776 <0.01 <0.1 206 <0.05 0.1 <0.1
15S/1E-15F2 (deep) 1109 316 6.2 159 42 0.1 <0.1 2.1 81 111 17 5.1 25.900 0.286 <0.1 660 0.11 0.4 <0.1
15S/1E-15K5 (shal) 288 66 7.7 50 9 0.1 0.4 0.5 18 42 5 2.5 <0.01 <0.01 <0.1 211 <0.05 0.1 <0.1
15S/1E-15K4 (deep) 797 -- 7.4 116 71 <0.1 0.7  -- 57 101 19 4.2 0.04 0.157 <0.1 509 0.11  -- 0.3
15S/1E-11Pa (shal) 348 67 6.5 58 16 <0.1 0.2 0.7 24 33 5 3.6 0.336 <0.01 <0.1 240 <0.05 0.1 <0.1
15S/1E-11Pb (deep) 433 100 6.1 71 4 0.7 <0.1 10.4 26 57 4 3.7 0.517 <0.01 <0.1 223 0.07 0.2 0.1
15S/1E-12Fa (shal) 260 54 8.2 44 13 0.1 0.4 1.2 18 41 2 2.6 0.921 0.021 <0.1 217 <0.05 0.1 0.1
15S/1E-12Fc (deep) 325 68 7.9 54 17 0.2 0.1 1.8 22 41 4 3.6 0.027 0.050 0.4 254 0.05 0.1 0.2

NOTES:

 (1) Maximum contaminant levels are from California Domestic Water Quality and Monitoring Regulations, Title 22, 1977.

 (2) The three values listed for certain constituents refer to the "recommended" level, the "upper" level, and "short-term use" level, respectively.

 (3) The "Practical Quantifiable Limit" for Amonia-N changed in 2017.

 (4) The "Practical Quantifiable Limit" for Nitrate as N was inconsistently reported in 2017, but corrected for this report.

 (5) The "Practical Quantifiable Limit" for Orthophosphate and Bromide changed in 2012.

 (6)  Well 15S/1E-15K4 is being used as a "far-field monitor" for ASR well #4, and as such was sampled for additional constituents in 2016 that are not shown on this table.

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\24\Item-28-Exh-A.xlsx

277



278



EXHIBIT 26-B

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

GROUNDWATER-QUALITY MONITORING RESULTS

Carmel Valley Aquifer Sample Collection Date:  September 19, 2017
Seaside Basin Sample Collection Dates: July 24, August 14, September 11 and 20, and October 6,  2017

Units are milligrams per liter unless otherwise noted.

Water Quality Constituent
Specific 

Conductance 
(micromhos/cm)

Total 
Alkalinity   

(as CACO3)
pH Chloride Sulfate

Ammonia 
Nitrogen 
(as N)

Nitrate 
Nitrogen 
(as NO3)

Total 
Organic 
Carbon

Calcium Sodium Magnesium Potassium Iron Manga-  
nese

Orthophos-
phate

Total 
Dissolved 

Solids
Boron Bromide Fluoride

Drinking Water Standard (1) 900 1600 2200 (2) NA NA 250 500 600 (2) 250 500 600 (2) NA 45 NA NA NA NA NA 0.3 0.05 NA NA NA NA

Sampling Location River Mile

Carmel Valley Aquifer

16S/1W-14Jh (shal) 0.07 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-14Jf (inter) 0.07 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-14Jg (deep) 0.07 no longer in annual sampling network, destroyed by flooding

16S/1W-13Mc (shal) 0.31 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13Mb (inter) 0.31 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13Md (deep) 0.31 no access in November or December due to high water in Lagoon

16S/1W-13Lb (shal) 0.65 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13La (inter) 0.65 no longer in annual sampling network

16S/1W-13Lc (deep) 0.65 962 195 7.2 91 165 0.6 <0.1 2.5 72 79 20 4 1.990 0.621 0.24 608 0.15 0.2 1.3
16S/1E-17J4 3.85 423 75 6.3 26 91 <0.1 0.3 1.9 36 22 13 3 0.286 <0.01 <0.1 294 <0.05 <0.1 0.2
16S/1E-17R2 3.86 1222 185 6.5 113 292 0.2 0.1 4.4 127 78 28 4 6.220 0.249 <0.1 866 0.06 0.1 0.2
16S/1E-23E4 6.53 1058 298 7.0 84 153 0.4 0.2 3.0 101 86 25 2 1.130 0.777 <0.1 683 0.11 0.1 0.5
16S/1E-23La 6.72 446 120 6.9 27 64 <0.1 0.1 1.4 36 30 12 3 1.070 0.158 <0.1 291 <0.05 <0.1 0.5
16S/1E-24N5 8.02 499 138 6.9 29 68 <0.1 1 1.6 46 30 13 3 <0.01 <0.01 <0.1 388 <0.05 <0.1 0.3

Seaside Basin

15S/1E-15N3 (shal) 203 67 7.1 45 15 <0.1 1 0.2 18 32 5.0 2.7 <0.01 <0.01 <0.1 203 <0.05 0.2 0.1
15S/1E-15N2 (deep) 969 257 7.4 152 18 <0.1 <0.1 0.9 64 106 15 4.6 2.769 0.015 <0.1 566 0.11 0.5 0.3
15S/1E-23Ca (shal) 742 222 7.4 103 36 <0.1 0.9 0.9 53 71 12 4 0.026 0.022 <0.1 508 0.06 0.3 0.2
15S/1E-23Cb (deep) not sampled in 2015 due to obstruction in well

15S/1E-15F1 (shal) 315 70 6.9 47 11 <0.1 3 <0.2 19 33 5.0 2.2 1.636 <0.01 <0.1 223 <0.05 0.2 0.10
15S/1E-15F2 (deep) 1102 326 6.3 159 42 <0.1 <0.1 1.2 80 105 17 4.8 19.797 0.230 <0.1 668 0.12 0.5 0.3
15S/1E-15K5 (shal) 208 66 7.8 49 8 <0.1 0.5 1.2 16 37 4 2.5 0.095 <0.01 NR 208 0.05 0.1 0.1
15S/1E-15K4 (deep) 806 195 7.4 113 33 <0.1 <0.1 0.6 57 101 12 4.4 0.033 0.149 <0.1 460 0.10 0.3 0.3
15S/1E-11Pa (shal) 331 69 6.8 54 13 <0.1 <0.1 0.5 28 38 5.0 4.3 0.078 <0.01 <0.1 217 <0.05 0.2 <0.1
15S/1E-11Pb (deep) 426 100 5.9 71 1 0.4 <0.1 4.0 30 62 4.0 4.2 0.714 <0.01 <0.1 271 <0.05 0.3 0.1
15S/1E-12Fa (shal) 342 62 8.2 59 12 <0.1 0.4 0.3 21 38 4 3 0.618 0.026 <0.1 246 0.06 0.2 0.1
15S/1E-12Fc (deep) 292 59 7.6 45 13 <0.1 0.5 1.0 17 34 2 2 0.927 0.030 <0.1 177 0.07 0.1 0.1

NOTES:

 (1) Maximum contaminant levels are from California Domestic Water Quality and Monitoring Regulations, Title 22, 1977.

 (2) The three values listed for certain constituents refer to the "recommended" level, the "upper" level, and "short-term use" level, respectively.

 (3) The "Practical Quantifiable Limit" for Amonia-N changed in 2017.

 (4) The "Practical Quantifiable Limit" for Nitrate as N was inconsistently reported in 2017, but corrected for this report.

 (5) The "Practical Quantifiable Limit" for Orthophosphate and Bromide changed in 2012.

 (6)  Well 15S/1E-15K4 is being used as a "far-field monitor" for ASR well #4, and as such was sampled for additional constituents in 2016 that are not shown on this table.

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\24\Item-24-Exh-B.xlsx

279



280



EXHIBIT 26-C 281



282



/U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\24\Item-24-Exh-D.xls

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

O
ct

-8
9

O
ct

-9
0

O
ct

-9
1

O
ct

-9
2

O
ct

-9
3

O
ct

-9
4

O
ct

-9
5

O
ct

-9
6

O
ct

-9
7

O
ct

-9
8

O
ct

-9
9

O
ct

-0
0

O
ct

-0
1

O
ct

-0
2

O
ct

-0
3

O
ct

-0
4

O
ct

-0
5

O
ct

-0
6

O
ct

-0
7

O
ct

-0
8

O
ct

-0
9

O
ct

-1
0

O
ct

-1
1

O
ct

-1
2

O
ct

-1
3

O
ct

-1
4

O
ct

-1
5

O
ct

-1
6

O
ct

-1
7

O
ct

-1
8

O
ct

-1
9

C
hl

or
id

e 
(m

g/
l)

SE
C

 (u
m

ho
s/

cm
) 

WATER-QUALITY RESULTS
State Parks Near CAWD (deep) - 16S/1W-13Lc

River Mile 0.65

SEC 16S/1W-13Lc Chloride -16S/1W-13Lc

EXHIBIT 26-D 283



284



/U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\InfoItems\24\Item-24-Exh-E.xls

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

O
ct

-8
9

O
ct

-9
0

O
ct

-9
1

O
ct

-9
2

O
ct

-9
3

O
ct

-9
4

O
ct

-9
5

O
ct

-9
6

O
ct

-9
7

O
ct

-9
8

O
ct

-9
9

O
ct

-0
0

O
ct

-0
1

O
ct

-0
2

O
ct

-0
3

O
ct

-0
4

O
ct

-0
5

O
ct

-0
6

O
ct

-0
7

O
ct

-0
8

O
ct

-0
9

O
ct

-1
0

O
ct

-1
1

O
ct

-1
2

O
ct

-1
3

O
ct

-1
4

O
ct

-1
5

O
ct

-1
6

O
ct

-1
7

O
ct

-1
8

O
ct

-1
9

C
hl

or
id

e 
(m

g/
l)

SE
C

 (m
ho

s/
cm

) 

WATER-QUALITY RESULTS
Reimers #1 - 16S/1E-23La

River Mile 6.72

SEC -23La Chloride -23La

EXHIBIT 26-E 285



286



EXHIBIT 26-F 287

Tom
Typewritten Text
u:/tom/pdf19/wellmaps/SCBWQ

Tom
Typewritten Text

Tom
Typewritten Text

Tom
Typewritten Text

Tom
Typewritten Text

Tom
Typewritten Text

Tom
Typewritten Text

Tom
Pencil

Tom
Pencil

Tom
Pencil

Tom
Line

Tom
Line



5 Harris Court, Building G, Monterey, CA  93940        P.O. Box 85, Monterey, CA  93942-0085 

831-658-5600        Fax  831-644-9560        http://www.mpwmd.net 

Supplement to 1/23/2019 

MPWMD Board Packet 
Attached are copies of letters received between December 11, 2018 and January 14, 2019. These 

letters are listed in the January 23, 2019 Board packet under Letters Received. 

Author Addressee Date Topic 

Hideko Inouye 

Graves 

David Stoldt 11/24/18 Request for Discretionary Exemption 

John Narigi and 

Bob McKenzie 

MPWMD Board 1/1/2019 MPWMD’s Motion to Correct Captions 

Loris Langdon MPWMD 1/8/2019 Unusually high water bill 

John Narigi and 

Bob McKenzie 

MPWMD Board 1/14/2019 Response of David Laredo to Coalition of 

Peninsula Businesses letter of January 1, 2019 

U:\staff\Boardpacket\2019\20190123\LtrsRecd\LtrsRecd.docx 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7


	Jan-23-2019-Board-Mtg-Agenda
	Item-1
	Item-1-Exh-A
	Item-2
	Item-2-Exh-A
	Item-3
	Item-3-Exh-A
	Item-4
	Item-4-Exh-A
	Item-5
	Item-6
	Item-7
	Item-7-Exh-A
	Item-8
	Item-9
	Item-9-Exh-A
	Item-9-Exh-B
	Item-9-Exh-C
	Item-9-Exh-D
	Item-12
	Item-12-Exh-A
	Item-15
	Item-15-Exh-A
	Item-15-Exh-B
	Item-15-Exh-C
	Item-15-Exh-D
	Item-16
	Item-16-Exh-A
	Item-18
	Item-18-Exh-A
	Item-19
	Item-20
	Item-20-Exh-A
	Item-20-Exh-B
	Item-20-Exh-C
	Item-21
	Item-22
	Item-23
	Item-24
	Item-24-Exh-A
	Item-24-Exh-B
	Item-24-Exh-C
	Item-25
	Item-25-Exh-A
	Item-25-Exh-B
	Item-26
	Item-26-Exh-A
	Item-26-Exh-B
	Item-26-Exh-C
	Item-26-Exh-D
	Item-26-Exh-E
	Item-26-Exh-F
	LtrsRecd



